
s1ra 

NOTE MEETING LOCATION 
SUISUN CITY CITY HALL 

701 Civic Center Blvd 

Board Meeting 
AprilS, 1998 

6:00p.m. 



s 1ra 
MEETING NOTICE 

333 Sunset Avenue, Suite 200 
Suisun City, California 94585 (Please Note Meeting Location) 

Area Code 707 April 8, 1998 

422-6491 • Fax 438-0656 Suisun City City Hall 

Members: 

Benicia 
Dixon 
Fairfield 
Rio Vista 
Solano County 
Suisun City 
Vacaville 

701 Civic Center Boulevard 
Suisun City, CA 
Refreshments - 5:45 pm 
Regular meeting - 6:00 pm 

MISSION STATEMENT- SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Develop and implement a vision for transportation that, while recognizing the diverse 
nature of the County, supports economic development and ensures quality of life in 
Solano County. 

Vallejo ITEM 

Martin Tuttle 
Executive Director 

~:~q,::;:;;;;;::::t~ilt:::~P.:::m:mi!tMfiqnD.t~:::m:t~i~u.m:::;:;:;ili;w;::::::r::::::::~:::~:::::::~::;:;:;:;::~::::;:;::::::::~:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::;::;::::;r::::;l:::;::;:::;:::;:::::r;::::::;:::::::::::::::::;~::::::::::::~::::':I':::::,:::::::::':::::::::::::::::: 

~~~:::::::::::::::::::IJ111rll¥ii:::ifl:lgtu!f.i.i::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::!:::::::I:::;::::::r;:::::::::::~::::::::::::::::;::::;::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;::::;::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::::::;:;::::::::::;::::::::::::::,:::::::::::::::::::~::::::::;:;::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;[:::::~: 

~~~:::::::::::::::::::::::slii~~~~::IEii!lu~!ll:::::::::::::::::::~::::::;:;:::::::::::;::::;:::::::;::::::;:;::::::::~:::::~:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;::::;::::::::::m:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::~::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::::;::::::::::;::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::::::;::'::::::::::::::::::::::::::::~::::::':::::'::::::r::;:::::::::::::: 

3.1 Approval of Solano Transportation Plan (Martin Tuttle) Page 1 

3.2 Recognition of SEDCORP Transportation Action Team (Chairman Erickson) Page 65 

~~iii!!!Iilii£i.J.ii11l~r~£J.P.i!~IIiP.i!lt!rliil[~~;:::::;;:::':::;::]l!iii!:::::::::::::::::::::::::::;::::;::::;:l:::::;::::::::':::::::::::::::;:;::::::::;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::m:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;:::::::: 

fi~J:;;::;@iiP.IIii~.tlilit~!rll:i~~~l~~~~@i~i::mu::•m::::::;::::;:::::;:;::::;;::::::::;;:::::;::::m:::::::::::;::m:n:::::m:;::::::::::m::;::;:;::m::m:::;;;:::::::::::::::;::::;:::::::::;t: 

l;u;;:;::::;::;:::liiP:Ivfilld~ti!IB.ilii:il!ml,ini::;::Im:~m:::::::;H::;:::::::::ili::::::::::::::::'::::::::::::::::::::::;:;:::::::::::::;:::::::::~:;:;ili:ili:::::::;:;:::ili::::;r;:;::::::;::::;;::;;;;:;:::::::;::::;;t:ll:ll::;::::::::::::;::;::::::::::::;::::;:::::.;: 
~~~:;:::::::::::::::::fQU.IIIIItii.IIIII!ifl[fi!l!ili§ii.!in~::!~B:::iii.:II.i:::ii11ili!i{gi,!!!4.!iiY.ii!Q.i.J.::;:;::::;::::::::::;:::::::::::::::::::::::'::::':::::::::::::::::'::::::::::::::::::: 

7.1 

7.2 

7.3 

7.4 

7.5 

7.6 

7.7 

7.8 

7.9 

Minutes of Meeting of March 11, 1998. Page 87 

Draft Minutes of March 25, 1998 TAC meeting. Page 95 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) Interagency Agreement with MTC for FY 
1997-98 through 1999-2000. (Dan Christians) Page 101 

Amendment to Agreement with Moore, Iacofano and Goltsman (MIG). 
(Dan Christians) Page 1 09 

Amendment to Agreement with Michael Jones and Associates. 
(Dan Christians) Page 113 

Unmet Transit Needs. (Matt Todd) Page 117 

Office Lease Agreement. (Martin Tuttle) Page 141 

Summa.-y of Solano Intercity Transportation Providers (information only). 
(Martin Tuttle) Page 143 

Funding to Attend Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce Washington D.C. 
meetings. (Martin Tuttle) Page 145 



8.1 1-80 Reliever Route Transportation/land use issues. 
(Martin Tuttle) Page 149 

8.2 Renaming of the Rio Vista Bridge after the late STA Board Member Helen Madere. 
(Marci Coglianese) Page 151 

9.1 STA Budget for Fiscal Year 1998-99. (Martin Tuttle) Page 153 

9.2 Bay Area Transportation For Clean Air (TFCA) Projects for 1998-99. 
(Dan Christians) Page 161 

10.1 Update on FairfieldNacaville Capitol Corridor Train Station. 
(Morrie Barr) Page 165 

10.2 Presentation by SolanoLinks Consortium. (Alan Nadritch) Page 173 

10.3 Board Members Comments. 

11.0 Adjourn. (Next Meeting: May 13, 1998) 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

March 30, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 

s1ra 

Solano Transportation Plan - Final Draft 

Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda1tem 3.1 

The SEDCORP Transportation Action Team, a joint venture between the Solano Economic 
Development Corporation (SEDCORP) and the STA, has completed its task of developing a new 
transportation plan for the county. This unprecedented effort, which began in March of last year, 
outlines strategies to ensure our county's regional transportation infrastructure capacity keeps pace 
with projected growth over the next 10-15 years. 

The proposed plan was presented at three locally televised community forums and to several smaller 
groups in order to obtain additional public input on the proposals. At each forum, questionnaires 
were distributed and various public comments were received (a complete set of all comments were 
included in the March 11 Board packet). 

A broader based group of civic leaders (Community Action Team) held two focus group-like 
meetings to review the comments from the community forums and provide additional direction on 
the plan. The SEDCORP Transportation Action Team reviewed the proposed changes on March 
24 and made several changes to the document prior to forwarding the attached plan to the ST A 
Board. 

In order maintain our county's mobility, the plan focuses on the need to seek new local funding for 
a list of transit and road projects, advocate for additional state and federal funding for several pending 
projects, and deliver already funded, but not completed, projects. Perhaps more important, the plan 
calls for the STA and county leaders to continue to educate the general public about the county's 
transportation needs and options for meeting those needs. 

The joint venture between the ST A and business representatives has attracted local media coverage, 
thereby beginning to raise public awareness on pending gridlock and its impact on Solano's economic 
vitality. The partnership is also credited for assisting the STA in the current 1998 State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and federal funding processes. 

Staff recommends approval of the plan as a "Final Draft". As suggested in the plan, continued 
efforts, including a possible advisory ballot measure, should be made to seek additional input -- and 
support -- from the general public on the proposals. 

PAGE 1 



Agenda Item 3.1, cont. 

If the plan is adopted by the Board, staff further recommends the authorization of$10,000 from the 
Project Development budget (miscellaneous project development category, current balance is 
$47,500) to produce and print copies of the "Final Draft" for general distribution. 

Gary Andrews, Chairman of the SEDCORP Transportation Action Team, will outline the major 
points of the Plan at the Board meeting. 

Recommendation 

Approve the Solano Transportation Plan - Final Draft and authorize $10,000 for printing the 
document from project development funds. 

Attachment 

PAGE2 



RESOLUTION 98-

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ADOPTING 
THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

WHEREAS, projected long-term transportation funding needs in Solano County far exceed the 
revenue estimated to be available to meet them; and 

WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is dedicated to meeting the long-term 
mobility needs of Solano County; and 

WHEREAS, the Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP) supports transportation 
improvements that promote Solano's economic vitality; and 

WHEREAS, the STA and SEDCORP have jointly developed the Solano Transportation Plan to 
meet the long-term transportation needs of Solano residents and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Plan will provide a guide for long-term transportation 
investments in Solano County; and 

WHEREAS, a critical element of the Solano Transportation Plan is the education of community 
leaders and the public about transportation funding needs in Solano County. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) adopts 
the Solano Transportation Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the ST A pledges to continue to work 
with Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP), community leaders, and the public 
to advance the mobility and funding objectives of the Solano Transportation Plan. 

Don Erickson, Chairman 
Solano Transportation Authority 

I, Martin Tuttle, the Executive Director of the STA, do hereby certifY that the above and forgoing 
resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by the STAat a regular meeting held this 
8th day of April, 1998. 

Martin Tuttle, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 

PAGE3 



SEDCORP 

April 8, 1998 

Dear Solano Citizen: 

Solano's transportation network affects our ability to get to work safely and on 
time, as well as the ability of our businesses to function efficiently. 

After months of briefings on our regional transportation needs, projects and 
revenue sources, we have serious concerns that the projected lack of mobility in the 
next few years will inhibit the economic vitality of Solano County -- if no action is 
taken to change the current course. 

A result of a dynamic partnership between business and government, Solano 
Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP) and the Solano Transportation 
Authority (STA) submit this transportation plan as a means to begin to engage and 
address the issue of mobility in Solano County. We hope you will review and 
comment on the plan, which focuses on strategies that will ensure that our County's 
transportation infrastructure keeps up with projected growth over the next 10-20 
years. 

Again, we welcome your comments and suggestions on the plan. 

Steve Spencer, Chairman 
Solano Economic Development 
Corporation 

Sincerely, 

Don Erickson, Chairman 
Solano Transportation Authority 

PAGES 



SEDCORP and STA wish to thank the following individuals for their outstanding input in 
developing the Solano Transportation Plan - Final Draft: 

SEDCORP Transportation Action Team 

Gary Andrews, Amos and Andrews 
John Ash, Benicia Industrial Park 
Jeff Brown, Herman Goelitz Candy Co. 
Mike Burns, Genentech, Inc. 
Thomas Chowaniec, General Mills 
Gary Falati, Falati & Associates 

STA Board 

Dan Donahue, City of Vallejo 
Marci Coglianese, City of Rio Vista 
Don Erickson, City of Dixon 
Steve Gizzi, City of Benicia 

Frank Friedman, Lucky Stores 
Steve Lessler, STA 
Mary McCarthy, SEDCORP 
Bob Moody, Herman Goelitz Candy Co. 
Jim Spering, STA 
Bill Wourms, ALZA Corp. 

Barbara Kondylis, Solano County Board of Supervisors 
Steve Lessler, City of Fairfield 
Rischa Slade, City of Vacaville 
Jim Spering, City of Suisun City 

STA Technical Advisory Committee 

Gian Aggarwal, City of Vacaville 
Morrie Barr, City of Fairfield 
Pam Belchamber, City of Vallejo 
Otto Bertolero, City of Suisun City 
Dan Christians, ST A 
John Gray, County of Solano 
Paul Hom, City of Vacaville 
Ed Huestis, City of Vacaville 
Kim Kloeb, STA 
Janet Koster, City of Rio Vista 

Gary Leach, City of Vallejo 
Alan Nadritch, City of Benicia 
Elizabeth Richards, Solano Commuter Information 
Dan Schiada, City of Benicia 
Staff, Caltrans District 4 
Staff, Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Matt Todd, STA 
Martin Tuttle, ST A 
Paul Wiese, County of Solano 

PAGE6 



Community Action Team 

Gary Andrews 
John Ash 
Rhuenette Alums 
Bob Baroni 
Jeff Brown 
Mike Bruce 
Michael Burns 
Dana Carpio 
Supervisor Bill Carroll 
Julie Coen 
Joel Corona 
Jim DeKioe 
Tom Egidio 
Frank Friedman 
David Heindel 
Leslie Hollister 
Kathy Hoffman 

Consultants 

Will Kempton, Smith and Kempton 
Bob Grandy, Grandy and Associates 

Financial Assistance 

California Alliance for Jobs 
SEDCORP Transportation Action Team 
Solano Transportation Authority 

Ron Hurlbut 
Bill James 
Maureen Jensen 
Michael Johnson 
Gordon Keiser 
Duane Kromm 
E.K. Loving 
Joe Lucchio 
Councilmember Karin MacMillan 
Councilmember Ray Martin 
Margo McGlone 
Councilmember Noreen O'Regan 
Kevin O'Rourke 
Craig Prudhel 
Supervisor John Silva 
Bill Thurston 
Jim Weddell 
Billy Yarbrough 

PAGE7 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Executive Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I 

Section 1 - Introduction ....................................................... 1 

Section 2- Review of Survey Data ............................................. 14 

Section 3 - Plan Revenues ................................................... 17 

Section 4 - Plan Projects .................................................... 19 

Section 5 - implementation Scenarios .......................................... 33 

Appendix ................................................................ A-1 

PAGES 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP) and the Solano Transportation 
Authority {ST A) have joined forces in a "Call to Action" to focus attention on a serious problem 
facing our county's future. Increasing congestion on our transportation system is beginning to 
impact the ability to move people and goods in Solano where we are dependent on mobility to 
assure economic vitality and a positive quality of life. SEDCORP and ST A, representing a broad 
group of private sector business interests and public agencies, are working together to address 
the county's aging and fragile transportation network and to implement a strategy which will help 
solve our transportation problems. 

The Solano Transportation Plan is intended to be the blueprint for creating a transportation 
network, which will support the County's mobility needs. The Plan focuses on the need to 
achieve early delivery of projects which have already been financed, sets the stage for securing 
a maximum share of additional State and Federal money which is expected to be available over 
the next few years and provides a framework for seeking new local funding to implement future 
transportation projects which will be necessary to meet growing demands. 

Need for an Implementation Plan 

Today, the cities and county of Solano have a competitive advantage over the rest of the Bay 
Area and the state in terms of quality of life, basic infrastructure, and the amount of land suitable 
for economic development. The county's future economic prosperity- and quality of life -will be 
threatened if the issue of increasing traffic congestion is not addressed soon. Further, growing 
demand and their deteriorating condition make our roadways more dangerous to use. 

A key reason for the recent decline in our transportation system is that traditional funding sources 
are not keeping up with mobility needs. Since 1970, transportation spending in California has 
increased by only 15 percent while the state's population has increased by 60 percent and the 
number of vehicle miles traveled has increased by 160 percent. 

A recent survey by the Bay Area Council showed that congestion in the region is costing roughly 
$3.5 billion annually in lost productivity and wasted resources. In Solano County, routine 
congestion is already occurring at key gateways such as the Benicia-Martinez Bridge, the 
intersection at Highway 29 and 37 in Vallejo and the 1-80/1-680 interchange at Cordelia. The STA 
estimates that the cost to finance basic transportation needs in Solano County over the next 20 
years will exceed available funds by more than $700 million. 

PAGE9 



Process for Developing the Plan 

SEDCORP's Transportation Action Team and STA began working together more than a year ago 
to develop a mobility strategy for Solano County. Extensive research on current and future 
transportation needs, project costs, available funding sources, and an assessment of public 
support for different program elements was conducted. 

In January of 1998, SEDCORP and STA released a preliminary draft of a mobility plan and 
established a Community Action Team consisting of business leaders, elected officials and citizen 
activists to provide input. The purpose of the Community Action Team was to further develop the 
draft plan based on community outreach and to assist in implementing a strategy which will 
produce positive results for the county. The preliminary draft plan was presented at three public 
workshops held in Vacaville, Fairfield, and Vallejo in February of 1998. Input from these 
workshops has been incorporated in this plan. A brief description of the suggestions is included 
as part of this Executive Summary. 

Implementation Plan Strategy 

The implementation plan strategy can be summarized in four basic activities. 

EDUCATE the public about the county's transportation needs and options for 
meeting these needs 

SEEK new local funding to leverage all available funding sources for strategic investments 
that will return the greatest dividends to overall county wide and regional mobility. 

DELIVER already funded, but not completed, transportation projects. The term "deliver" 
means to work with Caltrans and involved regulatory agencies to bring funded projects 
to construction as quickly as possible. 

ADVOCATE for additional local, state and federal funding for planned projects. 

Implementation Plan Projects 

The projects or programs in the transportation plan are grouped into three separate categories 
that correspond to activities outlined in the strategy described above. Projects listed below are 
described in more detail in Section 4 and Section 6. 

GROUP A (Projects for which new local funds will be sought): 
Safety Project Implementation Plan 
Local Road Maintenance 
Commuter Rail Service and Stations 
Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 
Park-and-ride lot Security Program 

ii 
' '_{ 



Commuter Express Bus Service 
1-80 Reliever Route, Phase 1 
Local Road and Interchange Improvement Program 
Ferry Service Program Enhancements 
Dial-a-ride Service Enhancements for Elderly & Handicapped 
County wide Bike Route Program 

GROUP B (Projects which are already funded but not completed): 
New Benicia-Martinez Bridge 
Carquinez Replacement Bridge 
Intercity Transit Fare and Schedule Coordination 
1-80 Reliever Route, Phase 1 a (partially funded) 
Highway 37 in Vallejo 
Rail Station Improvements (partially funded) 
Road Maintenance (partially funded) 
Primary Bike Route Segments (partially funded) 
Park-and-ride lots, Phase 1 

GROUP C (Projects for which additional local. state and federal funding will be advocated): 
Highway 12 Safety Improvements 
Highway 37/29 Interchange 
1-80 HOV Lane Project, 1-680 to 1-505 
Capitol Corridor- 51

h and 6th Trains 
1-80/1-680 Interchange Improvements, Phase 1 
Transit Operations and Capital Shortfall 
1-80 Reliever Route, Phase 2 
Park-and-ride lots/ridesharing 
Highway 113 Railroad Grade Separation 
Local Road Improvements 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements 

Action Plan 

Following the community meetings and other outreach efforts, which included presentations to 
chambers of commerce, large employers and civic groups, the final draft Solano Transportation 
Plan is available for general circulation. The Plan will be used as an educational tool to inform 
the public of the need for improvements to the County's transportation system, and to focus 
attention on those projects which must be completed in order to maintain the area's mobility 
needs. 

iii 

PAGEll 



County officials will use this document as a means to "deliver the message" regarding our 
transportation problems, and will implement a strategy of seeking new local funding, delivering 
projects which are already funded, and advocating for additional local, state and federal funding 
whenever possible. With continuing input from the general public, the Plan will also serve as a 
vehicle to communicate the need for additional funding, and will provide a framework for 
determining the viability of any new local funding sources. 

As a result of community input, the plan process will now include a request for all local 
jurisdictions to develop a specific maintenance plan for their area of responsibility, and a study 
of the connection between transportation improvements and land use as it relates to the 1-80 
Reliever Route Project. 

Finally, prior to the conclusion of this process, it has been suggested that the public be asked to 
respond to the plan through a countywide advisory vote which would likely be included as part 
of the November 1998 ballot. 

Recent Funding Advocacy Efforts 

Several of the projects described above are strong candidates for either partial or full funding in 
the ongoing 1998 State Transportation Improvement Program {STIP) and federal funding 
processes. 

The California Transportation Commission (CTC) will take final action on these recommendations 
at their meeting in June, 1998 and an extension on the federaiiSTEA bill is expected this spring. 
Approval of the funding recommendations will mark a successful beginning to funding advocacy 
efforts initiated through this process, but the bulk of the challenge to implement the overall 
transportation program remains. 

iv 

PAGE 12 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 

The Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP) and the Solano Transportation 
Authority (ST A) have joined forces in a "Call to Action" to focus attention on a serious problem 
affecting our County's future. An aging and fragile transportation network is beginning to impact 
the ability to move people and goods in Solano County where we are dependent on mobility to 
assure economic vitality and a positive quality of life. If we in Solano County are to avoid the 
transportation quagmire that has afflicted other regions around the State, SEDCORP and STA 
have concluded that private, public and civic leaders must unite in a common effort to identify and 
deliver transportation improvements which will ensure economic competitiveness and the 
prosperity necessary to maintain the quality of life to which we've grown accustomed. 

The SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN is intended to be the blueprint for creating a 
transportation network which will support the County's mobility needs. The Plan focuses on the 
need to achieve early delivery of projects which have already been financed, sets the stage for 
securing a maximum share of additional State and Federal money which is expected to be 
available over the next few years and provides a framework for seeking new funding to implement 
future transportation projects which will be necessary to meet growing demand. 

Looking ahead to the next five to ten years, it is absolutely essential that residents and 
businesses in Solano County assess our economic future in light of the county's transportation 
network. This assessment must evaluate the mobility needs and funding requirements for this 
county to maintain a solid economic base and to retain a rich quality of life. The Solano 
Transportation Plan is a long-range vision of the transportation projects and programs which will 
be necessary to relieve congestion and achieve a degree of mobility which will meet our 
objectives. Through the creation of a Community Action Team, SEDCORP and STA will jointly 
develop a strategy to deliver this Plan. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

1 

PAGE13 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Background 

Today, we depend as much as ever on our local transportation systems to sustain our economy, 
our well-being and our quality of life. Yet our local transportation system is in trouble. State and 
Federal fuel taxes, the traditional funding sources for transportation projects, are flat taxes which 
do not rise with inflation. In real terms, these taxes buy us less today than they did in 1967. 
Furthermore, our State and Federal governments have greatly reduced their levels of investment 
in all types of infrastructure improvements. In the 1990's California has spent a large portion of 
its transportation "dollar" on retrofitting the highway system in response to the Lorna Prieta and 
Northridge earthquakes. While this represents a critical expenditure, very little State funding was 
provided for constructing new facilities or maintaining existing facilities. One study has estimated 
that by the late 1980's, only five percent of each State and Federal tax dollar was spent on 
infrastructure development, compared to the twenty percent of that tax dollar which was spent 
between 1945 and 1968. 

While funding is lagging behind, people are driving more miles today than ever before. The 
increase in traffic demand is putting a growing strain on our existing transportation system. The 
resulting congestion and reduced levels of service are costing the public time and money and 
seriously hampering our ability to sustain a thriving economy. The situation in Solano County is 
very similar to what is happening in other parts of the country. 

A recent study by the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) projected a rosy picture for 
the economic growth of the San Francisco Bay region. According to ABAG, a regional planning 
agency for the nine-county area, the growth will be driven by newcomers seeking jobs and 
affordable housing in the counties surrounding San Francisco Bay. Overall, the report says that 
the Bay Area will grow by 1.4 million people and add at least as many jobs in the next two 
decades. 

While dramatic economic growth is expected for the entire region, the Interstate 80 corridor linking 
San Francisco and Sacramento is projected to grow faster in the future than any other location 
in the Bay Area. In fact, Solano County will grow at a faster rate than any other county within the 
region according to ABAG's Projections '98, a forecast produced every two years to project 
economic and demographic changes in the Bay Area. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

2 

PAGE 14 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

According to Paul Fassinger, ABAG's research director, the growth in Solano County will be tied 
to the availability of land for jobs and housing. The county will not only see a 36 percent increase 
in population during the next twenty years, but jobs will grow by a whopping sixty percent. Figure 
1-1 graphically depicts this rapid job growth in stark terms. By the year 2010, the number of jobs 
in the county will reach nearly 250,000! 

The impact on Solano County will be welcome news for an economy which was hard-hit by the 
recent recession and closure of the Mare Island Naval Shipyard. However, the growth in both 
population and the local economy will put a strain on a transportation network which is quickly 
being overwhelmed by existing demand, let alone the demand which will come with a brighter 
economic future. Figure 1-2 shows the expected increase in annual vehicle miles traveled with 
traffic demand expected to increase by 49 percent as early as 2010. Even if Solano County were 
not to grow, the 1-80 corridor will reach capacity in the next ten years due to trips generated by 
growth in the two adjacent metropolitan areas. Says ABAG's Fassinger, "There will be a large 
percentage of growth in Vacaville and Fairfield. This is a dynamic area because of its central 
location between the Bay Area and Sacramento." 

Safety will also become an increasing concern as more users crowd the transportation network 
and the system continues to deteriorate. Growing congestion will lead to more accidents, creating 
new safety hazards and aggravating unsafe conditions which already exist. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

3 

PAGE 15 



• 

Figure 1-1 

250 

.._._225 
c C/) 
Q}"'O 
E c 

6" ~ 200. 
o.o 
E..c 
w !:::-175 

150 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Solano County 
Employment 

1995 2000 2005 2010 
Year 

Source: Association of Bay Area Governments, Projections '98 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

4 

PAGE 16 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

As grim as Solano's transportation problems appear, the situation which has developed in Los 
Angeles and parts of the Bay Area is not inevitable. The prospect of increasing traffic congestion 
and its corresponding impact on the economy and the environment, however, should spur us to 
action. All of us, whether we are in business or government, must work together to develop 
creative solutions to this transportation dilemma. 

Plan Purpose 

The purpose for the Solano Transportation Plan is quite simple. The Plan will provide a 
framework in which we can identify project needs, determine the most cost-effective investments 
in the County's transportation system and develop the strategies necessary to secure the revenue 
needed to maintain and expand our highway and transit network. In short, the Solano 
Transportation Plan is the vehicle through which we can build consensus on just how we can do 
a better job with our existing resources, and how we can obtain the additional dollars necessary 
to maintain our future mobility. 

To achieve this consensus, SEDCORP and the STA have established a Community Action Team 
whose mission is to engage the issue of a viable transportation system for this County and to 
implement a strategy to address the challenge immediately. That strategy can be summarized 
in four basic activities: 

o EDUCATE the public about the problems facing our transportation system and the need to 
address those problems for the sake of safety, mobility and economic vitality. 

o SEEK new local funding to leverage all available funding sources for strategic investments that 
will return the greatest dividends to overall countywide and regional mobility. 

o DELIVER already funded, but not completed, transportation projects. The term "deliver" 
means bringing a project to construction. There are a number of projects, including the Benicia
Martinez and Carquinez bridge projects for which funding has been assigned. We need to work 
with Caltrans and involved regulatory agencies to ensure this work is accomplished in a timely 
manner. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

5 

PAGE 17 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

o ADVOCATE for additional local, state and federal funding to complete planned projects. 

Nothing will happen without a strong local effort. However, working together, the public and 
private sectors have an opportunity to develop innovative and far-reaching solutions. In the words 
of Jim Spering, Mayor of Suisun City and Chair of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, 
"Inaction is not acceptable." 

Need for Implementation Plan 

Today, the cities and County of Solano have a competitive advantage over the rest of the Bay 
Area and the state in terms of our quality of living, our basic infrastructure and the amount of land 
which is suitable for economic development. However, our safety, our future economic 
prosperity--and our quality of life--will be threatened if we do not address the issue of traffic 
congestion now. We can expect stop and go conditions on major freeways and arterials every 
day during peak hours and we will suffer with pothole-ridden local streets and roads unless 
comprehensive strategies are implemented to meet increasing demand. 

The Solano Transportation Authority estimates that the cost to finance our most basic 
transportation needs over the next twenty years will outstrip our available funding by more than 
$700 million! Traditional funding sources are not keeping up with our mobility needs. While 
transportation spending in California has remained fairly flat in terms of constant dollars since 
1970, population, personal income and vehicle miles of travel have increased dramatically (see 
Figure 1-3). 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

6 

PAGE 18 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 1-2 

Solano County 
Vehicle Miles Traveled per year 

6000 

"0 5500 
Q) --~ ~ 5000 
.._ 0 
r-= 
en~ 4500 
Q)"-" 

:2: 4000 

3500 

Source: Caltrans 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

1995 2000 2005 2010 
Year 

7 

PAGE 19 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

The costs of dealing with our mobility needs presents another significant challenge. In a recent 
report prepared for the Bay Area Defense Conversion Action Team in November of 1995, experts 
estimated the costs of transportation infrastructure by various spending categories. Figure 1-4 
shows, among other things, that it can cost upwards of $400,000 a mile to reconstruct a four-lane 
roadway, and extending BART just one mile can run as much as $70 million! As can be seen in 
Figure 1-5, ST A pegs annual transportation funding in Solano County at about $30 million. Even 
taking into account these yearly revenues, however, the county's funding shortfall over the next 
twenty years just to meet basic needs, including maintenance and projects to relieve our most 
congested bottlenecks, totals $717 million (Figure 1-6). 
To further illustrate the dollar shortfall, consider the expense of maintaining today's existing 
transportation system. Solano County is a large area geographically. We have a number of older 
downtowns that have high maintenance needs. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC), the regional transportation planning agency for the nine Bay Area counties, estimates that 
Solano County has maintenance needs for roads and bridges over the next twenty years totaling 
in the hundreds of millions of dollars. To illustrate the problem, consider that the Solano County 
Transportation Department has about 600 miles of county roads under it's jurisdiction of which 
470 miles are paved, but only has enough funding from current sources to overlay about seven 
miles each year. These roads should be resurfaced every twenty years so that they don't require 
more expensive major repairs. Based on current funding levels, however, it will take more than 
65 years just to overlay the existing inventory of paved roads. 

There's more to the financial impact of increasing congestion, however, than just the cost of 
needed infrastructure and repairs. A recent survey by the Bay Area Council showed that 
congestion in the region is costing roughly $3.5 billion annually in lost productivity and wasted 
resources. This amount is expected to grow steadily in the future if steps are not taken to reduce 
congestion and improve mobility. 

In Solano County, we are already experiencing routine congestion at key gateways such as the 
Benicia-Martinez Bridge, the intersection at Highways 29 and 37 in Vallejo and the 1- 80/680 
interchange at Cordelia. The 1-80 corridor is expected to reach capacity within the next ten years, 
and we can expect stop and go conditions every day during peak hours unless a comprehensive 
strategy for dealing with our transportation needs is implemented. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

8 

PAGE 20 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

If Solano County is to grow and prosper, mobility is essential. Some businesses in the Bay area 
are actually having to shut down production lines because parts can't be transported to the plant 
on time. Because companies have to orient their shipping times around traffic, inventories are 
being held at inefficiently high levels with finished products staying on factory premises longer 
than optimal. Protracted commute times make it difficult to attract and retain employees. Says 
Frank Friedman with the Lucky Stores Distribution Center in Vacaville, "Our business will be 
forced to leave if mobility is not maintained." 

There is no question that Solano County's declining mobility is a cause for concern. It is a 
problem that affects workers and residents and demands solutions from all leaders throughout 
the County. A high quality transportation system that achieves mobility is imperative. All private, 
public and civic leaders must unite in a common effort to identify and deliver transportation 
improvements that will ensure our safety, our economic competitiveness and, ultimately, our 
quality of life. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

9 

PAGE 21 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 1-3 

POPULATION, PERSONAL IN"C011E, VEHICLE WLES OF TR.A. VEL 
and TR-\..~SPORTATION SPENDING in California 

Percent Change si.J;lce 1970 

160 

140 

-+-VMT 

120 -11--?0PULATION 

100 

80 

-.!:-PERSONAL INCOME 

-*-TRANSPORTATION 
REVENUE 

Source: Governor's Commission on Transportation Investment. 1995. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

10 

PAGE22 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 1-4 

COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 

·.··•··.· . >> . 
.'. .. ~:-:' . :.:..:~-- : 

' '; 
. ~ . -. ~ 

. ' ..... ,,., : -.c;::.··-.-~-

.ACFION ..•.. 
.. . . ~ .··.::-'-~ . . _:-:· 

. · .. ·. 'A:VERAGECOST 
. . .. .. 

... ·· .. .. 
· .. ·· .. , 

Seal cracks in a four-lane road 
$17,000 per mile 

Reconstruct a deteriorated four-lane 
road $400,000 per mile 
Extend BART 

I $70 million per mile 
Construct Tasman Corridor light-railline I 

$39 million per mile 
I Purchase one dean-burning bus 

$240,000 
Operate and maintain one dean-burning 
bus $190,000 per year 

I Add high occupancy vehicle lane to 
existing highway $32 million per mile 
Construct one interchange joining two 
hio-hwavs $310 million 
Purchase and install one modem traffic 
si~mal $150,000 
Rebuild quake-damaged freeway 

$32 million per mile 

Source: Laura Melendy and Elizabeth Deaki:n. Transportation Infrastrucf:tm: in the San Francisco 
Bay Area (Bay Area Defense Conversion Action Team, November 1995). 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

11 

PAGE23 



• 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 1-5 

Solano Annual 
Transportation Funding 

State Programs (STIP) 
$5,000,000 

Federal Programs 
$4,400,000 

Bridge Tolls 
(3% Transit Portion) 

$700,000 

Source: STA 

State Gas Tax 
$12,000,000 

(Does not include state discretionary funds) 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

12 

Transportation Development Act 
$8,400,000 

PAGE24 



• 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 1-6 

FUNDING SHORTFALLS 
(20 Year Cost Estimates) 

1-80 HOV Lane (1-680 to 

Sources: MTC and 
STA 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

Ferry/Bus Capital 

Rail Stations 
'-?<~n7 Interchange 

TOTAL SHORTFALL 
OF $717 MILLION 

13 

PAGE25 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SECTION 2 REVIEW OF SURVEY DATA 

In order to learn more about how Solano County residents feel about transportation and their 
priorities with respect to different transportation projects and programs, SEDCORP recently 
commissioned two separate public opinion surveys. A primary and a follow-up survey were 
conducted via telephone interviews. The surveys were designed to provide an extensive 
assessment of transportation issues, program and project priorities and reaction to various 
funding alternatives. 

The primary survey addressed 500 registered voters in Solano County. The sample was selected 
from individuals who voted in the 1996 general election. These voters were further categorized 
by their likelihood of voting in future elections based on their voting history during recent elections. 
The survey was designed to identify support for transportation programs and projects, develop 
a clear understanding as to the voters' relative priority for transportation as a problem and their 
level of support for specific types of solutions. The follow-up survey addressed a split sample of 
400 likely voters, testing 200 respondents separately on more detailed issues relating to funding 
alternatives 

Survey respondents were selected from voter registration rolls using a stratification method that 
provides a random selection of participants based on gender, party, age, zip code and household 
type. The 4.5 percent margin of error for the survey is based on the sample size and the relative 
population of the overall survey group to the county as a whole. 

The survey effort revealed a number of interesting facts. Overall, Solano County voters have a 
generally positive outlook on their personal economic situation. Consistent with attitudes 
expressed throughout the State, Solano voters tend to think that current trends are moving in the 
right direction with a higher degree of confidence at the local level than either the county level or 
the State level. 

Asked to gage the performance of local government, respondents gave high marks for providing 
police protection, maintaining local streets and roads and protecting the environment. 
Respondents had a balanced opinion of how local government is performing with respect to 
reducing traffic congestion, with an even proportion of voters responding to adequate and 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

14 

PAGE 26 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

inadequate performance levels. Voters clearly feel that the function which local government is 
performing least effectively is the spending of tax dollars efficiently. 

When asked about their top priorities, Solano voters indicated they were most interested in public 
schools, fire and police protection, public libraries and parks and recreation. Transportation 
ranked behind these other interests as an issue of importance to the respondents. Within the 
transportation category, voters were most supportive of providing commuter rail service and 
maintaining local streets and roads. 

When specific projects were tested, the top ten priorities were as follows: 
1. Fog reflector program 
2. Increased dial-a-ride service for elderly and disabled 
3. Expanded carpool and rideshare programs 
4. Commuter rail service to BART 
5. Synchronizing traffic signals 
6. Park-and-ride lots for commuters 
7. Expanding commuter express bus service to BART 
8. Building local commuter rail transit stations 
9. Median barrier on Route 12 (Rio Vista to Suisun City) 
10. Reliever Route between Vacaville and Cordelia 

Three additional regional projects, which are not included in the above list, ranked highly in 
individual communities. These additional projects, and the communities in which they are 
popular, are described below: 

1. 1-80/680 interchange improvements (Fairfield, Suisun City) 
2. Expanded ferry service (Benicia, Vallejo) 
3. Countywide bike route network (Dixon) 

In terms of conclusions, the survey results indicate that while there are transportation issues of 
concern to the public, the intensity of concern is not of an overriding nature at this time. 

With respect to project priorities, the public was obviously drawn to projects of a "regional" nature. 
Commuter rail service, express bus service and rideshare programs drew strong support, while 
specific road improvements and interchange projects in local jurisdictions were less popular. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

15 

PAGE 27 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Safety and maintenance projects also received a high level of support. Finally, governmental 
efficiency is foremost in the minds of the voters in terms of potential funding programs. As in 
other parts of the State, Solano voters are very concerned that they are getting the most for their 
existing tax dollars. Prior to supporting any new revenue initiatives, voters will have to be 
convinced that current tax revenues are being well spent. 

Clearly, an effective public education effort will be needed as part of the Transportation Plan 
implementation process to communicate the importance of transportation to the economy and to 
a continuing positive quality of life in Solano County. Moreover, the public needs to understand 
the long lead time necessary to develop transportation projects. It is not unusual for a project to 
take ten years from planning stage to completion of construction. This public education effort will 
be an important component of any successful strategy to implement the Transportation Plan. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

16 

PAGE 28 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SECTION 3 PLAN REVENUES 

Current sources of transportation revenues include: 

Bridge Tolls 
3% of the Regional Measure One bridge tolls for the Carquinez and Benicia-Martinez Bridges 
are made available each year for Solano transit projects that benefit these and other Bay area 
bridges. An additional 5% of the newly increased $1 bridge toll will be made available for Bay 
Area ferry services. 

Federal Programs 
The federal lntermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA) has been an 
excellent source of funding to Solano jurisdictions for maintenance of streets and roads, 
replacement of transit vehicles, park and ride lots and other transportation facilities. The program 
is expected to be reauthorized by Congress in 1998 with new funding authority. 

State Gas Tax 
State gas taxes are made available annually to each Solano jurisdiction for various street and 
roads projects. The gas taxes were increased in 1990 to fund the congestion management 
programs for each county. 

State Programs {STIP) 
The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) combined various state transportation 
programs in 1997 under S. B. 45. Funds from this program are available, for streets and 
highway, rail, transit and other local and regional transportation projects. Projects including 
Highway 37 and Highway 12 have been previously funded with state funds. The proposed 1998 
STIP includes $27.5 million for Solano projects including the Highway 29/37 interchange and the 
1-80 Reliever Route. MTC will also be programing Regional Improvement Programs for various 
regional projects benefiting Solano residents (i.e. Ridesharing, Translink, Transportation 
Enhancement Activities and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality state match). Also, State 
Highway Operation and Protection Program (SHOPP) funds and the new Interregional 
Improvement Program funds are also being proposed for various projects in Solano including 
Highway 12, 37/29 interchange, and median barriers on 1-780. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

17 

PAGE 29 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Transportation Development Act 
From 1/4 % of the State sales tax collected each year throughout Solano County jurisdictions, 
agencies can claim funds for various transit, paratransit and streets and road projects. This is the 
major source offunding for Solano transit operations. Also, 2% of these funds are set aside solely 
for bicycle and pedestrian projects. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

18 

PAGE30 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SECTION 4 PLAN PROJECTS 

The following section provides a brief description of programs and projects included in the Plan. 
The programs or projects are grouped into three separate categories: 

Group A - Programs or projects for which new local funds will be 
sought to help finance; 

Group B -programs or projects that are funded, but which have not 
been completed; and 

Group C- Programs or projects for which additional local, state and 
federal funding will be advocated 

The goal of STA and SEDCORP is to facilitate the prompt delivery of those projects in Group B 
while working to ensure that sufficient federal, state and local funding is obtained to allow 
implementation of the programs and projects in Groups A and C. 

Figures 4-1 through 4-3 show the location of projects that are included in Groups A through C, 
respectively. Additional details are provided for each of the Group A programs and projects 
included in Appendix A. 

Group A Programs and Projects 

The following programs and projects would be funded by a new local mechanism that is estimated 
to provide approximately $150 million over nine years. 

Local Road Maintenance 

Basic maintenance for the county's local streets and roads is provided by each of the eight 
responsible jurisdictions. Road maintenance is typically funded by two sources: a small share 
of state gas tax revenues returned to each jurisdiction and/or federal Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) funds. These funding levels have declined significantly, in real dollars, over the 
last twenty years and allow the jurisdictions to perform only a limited level of road maintenance. 
As an example, the Solano County Transportation Department is only able to resurface about 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

19 

PAGE 31 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

seven of the total 4 70 paved roadway miles they are responsible for each year based on current 
funding levels. 

The new local funding program would provide an estimated $3 million per year, or $27 million 
over nine years. With input from all its member agencies, the STA will develop a 20-year finance 
plan for the county's long-range road maintenance needs. 

Safety Project Implementation Plan 

An implementation plan would be prepared that would involve the evaluation and prioritization of 
safety projects on a countywide basis. The plan would give priority to cost-effective safety 
projects that could be implemented quickly. Candidate projects would include reflectors, 
centerline and edge line striping, safety-related intersection improvements, turn pockets, paved 
shoulders, median barriers, pedestrian facilities, etc. 

Safety Program 

The safety program would install a median barrier on Highway 12, centerline reflectors (fog 
reflectors), edge stripes on rural roads, and wider shoulders on selected local roads. The safety 
program would be funded at a total level of $11.5 million with the new local funding program. 

Commuter Rail Service and Stations 

Capital and operating funds would be provided to support the implementation of commuter rail 
service between Dixon and West Oakland. The total level of $58.5 million in new local funds 
would allow for two additional daily round trips specifically tailored to Solano commuters and 
associated local station improvements. 

Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 

Capital funds would be provided to assist in the synchronization of traffic signals along a few 
major corridors in Solano County under this program. Examples of candidate projects include 
Travis Boulevard in Fairfield, Leisure Town Road in Vacaville, Sunset Avenue in Suisun City, and 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

20 

PAGE 32 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Highway 113 (First Street) in Dixon. The synchronization program would be funded at an initial 
level of $0.5 million with the new local funding program. 

Park-and-ride Lot Security Program 

Capital funds would be provided to enhance lighting and security at the park-and-ride facilities 
along 1-80 and 1-680 to serve transit commuters. The park-and-ride lot security program would 
be funded at a total level of $0.5 million with the new local funding program. 

Commuter Express Bus Service 

Operating funds would be provided for enhanced commuter express bus service to San 
Francisco, BART and Sacramento. The Commuter Express Bus Service program would be 
funded at a total level of $3.2 million, or $350,000 per year, with the new local funding program. 

Traffic volumes at 1-80 have been increasing at an annual rate of about 2-3 percent and now 
constitute over 140,000 average daily trips on some segments through Solano County. Some 
segments of the two lane roadways comprising the 1-80 Reliever Route (i.e., Vanden 
Road/Peabody and Leisure Town Road) already have traffic levels that exceed their design 
capacities, as local residents use this route to avoid congestion on 1-80. Additional traffic growth 
is expected on 1-80 and consequently the 1-80 Reliever Route, even without any major new 
developments in Solano County. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

21 

PAGE33 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 4-1 

General Location of Solano Projects in Need of New Local Funds 

1. Local Road Maintenance 6. 1-80 Reliever Route 
2. Safety Projects 7. Improve Interchanges/Local 

Roads at Key Locations 
3. Commuter Rail Service and Stations 8. Enhanced Ferry Service 
4. Park and Ride Lots 9. Increase Dial-a-Ride Transit 

Services for Elderly/Handicapped 
5. Commuter Express Bus Service 10. Countywide Bike Routes 

SMITH & KEMPTON 
PAGE34 

22 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

The Solano Transportation Authority, through its Congestion Management Program 
(CMP), is committed to identifying the impacts and relationships between land use 
changes and transportation facility needs. The ST A regularly monitors the impacts 
of land uses through its countywide traffic model. In those situations where traffic 
demands exceed acceptable levels, the STA provides notification to local 
jurisdictions and assists in identifying appropriate mitigations through the CMP 
process. 

The STA will continue to work with each jurisdiction to monitor the traffic volumes 
on 1-80 and the 1-80 Reliever Route, including any future traffic that would be added 
by new development in the area. The ST A will emphasize consensus building 
processes and further outreach needed in communities along the project corridor 
to explore ways to address project implementation issues, such as land 
use/transportation relationships. 

Local Road and Interchange Improvement Program 

Capital funds would be provided to match new state and federal funds that are 
needed to make up the $121 million shortfall in funds needed for new local arterial 
and interchange projects. A total of $17.6 million, or approximately 15 percent of 
the shortfall, would come from the new local funding program. 

Ferry Service Program Enhancements 

Capital and operating funds would be provided for implementation of a new ferry 
boat that would link Benicia and Vallejo to San Francisco. A total of $18 million, 
which would allow for the purchase of one new ferry boat and an annual operating 
subsidy of $1 million, would be provided from the new local funding program. 

Dial-a-ride Service Enhancements for Elderly & Handicapped 

Operating funds would be provided for enhanced dial-a-ride service for elderly and 
handicapped residents of Solano County. The Enhanced Dial-a-ride program 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

23 

PAGE 35 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

would be funded at a total level of $2.7 million, or $300,000 per year, with the new 
local funding program. 

Countywide Bike Route Program 

Capital funds would be provided to match new state and federal funds that are 
needed to fund the $21.6 million Phase 1 Bikeway System in Solano County. A 
total of $1.5 million would come from the new local funding program. 

Group B Programs and Projects 

The following programs and projects are fully funded, but are not yet completed. 
Prompt delivery of these projects is a key goal of this transportation plan. 

New Benicia-Martinez Bridge 

The construction of a second parallel Benicia-Martinez Bridge is designed to 
provide congestion relief in the 1-680 corridor. The new bridge will include 
structural design provisions to accommodate one track for light rail transit. The 
project is funded by Regional Measure One bridge toll revenues. 

Carquinez Replacement Bridge 

The construction of a new replacement bridge is required because Caltrans has 
determined that it is not feasible to seismically retrofit the oldest of the two existing 
Carquinez bridges. This older structure was built in 1927. The new bridge will be 
located on the west side of the existing bridges. As with the new Benicia-Martinez 
Bridge, the new bridge will include structural design provisions to accommodate 
one track for light rail transit. The project is funded by Regional Measure One 
bridge toll revenues. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

24 
PAGE 36 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Intercity Transit Fare and Schedule Coordination 

This program involves the coordination of intercity transit fares and schedules 
among the various bus, rail and ferry service providers in the county. Current 
intercity transit service includes the Capitol Corridor intercity trains connecting 
Solano County with the Bay Area and Sacramento; ferry service linking Vallejo with 
San Francisco; and intercity bus routes providing service to East Bay BART 
stations, the Vallejo ferry terminal, U.C. Davis, and cities within Solano County. 

1-80 Reliever Route, Phase 1 a 

The objective of the 1-80 Reliever Route is to divert local trips between Vacaville, 
Fairfield, and Suisun City away from 1-80 by providing an attractive local alternative. 
Phase 1a improvements include an extension of Leisure Town Road to Vanden 
Road and Peabody RoadNanden Road intersection improvements. These projects 
are funded through the federal Surface Transportation Program {STP). 

Highway 37 in Vallejo 

The widening of Highway 37 from the Napa River Bridge to Highway 29 in the City 
of Vallejo is designed to provide congestion relief in this heavily traveled corridor. 
The project is funded through the State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP). 

Rail Station Improvements 

The construction of train station improvements at Dixon and Suisun/Fairfield are 
intended to provide increased access for Solano County residents to the Capitol 
Corridor passenger rail service, serving the 1-80 corridor from Roseville to San Jose 
with a local stop in Suisun City. The station improvements are funded through the 
state Transit Capital Improvement {TCI) program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

25 
PAGE37 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 4-2 
General Location of Solano Projects in Need of Additional 

Local, State and Federal Funds 

1. Highway 12 Safety Improvements 7. Ridesharing/Park and Ride Lots 
2. Highway 37/29 Interchange 8. Highway 113 Railroad Separation 
3. 5th and 6th Capitol Corridor Trains 9. Improvements to Local Roads 
4. 1-80/680 Interchange Improvements 10. Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements 
5. Transit Operating and Capital Shortfall 11. 1-80 HOV Lanes 
6. 1-80 Reliever Route Shortfall 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

26 PAGE38 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Road Maintenance 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has indicated that Solano 
County will experience a transportation maintenance shortfall of $229 million 
(escalated dollars) over the next 20 years. MTC's 1998 Regional Transportation 
Plan assumes that a substantial increase in transportation funding for maintenance 
will occur over the next 20 years to meet the established need of $1.18 billion 
dollars (escalated dollars). If these additional funds are not provided, the $229 
million shortfall will increase substantially. 

Primary Bike Route Segments 

This program involves the coordination of Solano County agencies in carrying out 
the task of obtaining funding and implementing the key gaps of the primary bike 
route in the county. The initial key projects include the Dixon-Davis Bike Path 
connecting downtown Dixon to the U.C. Davis campus and the Vallejo-Fairfield 
Bike Route connecting Columbus Parkway-Hidenbrooke Parkway-McGary Road
Red Top Road. 

Park-and-ride Lots. Phase 1 

The construction of the Phase 1 park-and-ride lots in Dixon, Fairfield, and Vacaville 
is an important element of the intercity transit plan to serve commuters along 1-80. 
Park-and-ride lots that are currently programmed include the Pitt School Road 
facility in Dixon, the Magellan facility in Fairfield, and the Red Top Road facility in 
Cordelia. Parking improvements are also being planned for the Vallejo Ferry 
Terminal. 

Group C Programs and Projects 

The following programs and projects are high priority elements of the transportation 
plan that require additional local, state, and/or federal funding before they can be 
implemented. Key actions for these programs and projects will involve funding 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

27 
PAGE 39 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

advocacy efforts as well as advancing their project readiness (i.e., completing 
environmental studies and design plans. 

Highway 12 Safety Improvements 

These safety improvements involve low-cost operational improvements such as the 
elimination of vertical curves, installation of left turn pockets, and extension of 
passing lanes. Funding for this project is being pursued through the State Highway 
Operation and Protection Program (SHOPP). 

Highway 37/29 Interchange 

The construction of a grade-separated interchange at the junction of Highways 37 
and 29 is identified as Phase 3 of the Highway 37 project in Vallejo. Funding for 
this project is currently being pursued through the State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) through a combination of the regional and inter
regional sources. 

1-80 High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lane Project 

The construction of new HOV lanes on 1-80 between 1-680 in Fairfield and 1-505 in 
Vacaville is a key element of a planned 75-mile HOV lane from the Bay Bridge to 
the Solano/Yolo County line. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), 
in their 1998 Regional Transportation Plan, assumes that the $158 million Track 1 
project will be funded through the regional and interregional elements of the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 

Capitol Corridor- 5th and 6th Trains 

The Capitol Corridor passenger rail service, which was implemented in 1991, 
currently provides four daily round trips. The funds for adding a 5th and 6th daily 
round trip on the corridor are included in Governor Wilson's initial state budget 
proposal for Fiscal Year 1998/99. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

28 
PAGE40 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

1-80/1-680 Interchange Improvements. Phase 1 

The Phase 1 project includes the construction of new auxiliary lanes and 
improvements to the existing connectors along a 1.4 mile section on 1-80 between 
Green Valley Road and the Cordelia Truck Weigh Station as well as new auxiliary 
lanes at the weigh station. The $6.9 million in funds required for the auxiliary lane 
project are being pursued through the State Transportation Improvement Program. 

Transit Operating and Capital Shortfall 

Transit programs are funded through a variety of sources, with the largest portion 
coming from the state Transportation Development Act (TDA) program. Additional 
funds are provided through a variety of smaller sources including FTA capital and 
operating programs, the 3 percent bridge toll funds, 1-80 mitigation funding, and air 
district grants. As with the road maintenance program, federal and state funding 
for transit programs have decreased substantially in recent years. The Solano 
Transportation Authority will continue to pursue discretionary federal and state 
funds that can be used to offset current transit shortfalls, which have resulted in the 
deferral of plans to increase transit service to county residents. Potential funding 
sources include the federal Congestion Management & Air Quality (CMAQ) 
program, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) capital program, Regional Measure 
One program, and air district grants. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

29 
PAGE 41 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Figure 4-3 
General Location of Solano Projects Already Funded, But 

Not Completed, Projects 

1. New Benicia-Martinez Bridge 6. Rail Station Improvements 
2. Carquinez Replacement Bridge 7. Road Maintenance 
3. Coordinate Intercity Transit Buses 8. Primary Bike Route Segment 
4. 1-80 Reliever Route 9. Park and Ride Lots 
5. Highway 37 in Vallejo 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

30 PAGE42 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

1-80 Reliever Route. Phase 1 

The Phase 1 Reliever Route project includes the widening of Walters Road {from 
Route 12 to Air Base Parkway), construction of the Walters Road Extension, 
widening of Cement Hill Road, realignment and widening of Vanden Road, 
widening of the Leisure Town Extension, widening of Leisure Town Road, and 
improvements to the 1-80/Leisure Town Road interchange. Approximately $12.7 
million in local funds have been identified for this project, resulting in a shortfall of 
$61.3 million. Potential funding sources include the State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) and federal earmarks. 

Park-and-ride Lots/Ridesharing 

A significant increase in the capacity of park-and-ride facilities will be required over 
the next 12 years to meet the intercity transit demand projected in Solano County. 
This includes an increase of 620 parking spaces in Vallejo, 400 parking spaces in 
Fairfield, 375 parking spaces in Vacaville, 30 parking spaces in the Vallejo/Benicia 
area, and 25 spaces at the 1-680 Toll Plaza. Potential funding sources include the 
federal Congestion Management & Air Quality (CMAQ) program, Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) capital program, Regional Measure One program, and air 
district grants. 

Highway 113 Railroad Grade Separation 

The construction of a grade separation at First Street and the Union Pacific 
Railroad in downtown Dixon is needed to eliminate the constraints to traffic and 
pedestrian flow that result from this at-grade crossing. Potential funding sources 
include federal earmarks and state railroad grade separation funds. 

Local Road Improvements 

Improvements to local arterials and interchanges are required to meet the long
term circulation and access needs of County residents. Approximately $30 million 
in local funds have been identified for these projects, resulting in a shortfall of $121 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

31 
PAGE 43 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

million. Potential funding sources are extremely limited, with the federal Surface 
Transportation Program (STP), federal earmarks, and state inter-regional STIP 
program as candidates. 

Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements 

The Solano Countywide Bicycle Plan identifies a Phase 1 Bikeway System to be 
implemented over the next 10 years. The $21.6 million program includes $18.4 
million in primary facilities and $3.2 million in secondary and interim facilities. 
Potential funding sources include federal Surface Transportation Program (STP}, 
the federal Congestion Management and Air Quality (CMAQ) and Transportation 
Enhhancement Activities (TEA) programs, state Transportation Development Act 
(TDA) Article Ill funds, and other smaller state grant programs. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

32 
PAGE 44 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SECTION 5 IMPLEMENTATION SCENARIOS 

As this document has clearly established, it is certain that Solano County will face 
numerous challenges in maintaining a high level of economic prosperity coupled 
with a unique and unmatched quality of life in the next millennium. Chief among 
these challenges is the need to sustain and expand a transportation system which 
will meet the demands of a burgeoning economy and will provide the necessary 
mobility for people and goods in one the Bay Area's fastest growing population 
centers. 

Solano County is truly caught at the crossroads of this transportation dilemma. 
Historically, the County has served as a bedroom community supporting a larger 
Bay Area economy, and much of the demand for transportation services has 
emanated form residents trying to get to and from jobs outside the County or from 
non-residents and commercial vehicles just passing through. However, over the 
past ten years, Solano County has joined its larger Bay Area counterparts as an 
attractive location for industrial and manufacturing investment. Further, as housing 
prices have soared in other parts of the region, the County has seen a comparable 
burst of new housing development with a concomitant increase in population. 
Resulting from this growth and economic development is an absolute need to 
sustain the existing transportation network and to lay the groundwork for expanding 
the system to accommodate future economic growth and a continuing quality of life. 

This Implementation Plan has highlighted the problems of increasing traffic 
congestion in Solano County and the impact of that congestion on economic vitality 
and quality of life. The Plan has also outlined the transportation improvements 
which are needed in order to avoid the gridlock and economic malaise that have 
afflicted other regions around the State. Finally, the Plan has clearly defined the 
funding shortfall which Solano County faces in trying to grapple with the increasing 
demand for transportation services. 

Now that we have defined the magnitude of the problem and have identified the 
needed solutions, how do we implement a strategy to accomplish those solutions? 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

33 

PAGE 45 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SEDCORP and the STA believe that a combination of actions will be required. 
These actions will require leadership on the part of elected officials and business 
executives in pursuing our objectives. 

SEDCORP and the STA have concluded that a four-pronged approach to the issue 
of maintaining mobility in Solano County will be required. In a recent "Call to 
Action," the Transportation Action Team, a subcommittee of SEDCORP, 
recommended that a broad coalition of community and business leaders be 
organized to accomplish the following: 

1. EDUCATE business and civic leaders and the general public about the 
importance of an effective transportation system to the economic well being of life 
in Solano County. 

2. SEEK new local funding to leverage all available financial sources so that the 
County can make strategic investments in future transportation projects which will 
return the greatest dividends to overall countywide and regional mobility. 

3. DELIVER already funded, but uncompleted, transportation projects in a timely 
and efficient manner. 

4. ADVOCATE for additional State and Federal funding to ensure a "fair-share" 
return to the County for the completion of planned projects. 

Educate 

This is a critical component of a comprehensive strategy to assure a high level of 
visibility in Solano County. While the public understands the general benefits of a 
good transportation network, the tie to continuing a healthy economy and 
maintaining an overall quality of life is not always so clear. This activity will involve 
an ongoing public education campaign to inform the county residents about the 
transportation problems facing us today and how those problems will be 
compounded in the future if no action is taken to deal with them in the near term. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

34 

PAGE46 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

STA and SEDCORP will take the lead in conducting the campaign through the use 
of media involvement, community forums, and presentations to business and civic 
groups. 

Seeking New Local Funding 

This activity represents the most difficult component of the proposed strategy. 
While there are a number of potential options for raising new money, all of them 
involve new fees or taxes. Fees and exactions can be focused directly on people 
and businesses benefitting from a particular improvement, but existing levies are 
already deemed to be oppressive by most businesspeople, homeowners and 
developers. It is also apparent that any new tax proposal in this political 
environment will be an extremely difficult sell. This fact is underscored by the 
public's documented concern regarding the ability of government to efficiently 
handle existing tax revenues. 

In spite of these concerns, however, new local funding would likely have to be 
derived from some sort of new surcharge or an increase in existing fees or taxes. 
Potential sources for new revenue include a countywide parcel tax, an increase in 
traffic impact fees or a vehicle registration surcharge. However, each of these 
possibilities will only produce limited revenue, and unless included as part of a 
package, would not produce sufficient revenue to make a significant contribution 
to meeting the County's needs. 

An increase in the local share of the excise tax on gasoline is another alternative 
which might be considered. Implementation of this alternative has already been 
authorized by the Legislature and would require a two-thirds vote of the people to 
accomplish. This option would also have to take into account recent Legislative 
authorization for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to implement a 
regional gas tax with approval of two-thirds of the voters in the nine Bay Area 
counties. Unfortunately, the amount of the cents per gallon increase required to 
produce a reasonable amount of new money would make approval by a 
supermajority of the voters unlikely. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

35 

PAGE 47 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Perhaps the most viable alternative for raising the kind of new local money which 
will be necessary to sustain a high level of mobility in the County is an increase in 
the local sales tax rate. In response to problems similar to those being experienced 
in Solano County, seventeen other counties around the State have implemented 
local transportation sales tax programs to serve their mobility needs. These 
counties represent more than 80 percent of the State's population, and the 
combined programs will raise nearly $23 billion over the respective time frames of 
these measures. 

These sales tax measures represent a substantial investment of local funding in the 
state's transportation infrastructure, literally half the money which as been spent in 
the last ten years. Without this commitment, our traffic congestion problems would 
be considerably worse. Five of the Bay Area's nine counties have implemented 
local sales tax programs, and these jurisdictions have reaped a substantial return 
on their investments in terms of new facility development and earlier project 
delivery. 

There is no question that Bay Area residents have shown a willingness to tax 
themselves for transportation improvements. However, current legal restrictions 
and a continuing lack of trust in government among voters creates a difficult 
environment in which to ask people to dig into their own pockets to support 
infrastructure maintenance and development. Nonetheless, this year's Bay Area 
Council survey showed transportation as the region's greatest concern, and recent 
polling in Solano County also demonstrated support for funding transportation 
solutions given the right mix of projects, an appropriate tax increment and a 
reasonable time frame in which to accomplish the job. 

Additional funding can only be part of an overall strategy, and it will not be easy to 
ask taxpayers for more money given the current political and legal environment. 
It is clear that we will have to demonstrate a pattern of efficiency and success in 
handling existing tax dollars before we ask the public to dig into their pockets to 
help finance our solutions. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

36 

PAGE 48 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Project Delivery 

This brings us to the second component of the action plan which is to deliver 
projects for which funding is already in place. Delivery, in the parlance of 
transportation professionals, means bringing a project to construction. 
Accomplishing that objective can include environmental clearance, preliminary and 
final engineering, right of way acquisition and obtaining a number of regulatory 
permits. These activities usually involve a significant expense and a good deal of 
time. Nevertheless, the timely completion of project work which is already 
budgeted should be an essential element of the task before us. 

In Section 4 of this Plan, we list the Solano projects which are funded but which 
have not been completed in "Group A." While completion of these projects will not 
solve our mobility concerns, it is clear that implementation of this work will have a 
positive effect on traffic congestion in Solano County. Moreover, our ability to 
deliver this work in a timely and efficient manner will enhance the image of local 
agencies charged with the responsibility of overseeing transportation development 
in the County. Establishing the credibility of these agencies in the eyes of the 
voters should improve our chances for possible revenue increases in the future. 

Accomplishing this work will be no mean task. The effort will involve working with 
Caltrans, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, the Capitol Corridors Joint 
Powers Board and a host of regulatory agencies to move these jobs through the 
delivery pipeline. Intense coordination and constant follow up will be necessary to 
ensure that this job gets done. While administrative remedies must be exhausted 
first, it may be necessary from time to time to enlist the support of elected officials 
and private industry in applying appropriate political pressure to achieve our goals. 
The Solano Transportation Authority will play a key role in carrying this task to 
completion. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

37 

PAGE 49 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Advocacy Efforts 

The final element of our implementation strategy is to obtain as much money as 
possible from existing transportation funding sources. The focus of this effort will 
be directed at the traditional State and Federal sources, but given the trend in 
transportation financing, we should be looking to the regional and local levels of 
government as well. 

Under the provisions of Senate Bill 45, new legislation at the State level which 
redefines the process for allocating California's State and Federal transportation 
resources, programming decisions for the bulk of available money will now be 
made at the regional level. The State Transportation Improvement Program 
continues as the primary programming document and, as in the past, will be 
updated every two years. The STIP will commit all resources expected to be 
available over a four-year period, but regional planning agencies will play a much 
bigger role in determining how the dollars are spent. 

For Solano County, this means that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
will be approving the allocation of 75 percent of the money available to the State 
for capital infrastructure work. The remaining 25 percent of the dollars will be 
programmed by the State Transportation Commission after input from Caltrans and 
the regional planning agencies. 

The new legislation also establishes so-called "county shares," which are derived 
from a formula based on population and lane miles in each county. Like all other 
counties, Solano County will receive a specific allocation amount and will decide, 
subject to MTC approval, which projects are to be funded with the dollars available. 

As part of our overall strategy, Solano County must be prepared to act quickly and 
effectively in the appropriate arenas at all levels of government. The County has 
a proven track record in terms of active involvement at the regional level, and 
Mayor Jim Spering of Suisun City is currently serving as Chair of the MTC. 
However, elected and business leaders will have to commit themselves to support 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

38 

PAGE 50 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

advocacy efforts at the State and Federal levels as well. As Congress begins to 
address reauthorizing legislation for the transportation program, Solano officials 
need to work closely with our Congressional delegation, MTC and State 
government to ensure a "fair share" return of Federal revenue to California, and 
ultimately, to Solano County. 

The role of staff will be very important in this endeavor. Local transportation 
officials will need to work together to develop a unified strategy for obtaining a 
maximum amount of revenue for the County, and use the offices of elected 
representatives and business leaders as appropriate. Policymakers can make the 
programming decisions, but will need to rely on strong staff support in terms of 
program expertise and strategic planning to leverage the highest return of regional, 
State and Federal financing. 

Summary 

These are the tasks before us. It is necessary that business, community and 
governmental leaders come together and commit themselves to a course of action 
which will remind Solano County residents of the importance of a viable 
transportation system, and the undeniable nexus between infrastructure investment 
and continued economic vitality. Without an effective and efficient transportation 
system, a healthy economy and an attractive quality of life cannot be sustained. 
The time is now and inaction is an unacceptable alternative. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

39 

PAGE 51 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

APPENDIX 

SAFETY PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

1. DESCRIPTION: Prepare an implementation plan that evaluates and 
prioritizes safety projects on a countywide basis. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority 

3. PROJECT NEED: The implementation plan is needed to provide a 
comprehensive list of prioritized safety improvements throughout Solano County. 

This plan will focus attention on critical safety needs and assist in allocating future 
local, state, and federal funding resources. 

4. TOTAL COST: $0.05 million 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The safety project implementation plan would be funded 
at a total level of $0.05 million with the new local funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-1 

PAGE 52 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

LOCAL ROAD MAINTENANCE 

1. DESCRIPTION: Operating funds would be provided for local street and 
road maintenance. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano County, Benicia, Dixon, Fairfield, Suisun City, Rio 
Vista, Vacaville, Vallejo 

3. PROJECT NEED: Basic maintenance for the county's local streets and 
roads is provided by each of the eight responsible jurisdictions. Road maintenance 
is typically funded by two sources: a small share of state gas tax revenues returned 
to each jurisdiction and/or federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds. 
These funding levels have declined significantly, in real dollars, over the last twenty 
years and allow the jurisdictions to perform only a limited level of road 
maintenance. As an example, the Solano County Transportation Department is 
only able to resurface about seven of the total 4 70 paved roadway miles they are 
responsible for each year based on current funding levels. 

4. TOTAL COST: $1.1 billion over 20 years. 

5. LOCAL SHARE: 
The new local funding 
program would provide 
an estimated $3 million 
per year, or $27 million 
over nine years. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-2 

PAGE 53 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

SAFETY PROGRAM 

1. DESCRIPTION: The safety program would install a median barrier on 
Highway 12, fog reflectors on rural roads, and wider shoulders on selected local 
roads. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Caltrans, Solano Transportation Authority, Solano County 

3. PROJECT NEED: The Highway 12 Median Barrier is needed to improve 
the safety of driving on State Route 12 between Suisun City and Rio Vista, where 
numerous serious accidents have occurred over the past 10 years. The installation 
of fog reflectors is needed to improve driving conditions during foggy, winter 
weather in rural areas where street lighting is not available. The installation of 
wider shoulders on selected local roads is needed to allow for emergency 
maneuvering, the temporary storage of disabled vehicles, and the temporary 
storage of maintenance vehicles. 

4. TOTAL COST: $11.5 million 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The safety program would be funded at a total level of 
$11.5 million with the new local funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-3 

PAGE 54 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

COMMUTER RAIL SERVICE AND STATIONS 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital and operating funds would be provided to support 
the implementation of commuter rail service between Dixon and West Oakland. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority, Capitol Corridor Joint 
Powers Agency 

3. PROJECT NEED: The continued development of passenger rail 
service on the Capitol Corridor is important given the limited ability to expand the 
capacity of 1-80 for vehicular travel. Two additional round trips are expected to 
commence on the intercity service along the corridor in the latter half of 1998. This 
project would supplement the intercity rail service along the corridor by providing 
additional trains specifically targeted at Solano County commuters traveling to work 
destinations in the Bay Area. 

4. TOTAL COST: $58.5 million in local capital and operating funds, 
approximately $2.1 million in estimated farebox revenue (e.g., based on 35% 
farebox return), and approximately $22.5 million in matching state and federal 
capital funds. 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The total 
level of $58.5 million in new local 
funds would allow for two daily round 
trips in this corridor. This includes 
$22.5 million for commuter rail station 
improvements and equipment as well 
as $4 million in annual operating 
subsidies. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-4 

PAGE 55 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYNCHRONIZATION PROGRAM 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital funds would be provided to assist in the 
synchronization of traffic signals along a few major corridors in Solano County 
under this program. Examples of candidate projects include Travis Boulevard in 
Fairfield, Leisure Town Road in Vacaville, Sunset Avenue in Suisun City, and 
Highway 113 (First Street) in Dixon. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: The synchronization of traffic signals results in 
both increased traffic flows as well as energy savings by reducing idling that 
results from unnecessary stops. 

4. TOTAL COST: $0.5 to 2.0 million 

5. LOCAL SHARE: 
The synchronization 
program would be funded 
at a total level of $0.5 
million with the new local 
funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-5 

PAGE 56 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

PARK-AND-RIDE LOT SECURITY PROGRAM 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital funds would be provided to enhance lighting 
and security at the park-and-ride facilities along 1-80 and 1-680 to serve transit 
commuters. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: The provision of enhanced lighting and security 
is a necessary component of the overall transit program that is designed to 
encourage the increased use of rail, ferry and express bus service by Solano 
County commuters. 

4. TOTAL COST: $0.5 million in local capital funds and approximately 
$0.5 million in matching state and federal funds. 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The park-and-ride lot security program would be 
funded at a total level of $0.5 million with the new local funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-6 

PAGE 57 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

COMMUTER EXPRESS BUS SERVICE 

1. DESCRIPTION: Operating funds would be provided for enhanced 
commuter express bus service to San Francisco, BART and Sacramento. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: The continued development of express bus 
service for Solano County residents is important given the limited ability to 
expand the capacity of 1-80 for vehicular travel. This project would supplement 
existing commuter bus service that provide connections to BART stations, the 
Vallejo Ferry, U.C. Davis, and employment centers within Solano County. 

4. TOTAL COST: $3.2 million in local operating funds and approximately 
$800,000 in estimated farebox revenue (e.g., based on 20% farebox return) 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The Commuter Express Bus Service program would be 
funded at a total level of $3.2 million, or $350,000 per year, with the new local 
funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-7 

PAGE 58 



• 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

I-80 RELIEVER ROUTE, PHASE 1 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital funds would be provided to match new state and 
federal funds that are needed to make up the $61.3 million shortfall in the Phase 
1 1-80 Reliever Route project. The Phase 1 Reliever Route project includes the 
widening of Walters Road (from Route 12 to Air Base Parkway), construction of the 
Walters Road Extension, widening of Cement Hill Road, realignment and widening 
of Vanden Road, widening of the Leisure Town Extension, widening of Leisure 
Town Road, and improvements to the 1-80/Leisure Town Road interchange. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority, Solano County, City of 
Fairfield, City of Vacaville 

3. PROJECT NEED: The objective of the 1-80 Reliever Route is to divert 
local trips between Vacaville, Fairfield, and Suisun City away from 1-80 by providing 
an attractive local alternative. This is necessary due to the current and future 
congestion levels projected for Interstate 80 through Solano County. 

4. TOTAL COST: $7 4 million 

5. LOCAL SHARE: A total of $10 million, or approximately 16 percent of the 
$64 million project shortfall, would come from the new local funding program. 

/'. . If 

i F 

~~w""/,/ 
JA 

,,_,!~//a 
< i! 

,./f-. ·-~ 
,/'/ +.;::t' -- rms'%~"¥f 1.:. :-~---·-·-·-·-·-···.·.······ 

=~~'''''''·>~~, .. ~·''\t;.... fi~d:m~ t::~r:r 
.-/""''' "%·' 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-8 

PAGE 59 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

LOCAL ROAD AND INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital funds would be provided to match new state 
and federal funds that are needed to make up the $121 million shortfall in funds 
needed for new local arterial and interchange projects. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: Local arterial and interchange improvements are 
needed to maintain the current level of circulation and access provided to local 
businesses and residents in Solano County. 

4. TOTAL COST: $151 million 

5. LOCAL SHARE: A total of $17.6 million, or approximately 15 percent of 
the $121 million shortfall, would come from the new local funding program. 

SMITH 

A-9 

PAGE 60 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

FERRY SERVICE PROGRAM ENHANCEMENTS 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital and operating funds would be provided for 
implementation of a new ferry boat that would link Benicia and Vallejo to San 
Francisco. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/City of Vallejo/City of 
Benicia 

3. PROJECT NEED: The continued development of ferry service for 
Solano County residents is important given the limited ability to expand the 
capacity of 1-80 for vehicular travel. The project would supplement the existing 
ferry service by allowing for the purchase of an additional ferryboat and 
providing operating and maintenance funds for additional service. 

4. TOTAL COST: $9.0 million in capital funds to purchase one additional 
ferry, $9.0 million in local operating funds and approximately $2.25 million in 
estimated farebox revenue (e.g., based on 20% farebox return) 

5. LOCAL SHARE: A total 
of $18 million, which would allow 
for the purchase of one new ferry · 
boat and an annual operating 
subsidy of $1 million, would be 
provided from the new local 
funding program. 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-10 

PAGE 61 



• 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

DIAL-A-RIDE SERVICE ENHANCEMENTS FOR ELDERLY & HANDICAPPED 

1. DESCRIPTION: Operating funds would be provided for enhanced dial-a-
ride service for elderly and handicapped residents of Solano County. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: Increased dial-a-ride service is necessary to serve the 
increasing population of elderly and handicapped residents in Solano County. 

4. TOTAL COST: $2.7 million in local operating funds and approximately 
$300,000 in estimated farebox revenue (e.g., based on 10% farebox return) 

5. LOCAL SHARE: The Enhanced Dial-a-ride program would be funded at a 
total level of $2.7 million, or $300,000 per year, with the new local funding program. 

VALLEJO/BENICIA , 

RuNABOUT 

SMITH & KEMPTON 

A-11 

PAGE62 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

COUNTYWIDE BIKE ROUTE PROGRAM 

1. DESCRIPTION: Capital funds would be provided to match new state and 
federal funds that are needed to fund the $21.6 million Phase 1 Bikeway System 
in Solano County. 

2. LEAD AGENCY: Solano Transportation Authority/member agencies 

3. PROJECT NEED: The development of a regional bikeway system, as 
an important element of the overall transportation system, would provide for a 
viable alternative form of transportation that would result in both reduced vehicular 
congestion and improved air quality. Research conducted by the U.S. Department 
of Transportation indicates a definitive link between bicycle use and (a) age and (b) 
the miles of bicycle facilities provided, according to the Solano Countywide Bicycle 
Plan (January 25, 1995). 

4. TOTAL COST: $21.6 million for Phase 1 Bikeway System 

5. LOCAL SHARE: A total of $1.5 million would come from the new local 
funding program. 

A-12 

PAGE63 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

March31, 1998 
STABoard 

s1ra 
Chairman Don Erickson 
SEDCORP Transportation Action Team 

April 8, 1998 
Agenda Item 3.2 

Over a year ago, the STA requested the Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP) 
to assist us in identifying key regional transportation issues and projects that must be addressed in 
order to promote long-term economic vitality and high quality oflife in Solano County. 

SEDCORP responded by recruiting the individuals listed below to work with Board members 
Lessler and Spering, and our staff on an action plan to promote mobility projects in the next 5-l 0 
years. Their work is sunnnarized in the Solano Transportation Plan - Final Draft (agenda item 3.1 ). 

Gary Andrews, Amos and Andrews 
John Ash, Benicia Industrial Park 
Jeff Brown, Herman Goelitz Candy Company 
Mike Burns, Genentech, Inc. 
Tom Chowaniec, General Mills 
Gary Falati, Falati & Associates 
Frank Friedman, Lucky Stores 
Mary McCarthy, SEDCORP 
Bob Moody, Herman Goelitz Candy Company 
Bill Wourms, ALZA Corp. 

The partnership between the ST A and SEDCORP has not only produced a fresh, dynamic 
transportation plan for Solano, but it has also aided our recent advocacy efforts for state and federal 
funding. 

Despite our recent successes, the bulk of the challenge to maintain mobility in our county obviously 
remains. We should salute the members of the SEDCORP/STA partnership on their plan, and 
pledge to continue working together to develop creative solutions to resolve our transportation 
dilemma. 

PAGE65 



333 Sunset Avenue. Su~e 200 
Suisun Cl1y, Calffornla 94585 

Area Code 707 
422-6491 • Fax 438-Q656 

April 8, 1998 
Agenda Item 4. 0 

Members: 

Benicia 

Dixon 

Fairfield 

Rio Vista 

Solano County 

Suoun City 

Vacaville 

Vallejo 

Martin Tuttle 
Executive Director 

DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM 

March 31, 1998 
STABoard ~ 
Manin Tuttle fV\-""\ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

The following is a brief status report on some of the major issues and projects currently 
being advanced by the STA. An asterisk(*) notes items included on this month's Board 
agenda. 

*Budget: Staff proposes a 5% increase in the general operations budget for fiscal year 1998-
99 to cover a proposed 3% COLA for employees and increase cost of services and supplies 
in agenda item 9.1. 

*Office lease: Staff proposes a one-year extension of the current STA office lease with The 
Wiseman Company in agenda item 7.7. 

*SolanoLinks: Chairman Erickson announced the SolanoLinks program was selected as co
winner of the Transit Management Project of the Year (TRANNY Award) by the California 
Transportation Foundation on March 25. The awards dinner is scheduled for May 6 in 
Sacramento. Alan Nadritch, the new Consortium chair, will preview the new four minute 
marketing video in agenda item 10.2. Attached is a joint letter of support for the STA's 
federal bus purchase grant request signed by Representatives Fazio, Riggs and Miller. 

*Solano Transportation Plan: Several presentations on the draft plan were given to 
community groups, including the League of Women Voters, Solano Mayors Conference and 
local chambers of commerce. The final draft is included in agenda item 3 .1. 

1998 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP): Chairman Erickson, Vallejo 
Mayor Gloria Exline and SEDCORP President Mary McCarthy are scheduled to speak in 
support of the STA's bid for state discretionary funds for the Highway 37/29 interchange and 
I-80/680 interchange projects at the California Transportation Commission (CTC) meeting on 
April 1 in San Francisco. The CTC must adopt the new state program (STIP) at their June 2/3 
meeting (see attached letter concerning the history of the Highway 37 project from former 
Vallejo Mayor Terry Curtola). 

PAGE 67 



Executive Director's Report. page two 

Federal Funds: Congressman Frank Riggs announced that $7.4 million for the I-80 Reliever Route 
project was added to the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) extension bill 
approved by the House Transportation Committee on March 24. The bill also includes $1 million 
for Vallejo's Wilson Avenue project. The measure still needs to be passed by the full House of 
Representatives and clear a House/Senate conference committee before being sent to the President 
for signature (see attached memo from MTC's Steve Heminger). 

Upcoming events 

April IS 
April16 
April16 

April22 
April24 
April29 
April29 
May6 
May6/7 
May13 

Attachments 

Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board in Suisun City 
Good Morning Vallejo (plan presentation) in Vallejo 
Joint subcommittee of the STA and Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
in Benicia 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission meeting in Oakland 
Bay Area CMA Association in San Francisco 
SolanoLinks Intercity Transit Consortium in Suisun City 
STA TAC meeting in Suisun City 
California Transportation Foundation TRANNY Banquet in Sacramento 
California Transportation Commission in Sacramento 
STA Board meeting in Suisun City 

Priority project status report 
Key correspondence and news articles 

PAGE68 



Revised 03/3!198 

STA Project Development Fund 
1997-98 Priority Projects- Status Report 

(listed in alohabetical order) 
Allotted Claimed 

Project PDF Matching PDF Statos 
Lead Agencv Funds Funds Fonds 

Benicia-Martinez and Carquinez Bridge Projects $8,000 • $0 -CTC approved $17.3 million supplement for Light 
Benicia, Caltrans, STA, Vallejo Rail and the bridge relocation 9/97 

-Gmundbreak.ing scheduled for this summer for 

vradinll at southern annroach 
Capitol Corridor $5,000 • $1,400 -Transfer agreement pending 

CCJPB, STA -Negotiations ongoing with landowner for parking 

inmrovements at Fairfield/Suisun 
Dixon Railroad Grade Separation * * • -Secure additional :fimdingneeded to complete 

Dixon oroiect did not receive a federal earmark 
Federal Lobbyist $22,500 • $0 -Seeking Reliever Route and bus purchase earmarks 

STA 

Ferry Feasibility Study $2,000 $12,000 $0 -STA Board approved funding on 8/97 

Benicia 

Highway 12 Improvements $10,000 ' $0 -Construction to extend 4 passing lanes scheduled to 

Caltrans, Rio Vista, ST A, Suisun City start in the year 2000 

-Caltrans proposing shoulder widening and vertical 

curve o:.:orrections for 1998 SHOPP 
Highway 37 Project ' ' • -Final EIS expected to be completed 7/98 

Caltrans, ST A, Vallejo -Highway 29/37 interchange proposed for 1998 STIP 

by Cahrans for the ITIP 

1~80/1-505 Weave Correction • • • -Vacaville pursuing interim project with local funds 

Caltrans Vacaville 

1-80/680 Auxiliary Lanes • ' • -Proposed by Caltrans for the ITIP 

Caltrans ST A 

1-80 Reliever Route Implementation Plan • • • ~Seeking federal eannark, proposed for 1998 STIP ftmdi 

STA -ST A Board aooroved Final renort on 5/97 

Intercity Transit Plan ** $5,000 $170,000 $2,665 -3rd worldng paper presented to Consortium on 3/25 

STA -Video and intePTated schedule in fmal nrodu~,.tion 

MisceUaneous Project Development **"' $47,500 • • -For assistance in completing grant applications and 

leveratrine fimds for oroiect develooment 

Mare Island Access Study $10,000 • $0 -Vallejo is seeking local match for the federally 

Valle-io financed ,!,1Udv to improve access to Mare Island 

Solano Bike Route Plan $10,000 $2,400 $9,813 -Commenced work on bicycle map and completed 

STA fimding apps. for EEMP, OTS and YSAQMD grants 

-Have reouested soonsors for BikeLinks man 

Solano Transportation Plan $30,000 $25,000 $25,000 -Final Draft to be presented at April 8 meeting 

STA 

Vacaville CNG Facility • • • -Design pro1,.-ess initiated 

Vacaville -Funds transfered to FT A 

TOTAL $150 000 $209 400 $38 878 

• No fi.md<> allotted at this time $359 400 

Total cost ofthe Intercity Transit Plan Marketing and Planning services Utrough February 28 is $93,260 

Initially budgeted at $30,000. In October, Board approved additional $50,000 in PDF fimds for this FY. 

fn July, Board approved $5,000 to increase the Bike Route Plan budget to $10,000. 

In October, Board approved $5,000 to increase the Capitol Corridor budget to $5,000. 

In February, Board approved $22,500 for contract with a federal lobbyist 

PAGE69 



j) ~; ly ~~~/, ~ 
-s- ;;..r -fir 

SolanoLinks gets ''franny' award 
SUISUN CITY - The nonprofit California 

Transportation Foundation last week gave Solano
Links a "Tranny" award for the transit manage-· 
ment category. · • · ·· 

SolanoLinks, created by the Solano Transporta- · 
tion Authority, pulls together the county's seven 
transit operators under one umbrella with a single 
800 information phone number. · 

Also, the group has distributed 35,000 copies of 
. a full-color intercity transit map, showing all local 
.transit connections to the Bay Area and Sacramen-
to, and ~Jished a Web site. · 

PAGE 70 



03/27/98 17:34 

<tongress of tbe Wniteb ~tates . 

The Honorable Frank Wolf 
Chairman 

Jlitoussr of 1\rpresrntattbrs 
•a.(!Jington~ :m~ 20515 

March 46, 1998 

Subcommittee on Transportation Appropriations 
2358 Rayburn 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

We are writing to request your support for the new bus requirements of the 
Solano Links IntercitY Transit Consortium. For FY 99, the Consortium is seeking $2.7 
million for new bus purchases. 

The SolanoLinks Intercity Transit Consortium comprises the major transit 
operators in Solano County, which includes significant portions of each of our 
congressional districts. The transit operators involved are Benicia Transit, Fairfield
Suisun Transit, Vacaville City Coach and Vallejo Transit. The Consortium was formed 
to promote intercity transit links to various Bay Area, Yolo and Sacramento regional 
transit systems including BART, the BayLink Ferty, Capitol Corridor train service and 
links to Sacramento Airport and downtown Sacramento. 

The major goal of the Consortium is to more than double Solano County's daily 
transit ridership, particularly in the I-80 corridor, by the year 2010. In order to achieve 
this goal, however, the Consortium will need to purchase new buses. For FY 99, the 
Consortium projects a need for six new buses. Therefore, the Consortium is requesting . 
$2.7 million in the FY 99 Transportation Appropriation~ bill for the purchase of six new 
commuter buses. A fact sheet containing additional information about this request is 
attached for your reference. 

Each of us strongly supports this appropriations request. We also deeply 
appreciate your past and continuing support for the transportation priorities of Solano 
County. Thank you for your attention to this request. Please let us know if you need any 
additional information concerning this project. 

Sincerely, 

PAGE 71 
PAINTED ON AECYClliO PAPER 

141002 



03/27/98 17:34 

Congressional 
Districts 

1,3,7 

Background 

@003 

Solano Transportation Authority 

Section 3 Bus Discretionary Program 

FY 1999 Request 

Federal Funding 
Operators 

Benicia Transit 
Fairfield-Suisun Transit 
Vacaville City Coach 
Vallejo Transit 

Description Request 

Purchase six (6) over-the- $2,700,000 
road buses to operate via the new 
Interstate 80 HOV lane between 
the cities in Solano County to 
BART and San Francisco 

Through the new SolanoLinks Intercity Transit Consortium, the major transit operators in Solano County are 
commited to increasing intercity transit services along the I-80 high growth corridor as proposed in the 1996 MTC 
I-80 Corridor Study and 1995 Solano Intercity Transit Concept Plan. These plans promoted subtantial increases 
in express bus services through Solano County, particularly across the Carquinez Bridge to the East Bay, and San 

Francisco. · 

In .response to these plans, the Consortium was formed in the fall of 1997 to coordinate and promote intercity transit 
links connecting to various Bay Area, Yolo, and Sacramento regional transit systems including BART, the BayLink 
Ferry, Capitol Corridor train service and also express bus services to Sacramento Airport and downtown 
Sacramento. This new transit organization consists of members from the cities of BeniCia, Dixon, Fairfield, Rio 
Vista, Solano County, Suisun City, Vacaville, and Vallejo, and is officially recognized and staffed by the Solano 
Transportation Authority. Some of the recent efforts of the group has included the development of35,000 copies 
of a full cOlor Intercity Transit Map and an "Integrated Schedule" displaying all Solano intercity routes and 
schedules. 

The Consortium goal is to increase daily ridership, particularly along the I-80 Corridor, from 4.5 % in 1997 to at 
least 11% or 11,000 passenger trips a day by the year 2010~ However, to achieve this goal at least six additional high 
occupancy buses (i.e. 40-60 seat buses) will be needed each year to meeting the growing demand of about 600+ 
new daily passenger trips each year, along this key commute corridor. 

PAGE72 



+ 
Sutter Solano 
Medical Center 
Foundation 

March 27, 1998 

Robert A. Wolf 
Chairman 

A Sutter/CHS 
Affiliate 

California Transportation Commission 
1120 N Street (MS-52) 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

Dear Mr. Wolf: 

300 HospHa! Drive 
Va!lejo 
California 94589 

Telephone 
(707) 554-5095 

I realize that you and the commission have been lobbied endlessly 
in support of funding for the Highway 37 & 29 Interchange in 
Vallejo. I also understand that this support has come from elected 
officials in the area, business people, labor leaders, 
transportation agencies and regular citizens that use this highway. 
My letter is also in support of securing the funding, but from 
another angle. 

I was elected to the Vallejo City Council in 1969 and then elected 
Mayor in 1.979. I served thru 1987 and then,because of term limits, 
retired from public office, but continued to stay involved in the 
community I was born. 

Mr. Wolf, this letter will attempt to provide you with a history of 
a project that has been needed, supported and approved for over 40 
years, but never had the funding finalized. Naturally, that figure 
continued to escalate over the years and will continue that trend, 
if the dollars are not secured now and construction commenced. 

Now the history thru my eyes. In 1968 Highway 37 improvements were 
the top priority of all highway projects in Northern California,it 
was supported by two very influential State Senators, Luther Gibson 
from Solano and Randy Collier from Sonoma and was a cooperative 
effort of all of the Solano, Napa and Sonoma Counties governing 
bodies. When I was elected as a councilman, (the youngest in the 
state at that time)in 1968, these two Senators, both now deceased, 
sat me down and informed me that no matter what happened down the 
road, this project was the key to a stable economic enviroment for 
Northern California. It was the only linkage between the Coast and 
the Valley; it was the only way commerce and the public could 
traverse this area in order to serve their needs and wants. They 
foresaw the eventural growth in the region and concluded that if 
this connector was not completed, we would create pockets of 
population that would lead to gridlock and inconvenience for the 
area. They asked me to insist and support that this linkage be 
completed. For over 20 years as a locally elected official, I 
fulfilled their request, but could not ever finalize the ~~~~ 
source. As this part of the State played out the Senators ~Bd~ 
other more immediate transit needs arose and even though Highway 37 



stayed as the #1 priority, the funding went elsewhere. I was a 
Charter Member of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in 
1969, serving with people like Joe Bart, Bill Lucius and Ralph 
Trower, I was able to keep it #1, the Solano County Transportation 
Authority has it #1, the Solano County Mayors Council has it #1; 
over the years we have had the strong endorsement of Senators 
Gibson,Collier, John Dunlap, Jim Nielsen,Barry Keene and now Mike 
Thompsbn; Assemblymembers Mike Gage, Don Sebastiani,Tom Hannigan 
and· presently Valerie Brown; Vallejo Mayors have supported and 
fought for this project since 1957, including former Mayors Will 
Hewitt,Florence Douglas, myself, Tony Intintoli and now Gloria 
Exline. To complete this circle, even the present MTC Board under 
the Chair of Mayor Jim Spering of Suisun City (Solano County) has 
kept it the #1 priority. However, with this strong support and 
proven need, the funding has remained elusive. 

Constantly, over these many years of study, design, research, and 
impact statements the same group of no growther's, have kept the 
final funding delayed and therefore un-committed. These years have 
kept our city from reaching its economic potential and the closing 
of Mare Island in 1996 was the final nail. In the past, with the· 
help of your Commission, MTC, the Legislature we were able to 
accomplish different phases of the overall project. During my 
terms, 20 years ago, we were able to complete phase 1, the I-80/37 
Overpass and the stretch from I-80 to Mini Dr, past the New Marine 
World Theme Park. Mayor Intintoli between 1987-95 was able to get 
phases 3 & 4 approved, now the phase that connects all of this 
effort , the 37/29 Freeway Interchange, is in the 1998 STIP and in 
front of your Commission. After 40 years of being involved with 
some of the greatest people in the State, I realize it is now time 
to beg that this project reaches completion. I also realize that I 
am not the youngest councilman any longer and even with the secured 
funds, the completion will go into the next century. What I do know 
is this city, the home of the first State Capitol of California, in 
order to prosper and revitalize itself must have the assurance that 
100% of the funding for this project, will be kept on the list and 
allowed to complete what should have been done in 1957. 

Mr. Wolf, I can promise you that t-his will be the last letter I 
write on this project, because sometimes you must say enough is 
enough, but as long as it took you to read, I can guarantee it was 
a lot longer to live thru. You have my most sincere appreciation 
for accepting my letter and hopefully giving it the consideration 
and approval it so rightfully deserves. 

Respectfully, 

J-k~ 6~'-/_::~ 
·Terry cti'rtola, Jr , .J \ 

cf: ' Robert Remen, CTC Executive Director 

PAGE 74 



To: Martin Tuttle From: MTC, E. Gr!ffln/L. Walls 03/16/98 !1:11am PST pg 1 of 4 
28-MAR-SB 11:15 FROM:MTC 

e 
Memorandum 

TO: Interested Parties 

FR: Steve Heminger 

RE: ISTEA Reauthorization Update 

10•510 484 7782 

METROI'OLITAN 

"''R.:ANSJ!O R.T A. TION 

COM~USSION 

PAGE 

Jo~ P. Bon MelMC~«!t 
101 Eighth Street 

Onkhad,. CA 94607-4700 

Td.~ 510.464.7700 

TJlDfiTY: 1!0.464.7760 

;Fmc: 510,464, 7iJ48 

DATE: March 26, 1998 

On March 24, the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee unanimously 
approved its ISTEA reauthorization vehicle, the Building Efficient Surface 
Transportation and Equity Act (BESTEA) of 1998. The full House is expected to 
complete action on the bill (HR 2400) before the Easter recess begins on April2. With 
the Senate already having completed action on its own bill (S 1173), the target is for a 
House-Senate conference committee to reconcile the two bills aft<:>r the Easter recess 
(which ends April20) but before the May-1 expiration of the stop-gap ISTEA extension 
bill passed last year. The timetable is obviously tight. · 

LU<e tne ::.enate om, o.~:::.1 J:fl. essenoally preserves I~TJ'!~ 's be.,k J.lrl.lt:;ran • ~l.nH :t "rr: ~~ or.l 
provides a 40% increase in funding levels to $218 billion over the six-year period FY 
1998-2003. Unlike the Senate bill, BESTEA includes some $9.3 billion in highway 
demonstration projects (including 29 in the Bay Area) and also lists 167 rail projects and 
146 bus projects as authorized for future transit funding (several Bay Area projects also 
made the transit list). Although we are still analyzing the committee bill, it appears that 
BESTEA continues the past practice of funding the highway demonstration projects 
outside the obligation limit placed on formula .funding, which is at odds with the Senate 
approach. A side-by-side comp:irison of current law, the approved Senate bill, and the 
House committee bill is attached; changes since the last version are shown in italics. 

Looking forward to the conference committee, the major points of contention would 
appear to be' highway vs. transit funding levels, taking the highway trust fund off
budget, whether demonstration projects are inside or outside the obligation limitation, 
which new f U!lding categories to retain in the final bill, and any remaining donor/ donee 
state issues. 

If you need any further information or assistance, please call me at (510) 464-7810 or 
Kate Breen at (510) 464-7877. 

Attachment 

PAGE 75 

1 



~ 
~ 
i:'"J 
-..1 
a, 

Bill No. 

Title 

Duration 

Overall 
Funding 

California 
'Highway 
Share 

Highway 
Trust Fund 
Off-Budget 

LSTEA 
Program 
Structure 

IS TEA Reauthorization Summary 

Current Law I House Bill 

Intermodal 
Surface 

' Transportation 
Efficiency Ad 
(ISTEA) 

6years 
(FY92-97) 

$155B Total 
$124B Highway 
$ 31B Transit 

9.45% 
j 

I No 

Core Programs: 

• IM 

• NHS 

• STP 

• CMAQ 

_ • Bridge I· Sec3 
• Sec9 

HR2400 

Building Efficient Surface Transportation and 
, Equity Act (BESTEA) 

I 6 years (FY 9!Hl3) 

$218BTotal 
$181B Highway 
$ 378 Transit 

9.18% 

!Yes 
' 

Retains core lSTEA highway and transit 
_ p rograrns, with following changes: 
' • Up to 50% of new incremental CMAQ 

and TEA funds can be flexed to other 
categories 

• $400M annual cap on transit operating 
assistance in areas below 200K pop. and on 
preventive maintenance in all areas 

• Sec 3 Rail Mod formula modified to 
benefit newer properties as proposed by 
APIA 

• 92% of Sec 3 New Rail Starts funds are 
reserved for final design and constmction 
only; FFGAs must be approved by 
Congress 

Senate Bill 

S1173 

ISTEAII 

f 6 years (FY 9!Hl3) 

$214BTota1 
$173B Highway 
$ 41B Transit 

9.15% 

• 

!No 

Retains core ISTEA highway and transit program, 
with following changes: 

• IM and Bridge become set-asides within NHS 

I • TEA set-aside reduced to 8% 

• Expanded eligibility for NHS and STP, (i.e., 
Amtrak, ITS, ferries) 

• Defmes as transit capital expense operating 
assistance in areas below 200K and preventive 
maintenance, ADA paratransit service, and ITS 
in all areas 

• Sec 3 Rail Mod formula modified to benefit 
newer and rural state properties 

• 92% of Sec 3 New Rail Starts funds are reserved 
for final design and construction only 

.... "'0 Ill" ,go 
::!"' 
]>~ 

"'" I "" w~ 
ID~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

Ill 

'11 

"' 0 
3 

3 ... 
n 

~ 
m 

::;' 
~ 

~ 

" ~ 
w 
~ --~ 
~ 

~.., 

o~ .. :::; 
,.~ 

~ 

"' .. 
Ill .. 
...,C3 ...,, 
ID~ 
"'~ = --~ 
~ 

!i 

~ 

.,O'l 
]>, 

""' "'~ 
0 -"'-



~ New 

I 

! 

Programs 

Streamlining 

Highway 
Demon-

' siration 
'"d i Projects 

~ 
:j 

1 

I 
I 

I 

Current Law 

• Demosnot 
subject to 
obligation 
limit 

• 10 Bay Am• 
projects 
totaling $108M 

House Bill 

HR2400 

Adds several new programs, inducting: 

• High Risk Roz d Safety {$920M/yr~ 

• High-Cost Inteostate Reconstruction 
($630M/yr) 

• National Corr.dor Development 
($167M/yr) 

j • Border Infrastructure ($90M/yr) 

I 

• Transit Enhancements ($50M/yr) 

• Access to Jobs ($42M/yr) 

Several new provisions, including: 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

Non-NHS prc-ject review delegation to 

Reduces 16 pi anning factors to 7 goals 

TIP update every 3 years instead of 2 

MIS integrated. into NEP A process 
Elimim<tes FHJ!if A regional offices 

Senate Bill 

S1173 

Adds several new programs, including: 

• Trade Corridor and Border Infrastructure 
Progt.am ($215M/yr) 

• lrmoYative Finance ($83M/yr) 

• Community Preservation ($20M/yr) 

• High Density States ($300M/yr) 

• 91% Bonus Program ($317M/yr) 

• Clean Fuel Vehicles ($200M/yr) 

• Access to Jobs/ Reverse Commute ($250M/yr) 

Several new provisions, including: 

• 

I • 
I • 
• 
• 

Non-NBS project review delegation to states 

State option on metric conversion 

Redaces 16 planning factors to 7 goals 

Directs DOT to eliminate MIS requirement 

RaiSI.S transit pass benefit from $65 to $100 as tax-free 
frin!f~ benefit 

• Demos rwt suljecl to obligation limit, but count ' • Detn:>s subject to obligation limit 

No projects included in bill in minimum a:bcation calculations • 
• 29 Bay Are11 p--ajecis iotaling $208,'1,[ 

-2-

, 

' 

._, 
"'0 en--,.,. 
:: ~ 
)>~ 
l1l " I .._, 

w-= 
IDg: 
~ 
m 

~ 

~ 

~ 

en 
'11 
l1l 
0 
:: 
:: ... 
n 

~ 
0 
a 

i=i 
~ 

"' 
w ---~ 
~ 

~ ... c ~ 
~ 
~ 

"'~ 
~ ., 
.. 
en .. 
..,::3 

"' ID~ 
";:;; = 
~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

lli 

~ 

,~ 

""' ""' m~ 

0 -"'-



;; 
~ 
-l 
QO 

l 
• 

I 

! Current Law 

Bill No. 

Transit New Rail Starts 
Earnutrks • BART-SFO 

and 
VTA Tasman 
($568M) 

• Caltmin to 
Hollister 
($21M) 

Bus 
• SFCPMC 

parking 
($2.5M) 

• Pleasanton 
BART 
parking 
($12.6M) 

Other 
Bay Area 
Proviskms 

I 
I 

Bill Status 

SH/lw /Misc/IS!EA/House/Sen 

\House Bill 

HR2400 

New Rail Starts-Desi;;n/Constn.cll'o;-; 
• BART-SFO 
• VTA Tasman 
• Muni Metro Btry~hore 

New Rail Starts-PE/11A 
• Fremont/South &y corridor 
• BART Oakum<! arport 
• Caltrain to HoUu ter 

Bus 
• SF Islais Creek maintenance (::2.5M) 
• Healdsburg inU?otwdal ($2.0l:f) 
• Santa Rosa/Cotati itttermod.l:'.$J .SM) 
• Windsor interma:ial ($1.5M) 
• lAVTAAVL($!.0M) 

• Preserves ER eliribility for D.--v:r s Slide tunnel 
i 

Bay Bridge west ~pproach a:-u l'.crba Baerra • 
Island ramp proj2cts eligiblt J-r High-cv;;t 
Interstate Reccm tn1ction prO,i!"Tt 

l . Repeals prohibitbt! on HOI"" ::l!;cs in 
unincorpomtetl Alameda C£ 1r1~~ 

I 

Ccrmtnittee mark-up :-/24/98 

-3-

Senate Bill 
; 

s 1173 

No transit earmarks 

' 

. 
Preserves ER eli6ibil-ity for De-vii's Slhfe tunnel 

l 
l 
I 

Approved by S.ena1e 96-4 on 3/12/98 

-
Revised: Manft26,199S 

..., 
"0 Dl .. , .. 
:I~ 
)>::-

"" I ,_, 

oo" m:+ 
~ 
m 

~ 

" 
'11 
;n 
0 
:I 

:I ., 
n 

::;' 
1l 

E'i 
<'"> 

!" 

:;;> 
~ --~ 
"""' 

~,., 

0:!!. .. ~ 
,.~ 

~ 

" 
" Dl 

" 
...,~ 

"' (I)~ ,:;; 
= 
~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

!li 

~ 

'll~ 
l>'O 

""" m-
0 -"-



4A - Wednesday, March 25, 1998 

Local highway · 3\ 
funding in-bill ' :.' j 

In brief If OK'd,. 
$7.4 million would go 
toward reliever route 
between Vacaville and 
south Fairfield. 

By John Scheibe 
Staff Writer · 

<;:ongressman Frank Riggs, 
R-Solano, announced Tuesday 
he included $7.4 million in a 
major federal highway bill to 
pay for part of the Interstate 
80 reliever route in Solano 
County, 

The U.S. House of Rep
resentatives will consider the 
highway bill in April. Both the 
House and Senate must then 
reconcile the bill before the 
$7.4 million becomes avail
able to the county. 

Riggs ·stated in a press re
lease he. hoped the funds 
would receive priority atten
tion and jump-start the con
struction process of the re
liever route. 

"Getting started is often the 
most difficult step," stated 

Riggs: · . . · ···1 
. . The ·funds are · ~arm~rJ<~,j", 

for the' Walters Road portion 
of the reliever route. A trans
portation committee· of · fed-., 
era! legislators is expected to ' 

' urge the California Depart-· i 
ment of Transportation to give I 
the entire route, which _starts. 
at the intersection of Leisure. 1 
Town Road and I-80 in Vaca-. l 
ville ancl ends at the state ; 
Highway 12/I-80 interchange 
in Fairfield, high priority .• 

"These funds will generate--:· 
a lot of momentum for what is 
probably the most crucial 
transportation project in cen
tral Solano County," stated 
Dixon Mayor Don Erickson in 
another press· release. ·Erick
son also is chairman of the So
lano Transportation Author
ity. . 

The reliever route is de!'1 

signed to remove local traffic'· 
from busy I-80. · . ·.. •· ·i;:, 

The total reliever route pro:· .

1

. 
ject is expected to cost $74.2 
million. The route will have 
four lanes. · 

PAGE 79 



' 

68 Monday, March 16, 1998. 

Editorial 

More, but it's not fair· 
Not all good news in transit funding bill 

S
hould the massive contribute 10.29 percent of 
transportation funding all funds, but receive only 

. bill passed by the Sen- 9.33 percent. And the pro-
ate last week make its way posed legislation will cut 
through the House of Rep- that to 9.14 percent. 
resentatives, California So you can see why local 
could see about $1 billion transit officials have mixed ; 
more each year in much- reviews for the proposed 
needed capital to repair highway bill. 
and improve Solano County's 
roads and rail sys- blueprint for 
terns. transportation im-

That is where You can see provements is a 
the good news why local long list of pro-
ends, however. · transit jects and repairs ' [ 

California cur- officials have that carries a 
rently receives mixed price tag into the 
9.33 percent of all reviews for hundreds of mil-
highway funds the proposed lions of dollars. 
from federal l Suisun City Mayor 
sources. Under highway bil · Jim Spering, who 
the new bill, that sits as chairman 
portion will drop of the Metropol-
to 9.14 percent. itan Transporta-
Now, you may say, that does tion Commission, knows just 
not seem like a significant how critical money will be 
decline in federal assis- to the economic future of 

''tairce:'However, if amountS .... · our· region. . . ·. 
to' ao:;>uf$3'oo_m:i'r11on over . - . Ife called pass~ge ~f~h~'·'"') 
the six-year lifespan of the h' h f d. b'll ·t 
I 

· 
1 

t' Ig way un mg I en -
egis a wn. · 1 B t h · h t . . Ica . u e IS unsure w a · 
M?r~ Importa~tly,_ Call~ the final figures will say or 

forma IS not gettmg Its fair t s 1 c ty ' 
share of funds for highways. mean, 0 0 ano oun · 
Taxpayers in California pay California lacks senior 
into the Highway Trust leaders on the House Trans-
Fund. And they have con- portation Committee, so it is 
tributed more recently be- unlikely that the situation 
cause of the population in- will improve. At least there 
crease. is money about to flow, ev~ E 80 

In fact, taxpayers here if it is not our fair share. 



~~ • . /3·13'1%'t .. ~: 
Better transit systems must materialize - and soon :~; 

From our readers 

Reporter Editor: hold. In many instances, there is not 
Solano County's funds from the enough room for the cars to be 

Regional Transportation Im- parked correctly, thus putting them 
provement Project (funds come from on lawn areas and other unwanted 
the state and federal gasoline taxes) areas. 
are to be spent over six years. The old story about San Francis-

The amount $27,516 is third lowest co's municipal transportation keeps 
coming to mind. General Motors de

of the nine Bay Area counties receiv- cided San Francisco needed fossil
ing funds. Divide this by six years, it fuel vehicles for public transporta-. 
comes out to $4,586 per year for high- tion and proceeded to convince the 
ways and roads and nothing for pub- city government to do away with 
lie transportation. electric vehicles (i.e. street cars and 

.. ~-:--
They s2id ratsmg bridge fares 

would slow down the traffic; from niy 
personal experience this has not 
proven so. ..r:.-... · 

Solano County cannot keep going 
in the same old way. We need· bu8i: 
nesses to come into our area, aiid. 
many of our current businesses ha'Ve 
stated the avenues of getting their 
product to their customers is becom
ing critical because of the cost bf 
transportation. , 1 

We citizens of Solano County must San Francisco County will receive trolley buses). · 
$48,722 to be spent over the same six- Maybe the auto industry should re- become proactive about transport;i~ 
year period, which is slated for pub- verse their attitude and zet behind tion or we will see more stupid fun<,!~ 

· lie transportati9ii'' rather than· high- . clean, environmentally :>afe> efficient"" ing: as above anq.more. con~rete .. ~aYi-
ways and roads. · · ''' ''iiublic transpoHiitlon. 'Say a certain·.,;ermg up the valuable land .for Wld~r 

My question is this: Why so little portion of sales tax directed for pub- freeways. ~ust drive Interstate 80 .~o 
for Solano County and why are there lie transportation only. San Franctsco for proof. . . , 
no funds allocated for improving . No one likes the cur.rent loss of Beco~e involved, believe in it, 
public transportation? · t1me and money commutmg to work. work at 1t and v1ctory wtll be yours ... 

Tho f u h h · b . th Solutions are immediately needed Emmett D. Davis 
B l.re 0 ~ s w 0 ave

1
. eenthmt e to adjust the status quo for the bet- Vacaville 

ay ea . or eons rea tze a we terment of our society. 
must rem m the added concrete that Give the public a way to commute 
lS necessary to accommodate the from one area to another inexpensi
auto frenzy. vely without having to transfer a 

Drive through a residential area multitude of times and people will 
and check out the cars per house- flock to the concept. 

PAGE 81 



,...--....-,.T 

McJy~ wor~ Ito get local· ferry 
By jaSon Mark · . ~eed ~ ~t;,lishing a 111<:' purpose of a demonstration could be said about fe~, pl~s 
GIB~ON PUBLICATIONS local fe:'Y, serv~ce. would benefit servtce would be to illust:ate to the later. . . . . . . . ,, ,. i> •. ·. 

· .... ··· • · · both ctnes tounst mdustnes. The Metropolitan Transportation Com- . Martmez offictals exp,c.!, \h~. 
· ·> '··· ,,,, .•. ' '· '·"· · · last ship crossed the Strait in 1962 mission the viability of a full-time city will need abou. t S.2.7 llli. ·w.·on t.6 .. ·After. years of waiting and. · 
dreatititig, the long hoped-for res- after inore than 100 years of ser- service. A successful pilot pro- . build a' ferry slip,.: ,.Berl.icia'is: 
urrection ·.Of. a." Benicia-Martinez . vice. And since then. many resi- gram, the cities hope, would con- asking fOr $2.1" rnilliO!l~ fOr' tne ·con~: 

. ferry is one step Closer to realiza- · dents of both towns have hoped to vince the MTC to contribute funds struction ofits dock. Dockiitgfacil- .:· 
tiOn. M~ez· ~yor Mike. Men: . again see ferry silhouettes out on to purchase, operate, and maintain ities are crucial :tQ·the eStablishment ' 
esini · and Benicia Mayor Jerry the Strait. a 250-passenger vessel that would of ferry service because both the 
Hayes.'.announced Thursday that fu November, the two cities sail to and from San Francisco and . Benicia arid Martinez marinas cur-
the two cities are applying for $4.8 agreed to split the cost of a $15,000 between Martinez and Benicia rently lack adequate space for siz- . 
million in state grants to cover the study that will investigate the feasi- "We need to capitalize on the able craft. · · 
costs of two docking facilities for bility of a new ferry service. At that downtown chanm of Martinez and Menesini and H~~$1!.; thi.1.;-l'~~k. 
the prOpOsed Carquinez Strait time. Martinez officialS said a fea- Benicia," Menesini said earlier this also wrote thetr ctttes' res~ctlve 

. ferry. sibility study represented a neces- week. state rep~ese~t~ti_ye~.~~ 'A.~~r}j~$-~. . 
For years, Benicia and Martinez sary first step toward creating a Hayes said Friday that many . . .. n •.. t,,,y;.;,, 

demonstration service. plans are in the works, and more See Ferry, page:A3 ·. 

Ferries 
from page At 

man Tom Torlakson and Assem
blywoman Helen Thomson, to ask 
for their support in Sacramento. 

The grant proposal identifies 
three sites on each side of the strait 
that could serve as docking facili
ties. Benicia alternatives include 
East Fifth Stree~ the Benicia Mari
na, and Historic First Street, which 
once served as the city's ferry dock. 

Benicia plarmers favor the First 
Street location. The possible Mar
tinez docks are: the shore next to 
the Harbor Master's Office, the his
toric ferry slip at the end of the 
mole, outside the Marina, or a site 
just off Ferry Poin~ next to the 
rviarina. lVIartinez officials prefer 
the third alternative. 

The state funds, if approved, 
would be used to install complete 
terminals. including piers, gang-

ways, and lighting. The money 
would also pay for dredging and 
removal of existing timber piles. 

Benicia and Martinez are asking 
for money from California's Petro
leum Violation Escrow Accoun~ a 
kind of trust fund that collects fmes 
and other reparations paid to the 
state by the petroleum industry. 

"Since we are host to the petro
leum industry," Martinez City 
Manager Marcia Raines said," it 
would. be nice if the money was 
returned to Martinez." 

Raines said the solicitation of 
state moneys means the ferry pro
ject is further proof that the ferry 
proposal is finally gaining real 
momentum. 

fudeed, after years of on-again, ; 
off-again rhetoric that has teased 
residents of both towns, things · i 
appear to be getting serious. The 
newest proposal is one of two pro
jects now under way that could 
make the recuning nostalgic 
dream of a ferry come true. 

PAGE 82 



- . ·.::~~-- -· . _;: __ ~;:~ .. -.·~:.c;·;;::-.-~-~- . ·_. -= -_ _.,.-·· - -.- ---

Biit includijtQ:·.·NfT.:Z'J3'80 projects passes House 
By CLYDE WEISS ~ ~ouse 61'/-gifes'8alifornia Martin Tuttle, executive director of the expected in June. . 
Washington Bureau · guaranteed highway and transit funding of Solano Transit Authority, and Dixon Mayor The $7.4 million from Congress "is real 

W
ASHINGT~N · R ad . · $2.9 billion a year, ?r$1 billion mOreannu- Don Erickson, chainnan of STA, were par- critical,'" said Tuttle, "Given the fact we 

. - 0M pro! 11"~d ally than the current program that is about ticularly pleased the panel added $7.4 mil- don't have a sales tax or local source for 
to 1mprove access to are s an . . . ·r1 d h' · · · 

d I
. . · to expi.I'e. ' han for the Solano I-80 Rehever Route, a money, we WI o t JS proJect m p1eces as 

an re teve congestiOn on . - . - · b · fu d " · 
Interstate 80 won support from Co gress Gov. Pete Wilson has expressed d1sap- $74 nulhon, 10 . .:>-mile roadway des1gned we o tam n s. . 

this k I ak aft d ·" pointment with both the House bill and an to divert local traffic bet\1/een Suisun City ·The new federal money ts earmarked to wee as awm ers cr e a SIX-year b · · · 
national transportation bill. earlier version passed in the Senate. He and Vacaville. '' Utid approximately three miles of new 

11le House transportation committee ·complains the state will get back less than Some work bas begun with $8.8 million pavement near Walt~rs Road. 
included the local roadwork among bun- it contributes to! the federal highway in state and federal money, and the county "These funds wil~ generate a lot of 
dreds of earmarked projects in a $217 bil- account through g'JS taxes. · is waiting for the state to provide another m?~e~tum for wh~t IS pro_babl~ them: 
lion spending program that it approved on But local offic~alS are happy their pro- $13.5 million through a transportation cntlca transportatiOn proJect m cen 
Tuesday. jects got funded._ j improvement program. A decision is (See PROJECTS, A2) 

. --. ·, ) 

PrDjects: Designed to ease congestion 
(From AI) 

Solano County," Erickson said in 
a statement. "Given the projected 
gridlock on Interstate 80, the 
Reliever Route is going to be 
needed to preserve existing job 
centers like Travis Air Force Base 
and emerging ones like the new 
Genentech plant in Vacaville." 

The county projects 1-80 will 
reach stop-and-go conditions 
around 2007 or 2008, Tuttle said. 

"In less than lO years, this por
tion of Solano County will be 
similar to other areas in the Bay 
Area," he said. 

For Vallejo, the bill contains $1 
million to continue widening and 
straightening Wilson Avenue, 
which provides entrance to the 
former Mare Island shipyard from 

Highway 37. It will partly fund 
the second phase of the $5.68 mil
lion project. 

Widening will serve com
muters to the Vallejo ferry line 
and ease traffic congestion gener
ated by new businesses on the for
mer shipyard. 

The project's first phase, 
stretching from Hichborn Street 
to Highway 37, will be completed 
by June 30, according to David 
Kleinschmidt, Vallejo's senior 
ci vii engineer. 

The second phase involves 
acquiring rights-of-way for pri
vate property on the west side of 
Wilson Avenue, relocation of ten~ 
ants and owners, construction to 
accommodate a two-lane 

improved roadway with center 
median, landscaping, street lights / 
and underground utilities. 

That project cannot be com
pleted until Congress agrees to 
spend even more money on it, 
probably early in the next decade, ; 
said Kleinschmidt. 

The third phase, a controver' I 
sial expansion to four lanes, has 
not been approved by city offi
cials. It involves a residential · 
area, and "councilmen want to 
make sure there's a definite need 
to provide four lanes of traffic. 
We're thinking 10 to 15 years 
down the line (to approve it), if at 
all." 

PAGE 83 



BENICIA HERALD FRIDAY, MARCH 27, 1998 

Benicia .Transit gets $71,000 grant from MTC 
By Nathan Salant 
HERALD STAFF WRITER 

Benida Transit wHJ receive a 
$71,000 from regional transporta
tion regulators to help the city's bus 
service meets its operating expens
es for the current fiscal year. 

The Metropolitan Transporta
tion Commission voted Wednes
day to approve the grant. which 
enables Benicia Transit to balance 
its budget for the fiscal year ending 
June 30. 

The funds were originally 
approved in Man:h but were with· 

held until the nine-year ..old bus ser
vice, which links Benicia with 
Vallejo and the Pleasant Hill 
BART station, submitted a bal
anced budget. 

Benicia Transit dlrector Alan 
Nadritch said the grant was only 
for this fiscal year and that the city 
would have to re-apply for the 
grant in a few weeks. The new fis
cal year begins July I. 

In a repon to the commission 
last year, MfC staff applauded 
efforts by the city to cut Benicia 
Transit's operating expenses and 
meet the requirements of its 
$507.000 aruma! budget. 

'They look steps to bring their 
costs down ... ' 

MTC's Ed Stewarl discussing Benicia Transifs route 
changes and fare increase. 

"When they put in their request, 
there some questions about what 
their budget would look like," 
MTC's Ed Stewart said Thursday. 
"They took steps to bring their 
costs down with a fare increase and 
some route reorganization." 

The MTC allocation comes 
from a portion of Bay Area bridge 
tolls dedicated to alternative trnns
portation projects aimed at reduc
ing freeway congestion. The fund 
is made up of 3 percent of rev
enues collected from tolls on eight 
Bay Area toll bridges, including the 
Benicia-Martinez span. 

The fund was established when 
tolls on_ Bay Area bridges were 
raised to $1 in 1988. 

'lblls were raised to $2 in Jrum
ary to pay for eanhquake retro
fitting and construction of a new 
span to replace pan of the San 
Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge 
damaged in 1989. 

The Commission also approved 
an application from the City of 
Alameda for a SJ 16.570 grant tl' 

buy a 350-passenger feny boat for 
service from Alameda and Oak
land to San Francisco. 

Benicia could look to that fund 
for help in purchasing ferry boats 
for a proposed ferry service linking 
Benicia with Martinez and San 
Francisco. 

Benicia and Martinez recently 
apPlied for nearly $5 million from 
another state fund fro the construc
tion of ferry docks and other relat
ed facilities in both cities. 

Benicia Mayor Jerry Hayes and 
Martinez Mayor Michael Menesini 
requested the funds in a Mar. 19 
letter to State Assembly representa
tives Helen Thomson and Tom 
Torlakson. 

Hayes said Thursday that the 
cities had a "50-50 chance" of 
receiving the funding, which 
comes from a fund for air emis
sion-reducing projects paid for out 

of oil ilxlustty fees and fines. 
"It's an election year and every

body is motivated." Hayes said. 
'They are committed to carry the 
ball." 

Hayes said he Mt discussed the 
application for Petroleum Violation 
Escrow Account funds with State 
Assemblywoman Helen Thomson 
during her last visit to Benicia. 

'This is an undertaking !hat I 
took after a conversation wi!h 
Helen Thomson when she was in 
Benicia," Hayes said. "We need to 
figure out a way to pay for these 
facilities." 

The proposed ferry facility in 
Benicia would be located at the end 
of FtrSt Street. according to the 
city's proposal. 

PAGE84 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 

April 1, 1998 
STABoard 
STA Staff 

s1ra 
Apri/8,1998 

Agenda Item 7.0 

RE: Consent Agenda (Any consent agenda item can be pulled for discussion) 

Recommendation: 

Approve the following attached consent items: 

7.1 Minutes ofMeeting ofMarch 11, 1998. 

7.2 Draft Minutes ofMarch 25, 1998 TAC meeting. 

7.3 Surface Transportation Program (STP) Interagency Agreement with MTC for FY 
1997-98 through 1999-2000. 

7.4 Amendment to Agreement with Moore, Iacofano and Goltsman. 

7.5 Amendment to Agreement with Michael Jones and Associates. 

7.6 Unmet Transit Needs. 

7.7 Office Lease Agreement. 

7. 8 Summary of Solano Intercity Transportation Providers. 

PAGE 85 



Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda Item 7.1 

s1ra 
SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

Minutes of Meeting of 
March 11, 1998 

Minutes by: Kim Kloeb 

1.0 Call to Order- Confirm Quorum 

Chairman Erickson called the regular meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. A quorum was confirmed. 

MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

MEMBERS 
ABSENT: 

ALSO 
PRESENT: 

Don Erickson 
Steve Gizzi 
Steve Lessler 
Marci Coglianese 
Jim Spering 
Mike Segala 
David Fleming 
PeteRey 

Barbara Kondylis 

Alan Nadritch 
Don Reynolds 
Morrie Barr 
Daryl Taramasso 
Martin Tuttle 
KimK!oeb 
Dan Christians 
Matt Todd 
Stacy Medley 
Pam Belchamber 
Gary Leach 

2.0 Approval of Agenda 

City of Dixon 
City of Benicia 
City of Fairfield 
City of Rio Vista 
City of Suisun City 
City of Suisun City (alternate) 
City of Vacaville (alternate) 
City of Vallejo (alternate) 

County of Solano 

City of Benicia 
Caltrans 
City of Fairfield 
Solano County 
STA 
STA 
STA 
STA 
STA 
City of Vallejo 
City of Vallejo 

Chairman Don Erickson requested that the agenda be amended to move item 8.1 to 4.1. Mayor Jim 
Spering made a motion to approve the amended agenda that was seconded by Mayor David Fleming 
and approved unanimously. PAGE 87 



3.0 Executive Director's Report 

Martin Tuttle provided a brief report: 

• The consent agenda item on the mid-year budget revisions reflected approved changes by the 
ST A Board and the acquisition of a video projector to aid in the ongoing public outreach 
effort to support the Solano Transportation Plan. 

• Reported that his recent trip to Washington, D.C., along with Mayor Spering, had gone well. 
They spoke with federal representatives about the federal earmark requests from Solano 
County. Tuttle said that while the support from the lobbyist recently contracted by the ST A 
was very helpful, more work is needed to support the Solano earmark requests. 

• Caltransincluded the Highway 37/29 interchange project, the I-680/80 interchange project, 
and an environmental impact study to support the widening ofl-80 from Vacaville to Dixon 
in the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) submitted to the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) on March 2. Tuttle noted that the program, as proposed 
by Caltrans, programmed 28% of the northern California share of ITIP funding to Solano 
County and that Solano County had been programmed for more funding than Los Angeles 
County. Tuttle said the ITIP will not be adopted by the CTC until June 2, and the STA 
should be represented at CTC meetings until then to support Solano projects. 

• An article on the SolanoLinks project had appeared in the VIA magazine published by the 
California State Automobile Association. 

• The SolanoLinks program had been nominated as a California Transportation Foundation 
project of the year, and the STA had been nominated by MTC for an the organization of the 
year award. 

4.0 Comments/Update from Staff, Caltrans, and MTC 

Stacy Medley reminded STA Board members that their annual Form 700's were due to the STA by 
April!. 

Don Reynolds of Caltrans District 4 said Caltrans is reconsidering their decision not to prepare a 
Project Study Report (PSR) to support an auxiliary lane on I-80 from Travis Boulevard to Air Base 
Parkway. He also requested that the STA develop a prioritized list of requests for PSR's in the near 
future. 

Mr. Reynolds said that a Project Manager should be named for the Highway 37/29 interchange 
project by May 1. He suggested that the STA appear at the next meeting of the California 
Transportation Commission to support the programming of the project in the Interregional 
Transportation Improvements Program (ITIP). 

Mr. Reynolds noted that there will be a meeting of senior Caltrans officials to review the process for 
development of the ITIP program. He will be contacting STA staff for input. 

PAGE 88 



Mayor Jim Spering, Chairman of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), reported on 
the recent trip to Washington, D.C. to discuss Bay Area and Solano County transportation issues with 
federal representatives. He commended STA Executive Director Martin Tuttle for his assistance on 
the Washington trip and noted that his support had been very helpfuL Mayor Spering also noted that 
the lobbying firm contracted by the STA had been very helpful in facilitating meetings with federal 
representatives. 

Mayor Spering said that he met with Department of Transportation Secretary Rodney Slater to 
express the Bay Area's support for a reauthorization of the Intermodal Surface Transportation 
Efficiency Act (ISTEA). He noted the Bay Area had been very successful in making use of the 
flexible funding provided by IS TEA. 

Mayor Spering said that the pending federal transportation funding authorization may provide more 
funding than ISTEA The current House version of the bill would increase funding by $46 billion and 
the Senate version would increase funding by $31 billion. MTC supports spending down the federal 
Highway Trust Fund for transportation uses as intended. The Highway Trust Fund has been used to 
create an impression of a smaller federal deficit in recent years. 

Mayor Spering said MTC opposed setting minimum levels of transit funding, even for states that have 
not used transit funding in the past. Current versions of the reauthorization act would compromise 
by providing some funding for states that have not used transit funding in the past, but not a 
percentage. 

Mayor Spering expressed concern that the new Welfare-to-Work program could further stress public 
transit systems without providing funding to meet new requirements. MTC supports $4 million in 
funding for technical assistance to address this issue. 

Mayor Spering noted that he had met with AMTRAK representatives. The discussions with 
AMTRAK may be helpful in possible future negotiations with AMTRAK for operation of the Capitol 
Corridor passenger rail service. 

Mayor Spering concluded his report by noting that it is very important for the STA to be represented 
on the annual trips to Washington, and again commending Executive Director Martin Tuttle and the 
STA lobbyists in Washington. 

Chairman Erickson agreed that the trip to Washington is very important, and thanked Mayor Spering 
for his representation there. 

4.1 WELFARE TO WORK 

This item was moved from 8.1 under the approval of the agenda. Matt Todd introduced Daryl 
Taramasso of the Solano County Health and Social Services Department. Mr. Taramasso provided 
a brief overview on the status of the Solano Welfare-to-Work program and how it relates to 
transportation. 

PAGE89 



Recent legislation requires welfare recipients to find jobs within time limits. Mr. Taramasso is co
chairing a committee on the transportation aspect of the CalWORKS Welfare Plan recently approved 
for Solano County. With the transit operators input, the county will survey the current CalWORKS 
clients to help determine their trip origins and destinations, trip times, and other information that 
could be used to determine actual versus perceived needs. 

Mayor Spering expressed a concern that as the program becomes more successful it will require more 
transit services and extended hours to serve the needs of the program participants. He stated that 
transit operating budgets are already strained and can not provide the additional services without 
additional funding. 

Chairman Erickson thanked Mr. Taramasso for his presentation. 

5.0 Opportunity for Public Comment 

There was none. 

6.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

The consent agenda was unanimously approved on a motion by Mayor Jim Spering, with a second 
by Member Steve Lessler. The consent agenda included the following items: 

6.1 Minutes of Meeting of February 11, 1998. 

6.2 Draft Minutes of February 25, 1998 TAC meeting. 

6.3 Resolution Approving 5-Year Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan and Transportation 
Development Act Article 3 claims for 1998-99. 

6.4 Letter to U.C. Davis Chancellor Requesting Participation in Old Davis Road Class 2 
Bike Lane Project. 

6.5 Resolution Authorizing an Application for Bicycle Lane Account Funds for Old Davis 
Road Class 2 Bike Lane. 

6.6 Mid-year Budget Revision 

*END OF CONSENT AGENDA • 

7.1 STA Goals for 1998 

Chairman Erickson noted that at last month's meeting, the STA Board reviewed the proposed STA 
goals for 1998 as an information item. He recommended the STA Board adopt the proposed list of 
goals for 1998. The Chairman's recommendation was unanimously approved on a motion by Mayor 
Jim Spering with a second by Member Marci Coglianese. 

PAGE 90 



7.2 Yolo/Solano Air Quality Management District Clean Air Fund (CAF) Applications 

Matt Todd and Dan Christians presented this item. Matt Todd noted the Yolo-Solano Air Quality 
Management District (YSAQMD) administers the Clean Air Fund (CAF) program in the Yolo-Solano 
air basin in the eastern part of Solano County including Dixon, Rio Vista, Vacaville, and eastern parts 
of unincorporated Solano County. 

Matt Todd noted that applications to the YSAQMD were due by March 6, 1998, and the STA 
requested that copies of all applications for YSAQMD CAF be forwarded to the STA for review and 
coordination. YSAQMD staff indicated that STA support for a project may be advantageous. The 
proposed projects were reviewed and approved at the February 25 TAC. STA staff prepared an 
application for $90,000 to fund CityLink Route 30 service from Fairfield to Davis via Vacaville and 
Dixon. In addition, the City of Vacaville also proposed four projects at the February 25 TAC 
meeting: 

$140,000 for Solano BART express bus service (Route 40) 
$20,000 for bicycle racks and lockers 
$5,000 for an electric vehicle for the city utilities division 
$5,000 for two electric vehicle public charging stations 

Mayor David Fleming asked if the CityLink Route 30 operating costs and fares were comparable to 
Greyhound costs over the same corridor. Pam Bel chamber said that Greyhound uses a different fare 
structure that focuses on intercity riders between San Francisco and Sacramento. Martin Tuttle said 
that a comparison of public/private costs for transit in the corridor would be provided at the April 
STA meeting. 

Dan Christians said the STA staff also proposed an application for $10,000 to fund the Bikelinks map 
showing suggested bike routes throughout Solano and Yolo Counties and an application for $50,000 
for the Old Davis Road Class 2 Bike Route construction. 

Dan Christians recommended the STA Board approve the proposed STA applications and the 
resolution of support for funding the project applications from the STA and the City of Vacaville. 
Member Steve Lessler moved to approve the recommendation. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
David Fleming and passed unanimously. 

8.1 Resolution Supporting the STA's Pending ISTEA Earmark Requests 

Martin Tuttle said that last February, in anticipation of a new federal act to replace ISTEA, the STA 
requested funding for earmark projects to be funded under the reauthorization act. The 
reauthorization of the federal transportation act is still pending, and so are the funding requests from 
Solano County. The City ofDixon requested funding of the downtown grade separation of the Union 
Pacific Railroad tracks from Congressman Fazio. Support for Phase I of the I-80 Reliever Route 
project was requested from Congressman Riggs. Congressman Miller was requested to support 
funding of the widening of Wilson Avenue from Hichbom Street to Highway 37 in Vallejo. In 
addition, the STA will seek another $2.7 million in federal Section 3 funding to support intercity 
transit services this year. 

PAGE 91 



Martin Tuttle recommended the STA Board approve the proposed resolution supporting the federal 
earmark requests. Mayor Jim Spering moved to approve the recommendation. The motion was 
seconded by Member Steve Lessler and passed unanimously. 

After the vote on the resolution was approved, Mayor Jim Spering expressed his concern that one 
of the earmark projects, the I-80 Reliever Route, must be supported by a land use plan that 
complements the transportation project and ensures that the project will not create urban sprawl. 

Member Steve Lessler said that the I -80 Reliever Route is needed now to serve existing traffic, but 
agreed that a joint land use plan for the project was needed. 

Martin Tuttle noted that the issue had been raised in the public forums in support of the Solano 
Transportation Plan and must be addressed to develop public support for the plan. Tuttle asked for 
direction from the Board. It was agreed to take the issue to a special committee of STA Board 
Members. 

8.2 Update on the Solano Transportation Plan 

Martin Tuttle noted the STA has conducted a series of community forums to obtain input on the 
proposed Solano Transportation Plan. Questionnaire summaries and press accounts of the successful 
community forums in Vacaville, Fairfield and Vallejo were attached to the agenda item. 

Tuttle said the schedule of remaining public meetings to obtain input and develop support for the 
proposed plan is: 

March 13 - Community Action Team meeting in Fairfield 
March 18 - Mayor's Conference in Suisun City 
March 19 - Good Morning Fairfield/Suisun in Fairfield 
March 20 - SEDCORP Transportation Action Team meeting in Fairfield 
March 21 -League ofWomen Voters in Fairfield 

After the extensive public outreach effort is completed and the Community Action Team makes its 
final recommendations, the plan is scheduled to be presented to the SEDCORP Transportation Action 
Team on March 20. 

8.3 Update on 1998 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 

Martin Tuttle said Caltrans included the Highway 37/29 interchange project, the I-680/80 interchange 
project, and an environmental impact study to support the widening ofl-80 from Vacaville to Dixon 
in the Interregional Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) submitted to the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) on March 2. Tuttle noted that the program, as proposed by 
Caltrans, programmed 28% of the northern California share of ITIP funding to Solano County and 
that Solano County had been programmed for more funding than Los Angeles County. Tuttle said 
the ITIP will not be adopted by the CTC until June 2, and the ST A should be represented at CTC 
northern California STIP hearing on. April 1 to support Solano projects. 

PAGE92 



Chairman Don Erickson noted that the STA strategy of maintaining a consistent set oflocal priorities 
sent a clear message to the CTC about Solano County needs. 

8.4 MTC Development of New Federal Funding Distribution Process 

Martin Tuttle said that the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) approved a process for 
the distribution of funding from the pending federal transportation funding authorization act at their 
February meeting. Under MTC's adopted proposal, 25% of the federal funds will be programmed for 
regional discretionary reserve. Acting on a letter from ST A staff, the MTC Partnership agreed to add 
safety projects as eligible for the 25% discretionary funding. After the 25% for regional projects and 
prior commitments are taken off the top, the remaining funds would be returned to counties on a 
percentage formula yet to be determined. A 15% reserve would be withheld from the return to 
source funds for adjustments to county shares. 

8.5 Board Members' Comments 

Member Pete Rey noted that he enjoyed his first meeting with the ST A, and that it will be a learning 
process. 

Member Mike Segala thanked Martin Tuttle for his follow up on the I -80 auxiliary lanes project from 
Travis Boulevard to Air Base Parkway. 

Member Marci Coglianese said that the City of Rio Vista had approved a resolution supporting the 
operation of a traffic light at the intersection of Highway 12 and Summerset Road. She noted the 
developer of the Summerset project was willing to pay the cost of installing the signal, but that 
Caltrans would not give permission because the intersection did not meet Caltrans volume 
justification. 

Martin Tuttle said the issue would be agendized for a future STA meeting. He noted that 
representatives from Rio Vista would meet with staff from Assemblywoman Helen Thomson's staff 
on this issue on March 20. 

8.6 Adjourn 

Chairman Don Erickson adjourned the meeting at 7:40. (Next meeting April 8, 1998) 

PAGE93 



s1ra 
DRAFT 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Minutes of the Meeting of 

March 25, 1998 

AGENDA ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 

AprilS, 1998 
Agenda Item 7.2 

The regular meeting of the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC) was called to order at 1:35 p.m. by Martin Tuttle at the STA conference room. 

PRESENT: Saaid Fakharzadeh 
Ace Forsen 
James Williams 
Janet Koster 
Elizabeth Richards 
Paul Wiese 
Martin Tuttle 
KimKloeb 
Dan Christians 
Matt Todd 
Gian Aggarwal 
Ed Huestis 
Gary Leach 
Pam Belchamber 

AGENDA ITEM 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Caltrans, District 4 
Caltrans, District 4 
Citizen 
City of Dixon 
Solano Commuter Information 
Solano County 
STA 
STA 
STA 
STA 
City of Vacaville 
City of Vacaville 
City of Vallejo 
City of Vallejo 

Martin Tuttle recommended agenda item 13 on the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) be held over 
to the April agenda at the request of MTC staff. The agenda, as amended, was unanimously 
approved on a motion by Paul Wiese with a second by Gian Aggarwal. 

AGENDA ITEM 3. MINUTES OF MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25, 1998 

The minutes were approved as written on a motion by Gary Leach with a second by Paul Wiese. 

AGENDA ITEM 4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was none. 

PAGE 95 



AGENDA ITEM 5. COMMENTS FROM STAFF, CAL TRANS, MTC 

Martin Tuttle noted that Congressman Riggs had proposed $7.4 million in federal funding for the 
Walters Road and Walters Road Extension segments of the I-80 Reliever Route in the House of 
Representatives version of the federal transportation funding authorization act. The bill must be 
approved by the joint conference committee of the Senate and House of Representatives and be 
signed by the president to become law. Tuttle commended Paul Wiese for his work on the 
development of these two projects. STA staff is still researching the bill to determine the status of 
the Dixon and Vallejo requests for federal earmark funding. 

Ace Forsen said that the Record of Decision (ROD) for the Highway 37 projects would be delayed 
until July 1. This should not impact the schedule for construction. The ROD has been delayed while 
Caltrans responds to additional comments from the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A). 

Gian Aggarwal asked about progress on the federal reauthorization. Martin Tuttle said that it may 
be as early as May. 

AGENDA ITEM 6. INTERCITY TRANSIT CONSORTIUM UPDATE 

Pam Belchamber announced that the SolanoLinks project had received a Tranny award as Transit 
Management Project of the Year from the California Transportation Foundation. STA chairman Don 
Erickson had been present at the Consortium meeting that morning to inform the group about the 
award. 

Ms. Belchamber said the study of potential consolidation of the Vallejo and Benicia transit systems 
is pending and should be finalized soon. 

The Consortium continues work on intercity transit services and the Five-Year Intercity Transit Plan. 
The Consortium will recommend that three of the four buses funded by federal Section 3 funds will 
be purchased by the City ofVallejo. The fourth bus, fueled by Compressed Natural Gas (CNG), will 
be purchased for service on route 30 serving Fairfield, Vacaville, Dixon and Davis. 

Ms. Belchamber noted that Matt Todd had almost completed responses to this year's unmet transit 
needs process. 

Matt Todd noted that the new address for the Consortium on the Web is www.SolanoLinks.com. 

AGENDA ITEM 7. SOLANO TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Martin Tuttle said the Solano Transportation Plan was being developed jointly by the STA and the 
Solano Economic Development Corporation (SEDCORP). Tuttle said that three community forums 
were recently held in Vacaville, Fairfield and Vallejo to obtain input on the Solano Transportation 
Plan. He provided a presentation on the Plan to the TAC. 

PAGE96 



Tuttle noted that at the March 13 Community Action Team meeting, the comments from the 
community forums were reviewed and direction was provided to include and address each comment 
in the final transportation plan. The SEDCORP Transportation Action Team reviewed the changes 
again on March 24. A summary of the revisions was provided. 

Tuttle recommended the T AC approve the Solano Transportation Plan as amended and recommend 
that the Board authorize $10,000 for printing costs from project development funds. 

The staff recommendation was unanimously approved on a motion by Morrie Barr with a second by 
Pam Belchamber. 

AGENDA ITEM 8. PROPOSED STA BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1998-99 

Martin Tuttle presented a revised Draft ST A 1998-99 Budget. The revisions were in response to 
comments received from the STA Executive Conunittee members Erickson and Slade. Tuttle said 
STA staff is proposing to increase both TDA Planning and Administration and Gas Tax Subvention 
contributions from member agencies about 5% to cover increases in General Operations, subject to 
concurrence by the STA Board. 

Tuttle explained that the proposed increase in member contributions is below the projected increase 
in both TDA and gas tax subventions to member agencies. TDA funds are expected to be up over 8% 
next fiscal year, and Gas Tax Subventions are projected to increase by about 5%. 

The TAC discussed the proposed 3% Cost of Living Adjustment proposed in the budget. Janet 
Koster asked if the STA staff had received this increase every year. Martin Tuttle responded that 
they had not. Janet Koster suggested that STA staff salaries be compared to salaries for other 
transportation planning staff in the county. Martin Tuttle recommended she make that suggestion 
to the ST A Board member from her jurisdiction. 

Tuttle said the Project Development budget for 1998-99 is proposed to initially be set at $105,000. 
In response to a question from Janet Koster, Tuttle said this item is funded in large part by carryover 
fund balances. If it is determined that there is any additional fund balance after the audit is completed 
in the fall, additional funds would be added into Project Development as was done this year. Tuttle 
also said Priority Projects will be proposed to the Board at their May meeting. 

Tuttle recommended the TAC approve the attached Draft 1998-99 STA Budget subject to final 
approval ofthe STABoard. 

The staff recommendation was unanimously approved on a motion by Morrie Barr with a second by 
Gian Aggarwal 

After approval of the agenda item, Gary Leach and Pam Belchamber suggested that future budgets 
be developed after consultation with local jurisdictions on local needs. Martin Tuttle said that in the 
future budgets would be prepared earlier to allow time for consultation. 

PAGE 97 



AGENDA ITEM 9. TRANSPORTATION FOR CLEAN Affi FUND PROGRAMS TFCA 
APPLICATIONS FOR 1998-99 

Dan Christians said that since staff has determined that the $395,000 in available new funding for 
1998-99 should be enough to fund all of this year's requests, he recommended that all applications 
be approved for submittal to the BAAQMD at the ST A Board meeting on April 8. 

The staff recommendation was unanimously approved on a motion by Morrie Barr with a second by 
Janet Koster. 

AGENDA ITEM 10. TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT HIGHWAY 12 AND SUMMERSET ROAD IN 
RIO VISTA 

Kim Kloeb noted the Summerset development in Rio Vista off Highway 12 is a senior citizen 
development with a golf course. The intersection of Summerset Road and Highway 12 is heavily 
used by senior citizens entering and exiting the development onto Highway 12. The intersection of 
Highway 12 and Summerset Road has been improved and basic infrastructure for a signal has been 
added there. Due to the special nature of traffic using the intersection, the City of Rio Vista would 
like to allow the developer of Summerset to signalize the intersection at this time. The developer will 
pay the total cost of the signalization. 

Kloeb said the intersection does not currently meet Caltrans standard justifications for signalization, 
but the standards provide for specials cases and the nature of the driver population at this intersection 
is a special case. He noted the cities ofRio Vista and Fairfield have approved resolutions supporting 
the operation of a signal at this location and the Highway 12 Association has sent a letter to Cal trans 
District 4 Director Harry Y ahata requesting a signal at this location. 

Gian Aggarwal expressed a concern about potential liability for supporting a traffic signal at this 
location. Kloeb responded that the ultimate decisions would be Caltrans'. 

Kloeb recommended the T AC approve the proposed resolution in support of the proposed signal at 
Highway 12 and Summerset Road. 

The staff recommendation was approved on a motion by Paul Wiese with a second by Morrie Barr. 
Gian Aggarwal abstained. 

AGENDA ITEM 11. UPDATE ON 1998 STATE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM (STIP) 

Martin Tuttle said the CTC is scheduled to take testimony on the Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program (ITIP) proposals at their meeting on April 1 in San Francisco. He said the 
STA would be represented at the meeting to support Solano projects. 

Tuttle noted that Caltrans' list proposes $40.1 million in funding for the Highway 3 7/29 interchange 
project, and the list supports the $14 million in regional choice funds in the STA final bid list. This 
would completely fund the project and complete the longstanding improvements to Highway 3 7 from 
I-80 to the Napa River Bridge. PAGE 98 



Tuttle also noted that Caltrans proposes $6.9 million for the I-80/680 auxiliary lanes project, and $3 
million for environmental work for future I-80 expansion between Dixon and Vacaville. 

Ace Forsen commented that High Occupancy Vehicle lanes should be considered in the development 
of the environmental document for the widening of I -80 from Vacaville to Dixon. 

Gian Aggarwal asked about the status of Solano's regional choice projects. Martin Tuttle noted that 
the $14 million for the Highway 37/29 interchange and the $13.5 million for the I-80 Reliever Route 
are include in the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (R TIP), and he does not expect 
that there will be any problem with the programming of these projects. 

Gian Aggarwal asked that status reports on the regional choice projects be included in future updates. 
Martin Tuttle said they would be. 

AGENDA ITEM 12. CALL FOR CALTRANS PROJECT STUDY REPORTS (PSR) 
REQUESTS- INFORMATION ONLY 

KimKloeb said that Caltrans staff had requested that the STA develop a prioritized list of requests 
for PSR development in Solano County. Kloeb said this request is more critical than ever due to the 
requirements in SB 45 for detailed advance planning studies. 

Kloeb said the STA requests proposals from TAC members for PSRs from their jurisdictions for the 
April TAC meeting. He explained that the list of completed PSRs in Solano County included in the 
agenda was provided for a point of reference. He asked the TAC to review the list and inform ST A 
staff of any completed PSRs that were not listed. 

Kloeb said the requests for new PSRs will be reviewed after the April TAC and STA requests for 
PSRs for regional projects may also be added to the list. The completed list will be brought back to 
the TAC for prioritization before presentation to the ST A Board for approval. 

AGENDA ITEM 13. UPDATE ON THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN (RTP) 
TRACK1 

This item was deleted from the agenda under item 2. 

AGENDA ITEM 14. UPDATE ON THE STATUS OF 1997-99 SURFACE 
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP) FUNDING 

Kim Kloeb noted the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) expired on 
September 30, 1997. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) programmed Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) funding for federal fiscal years 1997-98 and 1998-99 in anticipation 
that the program would continue under the reauthorization of the federal transportation funding act. 
The authorization act was not reapproved, but has been extended to May 1. 

PAGE99 



Kloeb said that while the status of the STP resurfacing projects is very uncertain, STA staff strongly 
recommends that jurisdictions request authorization from Caltrans District 4 Local Assistance for 
these projects as quickly as possible. Caltrans may authorize the projects with STP funds available 
now. 

AGENDA ITEM 15. PROPOSED LAND USE CATEGORIES FOR COUNTYWIDE 
TRAFFIC MODEL UPDATE 

Dan Christians said that on March 6 the Countywide Traffic Committee met to discuss the status of 
the update to the Countywide Traffic Model. Christians said the committee had developed a 
proposed list of land use categories for use in updating the model based on the new zone maps. 
Summaries of the proposed categories were included in the agenda. Existing and proposed land use 
information will be requested from STAjurisdictions. He said the committee will then update the 
multi-regional countywide traffic model based on the land use projections. 

Christians said a workshop was scheduled onApril2 at 10:00 a.m. in the STA Conference Room for 
anyone interested in further discussing the model update and this data request. 

AGENDA ITEM 16. UPDATE ON THE FAIRFIELDN ACA VILLE CAPITOL CORRIDOR 
TRAIN STATION 

Morrie Barr of Fairfield noted the STA requested funds from the 1994-95 Transit Capital 
Improvements (TCI) to develop the Fairfield/Vacaville passenger train station serving the Capitol 
Corridor. The STA was programmed for $498,000 to develop the station. In the 1995-96 TCI cycle 
the City of Fairfield was programmed for $402,000 to develop the station. 

Mr. Barr said the STA and the City of Fairfield recently requested an amendment to the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) to combine the two grants under the City of Fairfield. 
The STIP amendment is expected to receive final approval from the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC) at the April 1 meeting. 

Mr. Barr also noted the Solano Rail Facilities Plan located the site for the station on Vanden Road 
in the vicinity of Cannon Road. Environmental problems at that location forced the development of 
the site at an alternate site also studied in the Rail Facilities Plan, at the intersection of Vanden Road 
and Peabody Road. 

AGENDA ITEM 17. ADJOURN 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:15pm. (The next TAC meeting will be held April29). 

PAGE 100 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April1, 1998 
STABoard 
Dan Christians 

s1ra 
Apri/8, 1998 

Agenda Item 7. 3 

Surface Transportation Program (STP) Interagency Agreement with MTC for FY 
1997-98 through 1999-2000 

Each year MTC provides $100,000 of federal funds to the Solano Transportation Authority for 
various planning and progrannning activities related to the Regional Transportation Plan, monitoring 
of federal and state funded projects, participation in the Bay Area Partnership, countywide and 
corridor transportation plans, implementation of transportation/land use modeling and policies, 
multimodal priority setting, and preparation and updating of the Congestion Management Program, 
including the Capital Improvement Program. 

Attached is a portion of the 3-year STP Interagency agreement with MTC for FY 1997-98 through 
1999-2000 for a total of about $300,000. The actual amount of total funds under this agreement will 
be based on the ISTEA reauthorization bill currently pending in the House of Representatives. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Interagency Agreement with MTC for FY 1997-98 through FY 
1999-2000 for $300,000 offederal STP funds. 

PAGE 101 



. . 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT FOR 

FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 STP FUNDS 

BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY CONGESTION MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

CONGESTION MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING 

p: \section \acct\tda \contract\stp97 ~98\solano. doc 
PAGE 102 



• 

Solano Transportation Authority CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 3 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AND 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY CONGESTION MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

This Agreement, effective as of July l, 1997, is entered into by and between the Metropolitan 

Transportation Commission (hereafter "MTC"), a regional transportation planning agency established pursuant to 

California Government Code§ 66500 et ~ and the Solano Transportation Authority Congestion Management 

Agency (hereafter "Contractor") 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions, funding, and scope of work for 

implementing the MTC/Contractor joint transportation planning program for the period from July I, 1997 to June 

30,2000. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, MTC has been designated for the San Francisco Bay Region as the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO- federal) and the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA- state); and 

WHEREAS, the federal Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA) specifically 

requires the development of a long range transportation plan for the MTC region in cooperation with local 

agencies; and 

WHEREAS, ISTEA provides that Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds may be allocated for 

planning and programming activities; and 

WHEREAS, MTC is an eligible recipient of STP planning funds for the San Francisco Bay Region. As 

such, MTC may allocate federal planning funds to Contractor in order to assist local transportation planning 

projects which are necessary components of the urban transportation planning process required under 23 CFR 

450.100 et seq. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

PAGE 103 
p:\section\acct\tda\contract\stp97*98\solano.doc 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1.0 GENERAL 

Solano Transportation Authority CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 4 

Contractor assumes the responsibility for certain planning and programming activities, work 

tasks and products that support MTC's FY 1998-2002 Overall Work Program (OWP). MTC will administer the 

passthrough ofSTP funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) to Contractor in accordance with 

this Agreement, with the OWP, and with the federal regulations regarding the transportation planning process. 

2.0 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION 

The administration of this Agreement will be conducted by MTC staff. Day-to-day 

management of individual projects required under this Agreement are assigned to the appropriate Program 

Manager at Contractor and Section Manager at MTC. 

3.0 FUNDING 

(a) Contractor and MTC mutually agree that, pursuant to this agreement, MTC shall allocate to 

Contractor a total of THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($300,000) in STP federal general 

planning funds apportioned in Fiscal Years 1998, 1999 and 2000. 

(b) STP funding from U.S. DOT shall be contingent upon approval by the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA) and the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A) of MTC's Overall Work Program 

(OWP) and Transportation Improvement Program. Should the U.S. DOT agencies amend the OWP after the 

effective date of this agreement to reduce the amount of available STP funds, MTC will reduce Contractor's 

share of STP funds proportionally and shall, after consultation with the Contractor, amend the Scope of Work as 

necessary to reflect the reduced level of funding. 

(c) From time to time, special planning studies not currently embraced by this Agreement may be 

undertaken by Contractor on behalf of or jointly with MTC, in which case additional funding may be provided 

subject to mutually satisfactory negotiation of a detailed scope of work. 

(d) Contractor shall provide non-federal matching funds of 11.4 7 percent of the total project cost. 

(e) Funds not expended during the fiscal year in which they were programmed shall be carried over 

to the next year's program provided the funds are included in an approved OWP. 

4.0 SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET 

In consideration of the funding detailed herein, Contractor shall complete the work tasks and 

products as set forth in Appendix A, Scope of Work and Budget, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference. Compliance with federal and state financial reporting requirements shall be Contractor's 

responsibility. 

p:\section\acct\tda\contract\stp97-98\solano.doc PAGE 104 



. . 

Solano Transportation Authority CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 10 

IN WI1NESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first indicated above . 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 

Lawrence D. Dahms 
Executive Director 

p:\section\acct\tda\contract\stp97-98\solano.doc 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
CONGESTION MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

Don Erickson 
Chair 

PAGE 105 



• 

CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 11 

APPENDIX A: SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET 
MTC/CMA PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING AGREEMENT 

TASKS, PRODUCTS AND BUDGET 

FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Objective 

To prepare and refine plans and programs that respond to new federal planning and programming 
requirements. 

Description 

The Congestion Management Agency (CMA) shall conduct specific planning and programming 
activities to assist MTC in meeting the requirements of federal ISTEA legislation and related regional 
planning and programming policies and guidelines. 

Previous and Ongoing Work 

• County Congestion Management Programs (CMPs) and affiliated Capital Improvement 
Programs (CIPs) 

• Countywide Transportation Plans 

• Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 

• Federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

• Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

Designation 

For any county and its constituent cities that retain the Congestion Management Agency and Congestion 
Management Program requirements under Government Code Section 65089 et seq., no additional 
designations of authority to carry out the provisions of the 3% STP Funding contracts are required. 

For any county and its constituent cities that elect to opt out of the Congestion Management Agency and 
Congestion Management Program requirements under Government Code Section 65088.3, those 
jurisdictions must designate a substitute agency to assume and carry out the tasks outlined in this 
Appendix, in order to qualifY and obtain 3% STP funding. 

• 

• 

The substitute agency must be designated by resolutions adopted by a majority of local governments 
in the county, collectively comprised of the city councils and the county board of supervisors, which 
in total also represent a majority of the population in the county. 

The county and its constituent cities may structure the substitute agency in any manner they choose, 
as long as that agency has the authority to fully carry out the tasks and responsibilities outlined in 
this Appendix. 

PAGE 106 
p:\section\acct\u1a\contract\stp97~98\cc.doc 



• 

Solano Transportation Authority CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 12 

• For counties and constituent cities who opt out of the CMNCMP and do not designate a substitute 
agency, MTC will assume primary responsibility for establishing project priorities for funding in the 
absence of a substitute agency, including the reconciliation of conflicting positions and making any 
required trade-offs in the county . 

Tasks and Related Products 

I. General Tasks 

Serve as liaison and facilitator for county and city interests in reconciling local planning and funding 
project priorities for inclusion in MTC's Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Transportation · 
Improvement Program (TIP) and other appropriate regional efforts. Develop a technical advisory 
committee to assist with these tasks, that will include all relevant transportation interests in the 
county including highways, local streets and roads, transit and other modes as appropriate. 

Assist MTC in monitoring the progress of federal and state funded projects to ensure that project 
sponsors meet important project delivery deadlines, and funds do not expire. 

Participate in the Bay Area Partnership activities, including development of 

• regional criteria for short and long term transportation investments 
• priorities for regional and countywide transportation plans 
• regional sponsored legislation, and legislative advocacy positions 
• regional strategies to better operate and manage the system including ridesharing. 

2. MTS Management and Performance Tasks 

Prepare a Congestion Management Program (CMP) or other appropriate planning document (e.g. 
countywide plans, corridor studies, action plans, etc.) that will include the following tasks: 

Assist MTC in the refinement ofthe multi-modal Metropolitan Transportation System (MTS), and 
the development and implementation of performance measures for the MTS. 

Identify multimodal, operational strategies to relieve congestion and improve mobility on the MTS. 

Coordinate AB 434 investments with regional "traveler assistance" programs and activities, i.e. 
ridesharing, regional assistance telephone number, commute check program. 

Ensure that any county level travel demand models required to develop the CMPs or other county 
transportation planning documents are consistent with the recommendations of the Regional 
Modeling Coordination Study; this includes the development of highly consistent model components 
including use ofMTC's BAY CAST model currently under development. Models developed for 
CMP purposes will be reviewed against the MTC "Checklist" in effect at the time the CMP is 
prepared. 

3. Transportation/Land Use Coordination Tasks 

Assist the Commission in implementing its approved transportation/land use policy.PAGE 
107 

p: \section \acct\tda \contract\stp97 -98\solano. doc 



CMA Interagency Agreement 
FY 1997-1998 through FY 1999-2000 

Page 13 

4. Multimodal/Flexible Fund Programming Tasks 

Products 

Participate in developing principles and criteria for multimodal project screening, priority setting and 
programming. Multimodal priority setting processes will be integral to the RTP, RTIP, and TIP. 

Assist in the development of corridor management strategies for the I 998 RTP and Track 2. 

Solicit project proposals for flexible state and federal funds from local sponsoring agencies to be 
programmed in the federal TIP, in accordance with regional guidelines. 

Develop a Capital Improvement Program that reflects multi-modal emphases and priorities, as input 
to various processes including the RTP, TIP, RTIP/STIP, and sales tax expenditure plans. The CIP 
may be part of the CMP or other relevant county or corridor based plans that establish investment 
needs and priorities. 

Delivery Date 

CIP/County priority list for STP/CMAQ/FCR funds 
CMP or other appropriate planning document 

Sept. 1997 
Nov. 1997 

Estimated Cost by Funding Source 

MTCSTP 
Local 

TOTAL 

$300,000 
$ 38.868 
$338,868 

(88.53%) 
(!1.47%) 
(100.0%) 

Contractor shall not incur expenses in excess of $100,000 in STP funds until after issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed by MTC, based on receipt of federal funding. 

p: \section\acct\tda \contract\stp97 -98\cc.doc PAGE 108 



DATE 
TO: 
FROM: 

April 1, 1998 
STABoard 
Dan Christians 

s1ra 
AprilS, 1998 

Agenda Item 7.4 

RE: Amendment to Agreement with Moore, Iacofano and Goltsman (MIG) 

On July 9, 1997, the STA Board selected Moore, Iacofano and Goltsman (MIG) and authorized a 
$100,000 agreement with them to implement the Intercity Marketing and Promotions Program. This 
program was designed to increase awareness of intercity transit and promote highly visible 
promotional activities that would increase ridership on intercity transit services. 

Some of the marketing activities that have been completed to date include: 

e Held a successful Press Conference inaugurating the program on September 16, 1997. 
e Distributed press releases for the press conference, CityLink Route 30 service with Yolobus 

and the new I-80 HOV lane. 
e Updated the graphics for the www.SolanoLinks.com web site and Transportation Update. 
e Designed and printed 400 color bus cards for SolanoLinks and CityLinks Route 30. 
e Completed the new SolanoLinks video. 
e Preparing packets of schedules depicting all intercity transit routes in Solano. 
e Designing a full color newspaper supplement to be printed in Solano newspapers during May. 

The initial $100,000 of marketing services (MIG) and $50,000 of planning services (Nelson/Nygaard) 
has been funded from a $170,000 State Transit Assistance claim approved by the STA Board for the 
1997/98 Intercity Transit Coordination Implementation. The initial $100,000 of marketing funds has 
been fairly well committed to the completion of the initial tasks identified in the detailed scope of 
work. 

In order to get wide distribution on both the video and the newspaper supplements being prepared 
for Try Transit Week, May 10- 14, the remaining (already budgeted) $20,000 of STAF funds should 
be used to buy media time and/or buy space for distributing the newspaper supplements in various 
papers. Attached is an amended scope of work for the use of these remaining ST AF funds. The 
Project Team consisting of the consultants and transit operators will be asked to further detail the use 
of these additional marketing funds. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to execute the attached $20,000 amendment to the agreement with 
Moore, Iacofano and Goltsman (MIG) to conduct additional marketing and promotion activities using 
the remaining, already budgeted, $20,000 of 1997-98 State Transit Assistance Planning funds. 

PAGE 109 



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR 
SOLANO INTERCITY TRANSIT MARKETING AND PROMOTIONS 

Effective April 8, 1998, the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) and Moore, Iacofano and 
Goltsman (MIG) hereby mutually agree to amend the "Agreement for Solano Intercity Transit 
Marketing and Promotions" dated 9th day of July, 1997, to provide additional intercity marketing 
and promotional activities during 1997-98 (see Attachment A). The services under this agreement 
shall not exceed an additional twenty thousand ($20,000) and all additional services shall be 
completed no later than June 30, 1998. All other applicable terms and scope of the original agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement Solano 
Intercity Transit Marketing and Promotions the day and year first above written. 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

BY __________________________ __ 

Martin Tuttle, 
Executive Director 

MOORE, IACOFANO AND GOLTSMAN 

BY ____________________ ___ 

Daniel Iacofano, AICP 
Principal 

PAGE 110 



Attachment A 

Amendment to Agreement for Intercity Transit Marketing and Promotions 

Additional Scope of Services (AprilS, 1998 to June 30, 1998 

Work with the STA and the Project Marketing Team to implement the Try Transit Week marketing 
activities including but not limited to: 

1. Complete a shorter promotional version of the SolanoLinks video (i.e. 30 or 60 second 
spots), distribute copies of it throughout the region and buy time to show it on local cable 
TV stations prior to and during Try Transit Week (May 10-14). 

2. Print adequate number of copies and pay for insert costs to publish the newspaper supplement 
in various Solano newspapers prior to Try Transit Week (May 10-14). 

3. Conduct other activities the Project Team deems necessary to increase transit ridership and 
awareness by Solano residents (budget permitting). 

PAGE 111 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April!, 1998 
STABoard 
Dan Christians 

s1ra 
Apri/8, 1998 

Agenda item 7.5 

Amendment to Agreement with Michael G. Jones and Associates for Additional Bike 
Route Implementation Plan: 1997-98 Activities 

In July 1997, the STA Board approved a $10,000 amended agreement with Michael G. Jones and 
Associates to provide consulting services for the Bike Route Implementation Plan, a 1997-98 priority 
project. Those funds have now been expended but additional funds have been committed from 
Solano Commuter Information ($350) and received from private contributors ($2,400) to reprint our 
current bike map, and commence the design of the new BikeLinks map. The BikeLinks map is now 
planned to be a set of area maps prepared in a two-colors plus black, 8" Y2 X 11" format. 

We have submitted an application to the Yolo-Solano Air Quality Management District and expect 
to receive approximately $10,000 during next fiscal year. We are continuing to request contributions 
from private sponsors ($500 from businesses and agencies and $200 from bike clubs and other non
profits) to fund the additional costs of the design and production of the maps into next fiscal year. 

This amendment will allow Michael Jones to prepare the first few maps of this project and reimburse 
him for Countywide bike maps that were printed to be given out by SCI for Bike-to-Work Week, 
May 18-22. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to execute an amendment to the agreement with Michael G. Jones 
and Associates to provide $2,750 of additional Bike Route Implementation activities for 1997-98 
using $2,400 from private contributors for the BikeLinks map, and $350 from Solano Commuter 
Information for printing costs of our current bike map. 

PAGE 113 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR 
BIKE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) and Michael G. Jones Associates hereby mutually agree 
to amend the "Agreement for Bike Implementation Plan" dated the 14th day of August, 1996, and 
amended previously on July 9, 1997 to provide additional bicycle consulting services during fiscal 
year 1997-98. The services under this second amendment shall not exceed an additional two 
thousand, seven hundred and fifty dollars ($2, 750) and all additional scope of services shall be 
completed no later than June 3 0, 1998. All other applicable terms and scope of the original 
agreement, and first amendment to the agreement, shall remain in full force and effect. 

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

By: __________ _ 

Martin Tuttle 
Executive Director 

MICHAEL G. JONES AND ASSOCIATES 

By:_~~~------------
Michael G. Jones 
Consultant 

Date: ________ _ 

Date: ________ _ 

PAGE 114 



EXHffiiTA 

Second Amendment to Agreement for 
Bike Implementation Plan 

Additional Scope of Services (July l, 1997 to June 30, 1998) 

1. Work with the Solano Bicycle Advisory Committee, bike clubs and other interested 
organizations to commence the design of the first route maps for the BikeLinks projects 
showing various suggested bike routes and locations of sponsors using private contributions 
received to date. 

4. Printing costs for 1000 copies of existing Countywide Bicycle Plan for Bike to Work Week 
(to be reimbursed from Solano Commuter Information). 

PAGE 115 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April!, 1998 
STABoard 
Matt Todd 
Unmet Transit Needs 

Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda Item 7. 6 

On October 8, 1997, MTC held the Unmet Transit Needs Hearing in Fairfield at the Board of 
Supervisors chambers. Public testimony was taken and a summary of the issues raised was provided 
to each of the Solano transit operators. 

Working through the Solano Links Consortium, preliminary responses were provided to MTC for 
their Grant Review and Allocation Committee (GRAC) meeting held on February 11, 1998. The 
PCC and Consortium reviewed the responses and recommended STA Board approval. 

The attached list of issues raised along with the pertinent responses from the transit providers are 
attached in the memo from MTC dated February 11, 1998 to the GRAC. 

Staff, the PCC and the Consortium concur with the responses summarized in the MTC memo. 

Recommendation 

Recommend that the ST A Board incorporate the attached comments and responses pertaining to 
Solano County, summarized in the February 11, 1998 memo to the MTC GRAC committee into the 
Solano Intercity Transit Plan (5-Year Plan) by approving the attached resolution. 

PAGE 117 



RESOLUTION NO. 98-

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
APPROVING RESPONSES TO MTC'S 1998-99 UNMET NEEDS COMMENTS 

WHEREAS, on October 8, 1997 the Metropolitan Transportation Commission held an "Unrnet 
Needs" hearing to obtain public comments on the TDA "unrnet needs" for FY 1998-99; and 

WHEREAS, on February 11, 1998 MTC's Grant Review and Allocations Committee approved the 
attached summary of issues and responses from the Solano Links Consortium responding to issues 
made at the unrnet needs hearing; and 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 1998 the comments were reviewed and approved by the Solano 
Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC); and 

WHEREAS, the Solano Transportation Authority has reviewed the responses, and determined that 
they adequately respond to the comments in accordance with the Transportation Development Act; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Solano Transportation Authority hereby 
accepts the Solano County portion of attached responses to comments for MTC's 1998-99 Unmet 
Needs Findings (Exhibit A) recommended by the PCC and SolanoLinks Consortium, and 
incorporates the responses into the Five-Year Countywide Transportation Plan. 

Don Erickson, Chairman 
Solano Transportation Authority 

I Martin Tuttle, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certifY that the 
above and foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by said Solano 
Transportation Authority at a regular meeting thereof held this 8th day of April, 1997. 

Martin Tuttle, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 

PAGE 118 



EXHIBIT A 

PAGE 119 



Memorandum 

TO: Grant Review and Allo~ations committee 

FR: Executive Director 

METROPOLITAN 

TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION 

]"'"Ph P. BortMetroCenter 

101 Eighths.,.., 

Oakland, CA. 946074700 

TeJ. 510.464.7700 

1DD/ITY, 510.464.7769 

F<c 510.464.7848 

DATE: February 11, 1998 

RE: FY1998-99 Unmet Transit Needs for Napa. Solano, and Sonoma Counties 

In September and October 1997, MTC held the FY1998-99 unmet transit needs public hearings in Napa, 
Solano, and Sonoma counties. These public hearings are held to gather testimony regarding unmet 
transit needs in each of these counties for MTC to consider prior to making allocations of TDA funds for 
streets and roads purposes. In accordance with MTC' s adopted unmet transit needs policy (MTC 
Resolution 2380, Revised), we forwarded summaries of all issues raised at the public hearings and in 
written correspondence to the appropriate jurisdictions and requested preliminary responses to clarifY the 
issues. 

Pursuant to MTC Resolution 2380, GRAC will (1) receive the summary of issues raised during the 
unmet transit needs public hearing process (Attachment A), and (2) notifY jurisdictions of the issues that 
must be addressed through the annual update of their five-year countywide transportation plans 
(Attachment B). 

Subsequent to GRAC approval of the attachments, we will forward the lists of issues that must be 
addressed in the FY1998-2003 countywide plans to the appropriate counties. The countywide plans are 
due to MTC in April of each year as input to the annual TDA claims review. Working with the counties 
and the Paratransit Coordinating Councils (PCC's), MTC staff will evaluate the responses to the issues in 
the plans. This review will serve as the basis of our unmet transit needs recommendation for each of the 
counties to be considered by the Commission during the annual claims process beginning in June, 1997. 

Lawrence D. Dahms 

PAGE 120 



Solano County 

All jurisdictions/operators: 

• Transit services should run until 10:30 or 11 pm, to accommodate students and workers with 
late hours. 

• Better intercity service is needed, for transit users who live in one city and work in another. 
• Local transportation agencies need to work together to align services, to ensure that 

passengers can transfer without risk of arriving at the end of a route and finding that service 
on their connecting route has ended for the day. 

• Local transportation agencies should engage in a coordinated effort to better market existing 
services. 

• Public hearings on transportation issues should be held at a variety of times and locations to 
ensure input from different segments of the population (e.g., working commuters, senior 
citizens). 

CitvLink 

• Transit service to San Francisco/Oakland and Sacramento should be provided. A weekly 
service would facilitate travel by persons with medical appointments in these locations, and 
eliminate the need for bus-to-BART transfers. 

Yo lobus 

• Service from Dixon to Sacramento needs to be better coordinated, to facilitate transfers at the 
UC Davis Memorial Union. The potential for direct Dixon-to-Sacramento commute service 
should be examined. 

Vacaville CityCoach 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Transit service to Travis Air Force Base needs to be preserved . 
Transit service to Kaiser and other medical facilities is needed . 
Evening and weekend service hours should be extended . 
Routes need to be available to Solano Mall every half-hour, and longer service hours are 
needed to accommodate transfers at this location. 
Sunday service is needed to accommodate persons going to midday religious and/or social 
functions. . .. 
Paratransit service should be made available to areas no longer served by fixed-route transit 
as a result ofCityCoach's route restructuring. The service should be available between 7-
9am, 11 am-1 pm, and 4-6pm, and provide service to/from the nearest bus stop for the price of 
a local bus ride. 
ADA guidelines allow a substantial window on either side of a requested appointment for 
pick-up to occur. The safety ofparatransit passengers who must wait outside or in the dark 
for their ride to arrive may be compromised. 

PAGE 121 



Vallejo Transit 

• Longer service hours to Solano Community College and the Solano Mall are needed. 
• Sunday service should be provided. 

Dixon Readi-Ride 

• Transit service should be available between Dixon and Sacramento, and from Dixon to the 
Sacramento airport. 

• Weekend service is needed. 

Benicia Transit 

• Benicia should consider selling or donating surplus accessible vehicles to Benicia Yell ow 
Cab, so that organization can continue to provide medical trips for persons with disabilities. 

• Benicia should institute a taxi fare subsidy program for elderly and disabled residents. 

Fairfield-Suisun Transit 

• Bus service should be available at the Solano Mall to meet the last buses arriving from 
Solano Community College and Vallejo. 

• Saturday and Sunday service should be provided. 

PAGE 122 



SOLANO COUNTY 

Issues to be addressed in the FY1998-99 Countywide Transportation Plan: 

1. Local transportation agencies need: to work together to align services, to ensure that 
· passengers can transfer without riskof.arriving at' the· end ofa route and finding that service 
on their connecting route has ended for the day. (Multiple operators)' ·.' '· ·._.;n .. ~-,{!,,;,,~~. ~ 

Among the initial tasks of Solano's new Intercity Transit Consortium is the development of a 
Five-Year Intercity Development Plan to evaluate the efficiency of the existing intercity 
transit system, and to develop a consensus among operators for future service expansion 
should additional operating revenues become available. As part of this effort, the various 
operators are working together to identify potential service improvements and areas where 
better coordination between different routes may be needed. 

By June, the consortium should identify major transfer points between intercity routes and 
develop a list of recommendations for better coordination of schedules, if there are significant 
gaps between connecting services. 

2. Fairfield-Suisun Transit bus schedules need to be produced in Spanish. (Fairfield) 

Fairfield-Suisun Transit has not yet addressed this long-standing issue, which is being carried 
over from last year. Staff expect to adopt new schedules for many of the system's routes 
pending completion of the SRTP, and plan to translate the updated schedules into Spanish at 
that time. 

Issues that have been addressed and/or resolved for FY1998-99: 

I. Transit services should run until I 0:30 or llpm. to accommodate students and workers with 
late hours. (Multiple operators) 

The hours of operation for a route and the level of service for a route are analyzed on a 
periodic basis, whether through an operator's Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) or on-board 
surveys to determine passenger needs. If there is adequate demand for additional service, 
then the next question is whether sufficient operating funds are available to support the fixed
route service and the accompanying ADA-required paratransit service for those hours. 

The City of Dixon recently expanded its paratransit service hours of operation by three hours, 
and now offers service from 7am to 6pm weekdays. The change was implemented following 
completion of the city's first SRTP, and ailows the system to meet all scheduled intercity 
transit services that stop in Dixon. 

Vallejo Transit operates Routes 80 and 85 which travel from Vallejo to Del Norte BART, 
Solano Community College, and Fairfield untill 0:30pm on weekdays, to accommodate 
commuters returning home late and students attending evening classes. 

PAGE 123 



. . 

In Vacaville, surveys conducted in July 1997 for the city's SRTP show that present ridership 
demand would not support extending CityCoach hours of operation beyond their current 
schedule. Projected ridership during the additional service hours would not warrant the 
expense of providing the service. Similarly, in Fairfield, where service ends at 7:30pm on 
weekdays and 6pm on Saturday, it would not be productive to expand the current schedule in 
the face of limited demand . 

2. Better intercitv service is needed, for transit users who live in one city and work in another. 
(Multiple operators) 

Among the various Solano transit operators there are seven intercity bus routes. Four of these 
routes serve commuters from Solano traveling to Contra Costa, Alameda, and San Francisco 
counties by providing connections to BART. Two routes provide service between Fairfield 
and Vacaville, and from Fairfield, Vacaville, and Dixon to UC-Davis. Finally, Vallejo 
Transit provides intercity service between Vallejo and Fairfield and Solano Community 
College. Vallejo Transit also operates ferry service between Vallejo and downtown San 
Francisco, and feeder bus service is available from the Vallejo ferry terminal to other Solano 
County cities. 

Solano County's intercity transit operators have recently come together to form an Intercity 
Transit Consortium committed to improving the existing services. In the near term, 
consortium members plan to improye marketing of intercity transit routes and to develop a •. 
five-year plan to guide the development of future intercity service in Solano. ·· 

3. Local transportation agencies should engage in a coordinated effort to better market existing 
services. (Multiple operators) 

As noted above, Solano County's transit operators have recently formed an Intercity Transit 
Consortium to improve marketing of transit services and to improve coordination of services 
among the different operators. Through the regular meetings of the consortium, the operators 
will continue to work with other jurisdictions to ensure that buses from different systems 
arrive within close proximity to one another and that transfers are honored from one system 
to another. 

The consortium recently produced the county's first comprehensive map of intercity services, 
and is promoting use of Solano Commuter Information's toll-free telephone number as a 
countywide referral number for schedule and route information for all of the county's transit 
services. The group is currently funding a variety cf marketing activities such as press 
conferences, press releases, and jointly-pmduced schedules and maps to better promote the 
variety of transit services available to Solano residents. Work in progress includes a video 
marketing campaign for local cable channels, a new schedule format to customize maps and 
schedules for existing trips, and publishing the new intercity transit map in newspapers in 
Solano. 

PAGE 124 



' 

4. Public hearings of transportation issues should be held at a variety of times and locations to 
ensure input from different segments of the population. (Multiple operators) 

In addition to MTC's annual unmettransit needs hearing, there are a variety of other avenues 
through which Solano County residents can raise their concerns about transportation issues. 
Each transit system in the county has an elected Board or Council that is responsible for 
setting policies for the system. These elected officials can be addressed at regularly 
scheduled meetings or through correspondence about the transit systems they operate. 
Transit staff who are responsible for day-to-day operations are also available to respond to 
any comments. There are also other times when public meetings are held, for example when 
a route is proposed to change, and these are often scheduled to facilitate attendance of the 
interested parties and passengers who ride the service. The Solano Paratransit Coordinating 
Council holds monthly meetings which are open to the public, and solicits public input on 
transit and paratransit services throughout the county. Input on the systems may also be 
received through the extensive public outreach and surveys that are generally conducted 
during updates of individual operators' Short-Range Transit Plans (SRTP's). Citizen 
committees organized in local communities also provide feedback on area transit services. 
Taken together, these forums offer a multiplicity of opportunities for concerned citizens to 
present their transportation concerns to responsible parties. 

5. Transit service to San Francisco/Oakland and Sacramento should be provided. A weekly 
service would facilitate travel by persons with medical appointments in these locations, and 
eliminate the need for bus-to-BART transfers. (CityLink) 

The primary purpose ofCityLink's Route 20 service is to facilitate intercity travel between 
Fairfield and Vacaville. CityLink Route 30 is primarily a commuter service designed to 
serve those working and studying at the UC-Davis campus. These services share transfer 
locations and maintain transfer agreements with many different systems, allowing travel to 
locations beyond Solano County. For example, passengers can continue on to Sacramento 
through a transfer to Yolo bus in Davis. Passengers can also transfer to Vallejo Transit's ferry 
for direct service to San Francisco. Finally, transfers to express bus routes from Vallejo and 
Fairfield are possible for travel south of Solano, including the San Francisco/Oakland area. 
While these latter options do require bus-to-BART transfers, using limited operating funds to 
duplicate BART service from the transfer points into the Bay Area urban core would not be 
cost-effective. 

Neither of the City Link routes is designed to solely handle medical trips, though many 
medical facilities can be accessed via City Link and the local services it connects with. 
Furthermore, ADA complementary paratransit service is available to all destinations served 
by City Link for persons who have difficulty using traditional fixed-route services or making 
inter-operator transfers. Finally, in response to an unmet transit needs issue raised last year, 
Solano Paratransit has instituted weekly service to Davis, largely driven by a desire of Solano 
residents to attend medical appointments in that community. 

PAGE 125 



6. Service from Dixon to Sacramento needs to be better coordinated. to facilitate transfers at the 
UC Davis Memorial Union. The potential for direct Dixon-to-Sacramento commute service 
should be examined CYolobus/CitvLink). 

Y olobus staff and Solano Transportation Authority staff modified the City Link Route 30 
schedule when Yolobus took over operatie>ns of this route last fall. Facilitating passenger 
transfers at the UC-Davis Memorial Union was a major consideration when revising the 
schedule. 

Of the four eastbound trips from Dixon to Davis, the first trip has a one-minute wait for 
Y olobus Route 43 express service to Sacramento, and a twenty-minute wait for the Yolobus 
Route 42 regular service to Sacramento. The three remaining runs from Dixon to Davis 
require a four-minute wait at UC-Davis for the scheduled departure ofYolobus Route 42 to 
Sacramento. 

Heading westbound from Davis to Dixon, the first three trips depart from UC-Davis ten 
minutes after the scheduled arrival of Y olobus Route 42 from Sacramento. The last trip 
departs four minutes from the scheduled arrival of the Yolobus Route 43 express run from 
Sacramento. 

Staff feels that these are reasonable waiting times for connections between these services. 
The possibility of direct sen,ice from Solano into Sacramento will be explored as part of the 
S~lano Intercity Transit Consortium's Five-Year Plan, to be completed this summer. 

7. Transit service to Travis Air Force Base needs to be preserved. (Vacaville) 

Service to Travis AFB was initiated in May 1996 as a trial route, and was heavily publicized 
and marketed. As part of Vacaville's Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) update, an analysis of 
the route's performance was conducted during the spring of 1997, approximately one year 
later. Weekday ridership averaged 22-25 passengers per 12-hour service day, or roughly 2.2 
riders per hour. Saturday ridership averaged between 7-9 passengers per day, or 1.1 riders 
per hour of operation. Given such low ridership, the SRTP recommended cancellation of this 
route, as part of a systemwide route restructuring. 

8. Transit service to Kaiser and other medical facilities is needed. (Vacaville) 

When Vacaville's new route structure was implemented in January 1998, hourly bus service 
was made available to the new Kaiser outpatient medical facility. All other Vacaville-based 
medical facilities will continue to be served. 

9. Evening and weekend service hours should be extended. (Vacaville) 

Based on surveys conducted for the Vacaville CityCoach SRTP and completed in July 1997, 
present ridership demand does not support extending City Coach hours of operation beyond 
what is now available. Expanding service hours would raise the system's operating costs 

PAGE 126 



I 0. Routes need to be available to Solano Mall every half-hour. and longer service hours are 
needed to accommodate transfers at this location. (Vacaville) 

Vacaville CityCoach does not provide service to Solano Mall, which is in the city of 
Fairfield. However, hourly service from Vacaville to the mall is available via CityLink 
Route 20, which provides round-trip service between Vacaville and Fairfield. Current 
ridership on the route, roughly I 3 passengers per service hour, does not seem to warrant 
doubling of service between the two cities. 

Data collected for Vacaville's I 997 SRTP update show that a maximum offive passengers 
disembark from intercity services in Vacaville after local CityCoach service terminates for 
the day. Vacaville transit staff have determined it is not economically feasible to extend the 
service to accommodate such a small number of riders. 

I I. Sunday service is needed to accommodate persons going to midday religious and/or social 
functions. 

Expanded weekend service was evaluated as a part of the 1997 SRTP update. Based on data 
collected and rider comments, current demand does not support the additional costs that 
would be incurred in expanding CityCoach service hours. 

12. Paratransit service should be made available to areas no longer served by fixed-route transit 
as a result ofCityCoach's route restructuring. The service should be available between 7-
9am, II am-I pm, and 4-6pm. and provide service to/from the nearest bus stop for the price of 
a local bus ride. {Vacaville) 

Using Vacaville's Special Services paratransit program provides door-to-door service 
throughout the city for eligible elderly and disabled residents. Using the city's paratransit 
vehicles as a door-to-door fixed route service would violate the city's paratransit guidelines, 
and would result in an inability to provide necessary paratransit services to qualified 
passengers. 

13. ADA guidelines allow a substantial window on either side of a requested appointment for 
pick-up to occur. The safety of paratransit passengers who must wait outside or in the dark 
for their ride to arrive may be compromised. (Vacaville) 

Vacaville transit staff have received no reports of any compromise to rider safety, from fixed
route or paratransit passengers. Their ADA passengers ha\'e a window of 15 minutes either 
side of the scheduled pick-up time. However, passengers may wait indoors, and drivers will 
honk to signal their arrival or go to the door to assist passengers with mobility impairments. 

I 4. Longer service hours to Solano Community College and the Solano Mall are needed. 
{Vallejo) 

The last northbound Vallejo Transit Route 85 run heads to Solano Community College and 
Solano Mall at 9:45pm; the last southbound bus leaves the college at I 0:45pm to return to 

PAGE 127 



• 

Vallejo. Historically, these late hours have adequately served Vallejo residents attending 
evening classes at the college or returning from the mall. 

15. Sunday service should be provided. (Vallejo) 

Increasing bus service to include Sunday and holiday service has always been a high priority 
for Vallejo. However, the provision of this expanded level of transit service has always been 
contingent upon increased levels of operating funds from FT A, TDA, or STA sources . 
Unfortunately, subsidy levels continue not grow sufficiently enough at the federal and state 
levels to meet this request, in fact, the most recent federal transit appropriations bill slashed 
operating assistance funds by more than half. Therefore, expansion to Sunday or holiday 
service is not planned at this time. 

16. Transit service should be available between Dixon and Sacramento, and from Dixon tothe 
Sacramento airport. (Dixon) 

CityLink's intercity service provides Dixon residents with transit connections to Davis, 
where they may in turn transfer to Yolobus routes that run to Sacramento. Readi-Ride, 
Dixon's local dial-a-ride service, provides connections to all City Link runs stopping in 
Dixon. 

Y olobus has recently begun to provide excellent bus service to the Sacramento airport from 
the city of Davis, and as mentioned above, Dixon rt'sidents can use City Link to make the 
connection to Yolobus in Davis. The Davis Airporter, a private airport transportation service, 
also provides service from Dixon to the Sacramento Airport. It is very doubtful that there is a 
sufficient demand in Dixon alone to make airport transportation feasible. City staff is aware 
of only one individual who has expressed interest in airport service. Dixon's population is 
relatively small, and flights leave the airport at all hours of the day making efficient and cost
effective service impractical. 

17. Weekend service is needed. (Dixon) 

In the past two years, as Dixon prepared its Five- and Ten-Year Transit Plan, community 
rriembers have had a variety of opportunities to voice their opinions on Readi-Ride service. 
The formation of the Dixon Transit Steering Committee, on board surveys ofReadi-Ride 
patrons, a random telephone survey, public hearings at City Council, as well as phone calls to 
City Hall personnel - all have afforded their customers, and potential customers, the 
opportunity to provide input on Readi-Ride. To date, Dixon residents have expressed greater 
interest in expanding and improving weekday service than starting Saturday service. 
Accordingly, last year Readi-Ride expanded its weekday hours by three hours, to provide 
service from 7am to 6pm. 

Dixon's Transit Plan shows that service for school activities is by far the greatest demand. 
When school is out of session, ridership is significantly reduced. The Dixon Senior Center is 
also a popular destination; however, the center does not provide service on Saturday. 
Banking, shopping and other leisure interests may generate some rides, but indications to this 

PAGE 128 



point demonstrate a disproportionate ratio of cost to numbers of rides. In addition to need, 
issues such as personnel, vehicle reliability and safety issues would need to be addressed. 

Dixon has demonstrated a commitment to respond to requests of expansion in areas that are 
supported by the community (i.e., expanded weekday hours). Should demand for Saturday 
service become larger, the issue will be reviewed again. 

: 18. Benicia should consider selling or donating surplus accessible vehicles to Benicia Yellow 
Cab, so that organization can continue to provide medical trips for persons with disabilities. 
(Benicia) 

The policy of the City of Benicia is to dispose of surplus equipment through public auction 
where all parties, including Yell ow Cab, have an equal chance to bid on the equipment. 

19. Benicia should institute a taxi fare subsidy program for elderly and disabled residents. 
(Benicia) 

Benicia has not implemented a taxi fare subsidy program because the taxi company currently 
serving the city already has a reduced fare program for its dderly and disabled passengers. 
However, Benicia does sponsor a dial-a-ride program that offers reduced rate fares to elderly 
and disabled residents. 

20. Bus service should be available at the Solano Mall to meet the last buses arriving from 
Solano Communitv College and Vallejo. (Fairfield) 

21. Saturday and Sunday Service should be provided. (Fairfield) 

Fairfield-Suisun Transit provides service on Saturdays from 9am to 6pm. Previous surveys 
have shown little demand for late evening and Sunday service. Instead, Fairfield-Suisun 
Transit has chosen to use its operating funds to meet morning and afternoon peak period 
demand and alleviate unacceptable load factors at these times. 

PAGE 129 



. . 

333 Sunset Avenue, Suite 200 
Suisun Oty, CaJffomia 94585 

Nea Code 707 

422-6491 • Fax 438-0656 January 16, 1998 

MembetY--

Benida 
Dixon 
Fairfield 
Rio VJS!a 
Solano County 
Suisun Oty 
Vacaville 
Vallejo 

Martin Tuttle 
Executive Director 

Ed Stewart 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
101 Eighth Street 
Oakland, CA 94607 

Dear Ed: 

Enclosed is the coordinated response to the Solano County Unrnet Transit Needs 
Hearing held on October 8, 1997. Also attached are more detailed responses from some 
of the Solano transit operators. Please call me with any questions or comments. 

Attachments 

Sincerely, 

Matt Todd 
Project Manager 

PAGE 130 



' ' 

Issues Raised at Solano County Unmet Transit Needs Hearing: October 8, 1997 

ALL JURISDICTIONS/OPERATORS: 

Unmet Need: Transit services should run untill0:30 or 11 p.m., to accommodate students and 
workers with late hours. 

Response: The hours of operation for a route and the level of service are analyzed on a 
periodic basis, whether through Short Range Transit Plans (SRTP) or on-board surveys to 
determine the operating hours of a route. If there is adequate demand for a service, then the next 
question is how much operating funds are available to support the fixed route service and 
accompanying complementary service for those hours. 

For instance, Vallejo Transit operates Routes 80 and 85 which travels along I-80 between El 
Cerrito Del Norte BART, Vallejo, Solano College, and Fairfield until10:30 P.M on weekdays. 
Local routes operate until 7:30 P.:VL to I 0:00P.M, depending on the route. Operating all local 
routes until 10:30 P.M, to match Routes 80 and 85 is a high priority, however, there is currently 
no additional transit operating revenues with which to expand service. 

In Vacaville though, based on surveys conducted for the Vacaville City Coach SRTP completed 
in July 1997, present ridership demand would not support extending City Coach hours of 
operation beyond what is now available. The ridership on the additional service would not 
warrant the cost of providing the service. 

The City ofDixon has expanded Dixon Readi-Ride hours, after conducting it's first 5 & 10 Year 
· Transit Plan, by two hours in the morning and one hour in the afternoon so the system now can 
meet up with all the intercity scheduled stops. For Dixon, expansion beyond the current hours 
does not seem warranted. There are no additional intercity services to link to; there are no 
college courses offered in the community; and the city has had no indication that working 
individuals who are transit dependent are seeking such services. 

In Fairiield, local bus service is provided on weekdays until 7:30 p.m. and on Saturday until 6:00 
p.m. These hours are adequate for the majority of their community and represents a full day of 
service. Given that demand drops off dramatically after 6:00 p.m., it would not be productive to 
expand the current schedule. Also, it has been their policy to use their limited resources to 
increase service during the morning and afternoon peak periods to alleviate unacceptable load 
factors. 

The following is a list of all the operating times for local and intercity routes of Solano Operators. 

PAGE 131 



Weekday Saturday Sunday 

INTERCITY SERVICES 
Benicia Transit 5:00AM-7:56P.M. 8: JO AM-6:44P.M. No Service 

Route 20 7:00 AM - 7: 12 P.M. 9:30AM-5:30P.M. No Service 

Route 30 6:53 AM. - 6:05 P.M. No Service No Service 

Route40 5:I0 AM- 8:JJ P.M. No Service No Service 

Route 80 4:17AM.- !0:42P.M. No Service No Service 

Route 85 5:20AM- 11:05 P.M. 6:30AM.- I0:40 P.M. No Service 

Route 90 4:55AM.- !0:32P.M. No Service No Service 

LOCAL SERVICES 
Dixon Local 7:00AM.- 6:00P.M. No Service No Service 

FF/Suisun Local 
Route I 6:30AM - 7:30 P.M. 9:30AM.- 5:30P.M. No Service 

Route 2 6:00AM-7:00P.M. 9:00AM.- 6:00P.M. No Service 

Route Jab 6:30AM.- 7:30P.M. 9:00AM.- 5:30P.M. No Service 

Route4 6:30AM- 7:00 P.I<'L 8:30AM. - 6:00 P.M. No Service 

Route 5/6 6:00AM.- 7:00P.M. 9:00AM.- 6:00P.M. No Service 

Route 7 7:00AM-7:30P.M. I 0:00 AM. - 4:30 P.M. No Service 

Rio Vista Local 8:30AM.- 4:30P.M. No Service No Service 

Vacaville Local 
Route Ia 7:15AM.- 6:00P.M. 9:30AM.- 5:00P.M. No Service 

. Route lb 7:30AM-6:30P.M. 9:30AM.- 4:30P.M. No Service 

Route2a 7:00AM.- 6:00P.M. 9:00AM.- 5:00P.M. No Service 

Route 2b 7:00AM.- 6:00P.M. 9:00AM-5:00P.M. No Service 

Route 5 7:30AM.- 6:00P.M. 9:30AM.- 4:30P.M. No Service 

Vallejo Local 
Route I 5:45AM.- I0:30 P.M. 6:30AM.- I0:30 P.M. No Service 

· Route 2 4:35AM.- J0:I0 P.M. 6:45AM.- IO: JO P.M. No Service 

Route 3 6:30 AM. - 7:00 P.M. I0:00 AM.- 5:30P.M. No Service 

Route 4 6:55AM.- 6:30P.M. 8:50AM.- 6:00P.M. No Service 

Route 5 5:30AM- 8:30P.M. 7:30AM- 7:40 P.I<'L No Service 

Route 6 5:50AM.- 8:30P.M. 8:50AM-6:30P.M No Service 

PAGE 132 



' 

Unmet Need: Better intercity service is needed, for transit users who live in city and work in 
another. 

Response: Between the various Solano transit operators, there are seven intercity bus 
routes. Four of these routes focus on transporting those who commute to Contra Costa or 
beyond (such as to Alameda or San Francisco). Route 85 serves Vallejo, the Solano Community 
College, and Fairfield. Route 20 serves Fairfield and Vacaville. Route 30 serves Fairfield, 
Vacaville, Dixon, and UC Davis, with a schedule designed for those who commute to UC Davis. 
Y olobus also funds Route 220 that serves Fairfield, Vacaville, Wmters and Davis. 

The Solano operators have also entered into a new Memorandum of Understanding as called for 
in the Intercity Transit Coordination Plan, completed in September 1997, to form an Intercity 
Transit Consortium. The plan created a two year work plan of what the Intercity Transit 
Consortium would focus on in the short term including strengthening existing services and 
developing a Five Year Intercity Development Plan, improving marketing efforts, and also 
addressing ADA paratransit services on the intercity scale. Future work plans would be created 
by the Intercity Transit Consortium. 

Operators in Solano, currently providing intercity services, are committed to improving the 
existing systems. Those only providing local service are committed to providing the best possible 
connections to the intercity services traveling through their service areas. 

Unmet Need: Local transportation agencies need to work together to align services, to ensure 
that passengers can transfer without risk of arriving at the end of a route and finding that 
service on their connecting route has ended for the day. 

Response: Transit operators in Solano have always worked closely with their adjacent 
operators to ensure that buses meet within close proximity to each other, so that buses arrive · 
within a few minutes of a connecting bus, and so that transfers are honored from one system to 
another. The operators have also formed the Intercity Transit Consortium this year with a 
Memorandum of Understanding agreement. As mentioned earlier, the Intercity Transit 
Consortium has a two year work plan addressing such issues as improving intercity services, 
marketing and ADA paratransit. In addition, operators in Solano have always endeavored to 
operate as late as feasible for all routes, both intercity and intracity. 

Unmet Need: Local transportation agencies should engage in a coordinated effort to better 
market existing services. 

Response: The transit operators in Solano have entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding agreement to form the SolanoLinks Intercity Transit Consortium. One of the 
goals of this group is to improve the marketing of all the intercity transit systems in Solano. The 
Intercity Transit Consortium has a budget of$100,000 for FY 97-8 to fund such activities as 
press conferences and releases, joint schedules and maps, focus groups on the effectiveness of the 
marketing campaign and comparisons of ridership before and after the campaign. To date, the 
Consortium has completed a comprehensive intercity services map under the SolanoLinks name, 

PAGE 133 



a theme we plan on using as a common name for intercity routes traveling in Solano County. This 
effort also focuses on the existing 1-800-53-KMUTE number as a one point toll free information 
service for all transit services in Solano County. The Consortium has also held two focus groups 
to provide input on Solano transit services, both from current transit users and non transit users. 
Work in progress includes a video marketing campaign for local cable channels, a new schedule 
format to customize maps and schedules for existing trips, and publishing our intercity transit map 
in newspapers in Solano. 

U nmet Need: Public hearings on transportation issues should be held at a variety of times and 
locations to ensure input from different segments of the population (e.g., working commuters, 
senior citizens). 

Response: The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) holds an annual ''Unmet 
Needs Hearing" in the evening, so that those that work can also attend. Transportation to these 
Unmet Needs Hearings is provided upon request for those that are transit dependent. 

Beyond the Unmet Needs Hearings, each transit system has an elected Board or Council that is 
responsible for that system. These elected officials can be addressed at regularly scheduled 
meetings or through correspondence about the transit systems they operate. City staff who are 
responsible for day-to-day operations are also available to respond to any comments. There are 
also other times when public meetings are held, for example when a route is proposed to change, 
and these are often scheduled to facilitate attendance of the interested parties and passengers who 
ride the service. 

Input on the systems may also be received from updates of SRTPs, contact with social service 
. providers and programs (including at PCC meetings), periodic on-off counts, 
driver/administration meetings, passenger surveys, coordination meetings with other agencies and 
operators, articles in a citywide newsletters, and citizen committees organized in communities. · 

The Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council is also a forum available to the public to discuss 
transit issues. 

CiTYLINK 

Unmet Need: Transit service to San Francisco/Oakland and Sacramento should be provided. 
A weekly service would facilitate travel by persons with medical appointments in these 
locations, and eliminate the need for bus-to-BART transfers. 

Response: The primary purpose for Citylink Route 20 is to facilitate intercity travel 
between Fairfield and Vacaville. Route 30 is primarily a commuter service designed around those 
working at the U. C. Davis campus. These services also have tFansfer locations and transfer 
agreements with many different systems. Passengers can continue on to Sacramento through a 
transfer to Y olobus in Davis, or transfer to Vallejo transit or the BART Express for travel south 
of Solano including the San Francisco/Oakland area. 

PAGE 134 



Neither of these services are designed to solely handle medical trips and is not a reasonable need 
to meet, though many medical facilities can be accessed through the above mentioned services 
and the local services they connect with. All the fixed route buses in Solano are also in full ADA 
compliance for accessibility standards for those passengers who need assistance in boarding .. 

The ADA defined intercity fixed routes (that are subject to complementary paratransit service) 
in Solano include Benicia Transit's service to Pleasant Hill BART, Vallejo Transit's Route 85 
from Solano Mall to Vallejo and Citylink Route 20 from Fairfield to Vacaville. All these routes 
have complementary paratransit service the meet the required ADA regulations for those who 
cannot use the regular fixed route system. 

Yo LOBUS 

Unmet Need: Service from Dixon to Sacramento needs to be better coordinated, to facilitate 
transfers at the UC Davis Memorial Union. The potential for direct Dixon-to-Sacramento 
commute service should be examined. 

Response: Y olobus staff and STA staff recently modified the Citylink Route 30 schedule 
when Y olobus took over operations this fall. We took into account transfers at the UC Davis 
Memorial Union when modifYing the schedule. 

Of the four eastbound trips from Dixon to Davis, the first trip has a twenty (20) minute wait for 
the Yolobus Route 42 to Sacramento scheduled departure or a one (1) minute wait for the 
Yolobus Route 43 Express scheduled departure from the U.C. Davis Memorial Union stop. The 
three (3) remaining trips have a four (4) minute wait for the departure of the Yolobus Route 42 

· to Sacramento. 

Of the four westbound trips, the first three (3) Davis to Dixon trips depart 10 minutes after the 
scheduled arrival ofYolobus Route 42 from Sacramento at the U.C. Davis Memorial Union. The 
last trip has a forty seven ( 4 7) minute wait from the scheduled arrival of the Y olobus Route 42 
or a four (4) minute wait from the scheduled arrival of the Yolobus Route 43 Express at the U.C. 
Davis Memorial Union. 

These are reasonable transfer waiting times considering the distances between the points these 
routes are serving. 

The issue of direct service from Solano into Sacramento is examined in the 1995 Solano Intercity 
Transit Concept Plan and should be further addressed in the upcoming Intercity Five Year Plan 
to be completed this summer. 

VACAVILLE CJTYCOACH 

Unmet Need: Transit service to Travis Air Force Base needs to be preserved. 

Response: Service to Travis AFB was initiated in May 1996 as a trial route. This route 

PAGE 135 



. 
• 

was heavily publicized and marketed. A route analysis was conducted during the spring of 1997. 
Weekend ridership average between 7-9 passengers per Saturday (1.1 riders/hour). Weekday 
ridership average 22-25 passengers per 12-hour days (2.2 riders/hour). In May 1997, Saturday 
service was canceled. Low ridership does not warrant continuance of this route. With the 
restructuring of Vacaville's routes in January 1998, weekday service to Travis AFB will be 
discontinued . 

U nmet Need: Transit service to Kaiser and other medical facilities is needed. 

Response: When Vacaville's new route structure begins in January 1998, hourly bus 
service will be available to the new Kaiser outpatient medical facility. All other Vacaville based 
medical facilities will continue being served. Additionally, this same route will accommodate 
riders needing transit service to the recently opened Solano Community College satellite campus. 

Unmet Need: Evening and weekend service hours should be extended. 

Response: Based on surveys conducted for the Vacaville City Coach SRTP completed 
in July 1997, present ridership demand does not support extending City Coach hours of operation 
beyond what is now available. 

Unmet Need: Routes need to be available to Solano Mall every half-hour, and longer service 
hours are needed to accommodate transfers at this location. 

Response: Vacaville City Coach does not provide service to Solano Mall. This service 
is provided by Fairfield-Suisun Transit (Route 20) and YoloBus (Routes 30/220). From the 

· SRTP completed in June 1997, passenger data shows that a maximum of five passengers deboard 
intercity buses in Vacaville after regular city bus service terminates for the day. It is not 
economically feasible to extend their citywide bus service an hour to accommodate so few riders. 

Unmet Need: Sunday service is needed to accommodate persons going to midday religious 
and/or social functions. 

Response: Based on the SRTP completed in June 1997 and rider comments, current 
demand does not support the additional costs in expanding City Coach service hours. 

Unmet Need: Paratransit service should be made available to areas no longer served by fixed
route transit as a result of City Coach's route restructuring. The service should be available 
between 7-9 a.m., 11 a.m.-I p.m., and~ p.m., and provide service to/from the nearest bus stop 
for the price of a local bus ride. 

Response: Using Vacaville's Special Services vehicles as a door-to-door fixed route 
service would violate their paratransit guidelines, and would result in their inability to provide 
necessary paratransit services to qualified ADA passengers. Vacaville has an inventory of three 
Special Service vehicles. Two of these are in full time service; the third is held as a 'back-up' 
vehicle. This service is available only through a 'reservation' process to qualified seniors and 
disabled riders. 

PAGE 136 



. . 

Unmet Need: ADA guidelines allow a substantial window on either side of a requested 
appointment for pick-up to occur. The safety of paratransit passengers who must wait outside 
or in the dark for their ride to arrive may be compromised. 

Response: Vacaville prides itself in its extremely low crime rate. They have received no 
reports of any compromise to rider safety, whether fixed route or paratransit. Their ADA 
passengers have a window of 15 minutes either side of the scheduled pick-up time. City staff 
believes this window is a reasonable standard to maintain. 

FAIRFIELD-SUISUN TRANSIT 

Unmet Need: Bus service should be available at the Solano Mall to meet the last buses arriving 
from Solano Community College and Vallejo. 

Response: Local bus service is provided on weekdays until 7:30 p.m. and on Saturday 
unti16:00 p.m. These hours are adequate for the majority of our community and represent a full 
day of service. Given that demand drops off dramatically after 6:00 p.m., it would not be 
productive to expand the current schedule. Also, it has been our policy to use our limited 
resources to increase service during the morning and afternoon peak periods to alleviate 
unacceptable load factors. 

Unmet Need: Saturday and Sunday service should be provided. 

Response: This issue is addressed in the answer above. 

VALLEJO TRANSIT 

Unmet Need: Longer service hours to Solano Community College and the Solano Mall are 
needed. 

Response: The last Vallejo Transit Route 85 bus heads northbound to Solano College and 
. the Solano Mall leaves Vallejo at 9:45 P.M The last Vallejo Transit Route 85 bus heads 

southbound to Vallejo and leaves Solano College at 10:45 P"\1. In the past, this has been adequate 
to meet the needs ofV allejo residents who attend evening classes at Solano College or who wish 
to return from Solano Mall. No additional late night service is planned for this route unless there 
is significant demand. 

Unmet Need: Sunday service should be provided. 

Response: Increasing bus service to include Sunday and holiday service has always been 
a high priority for Vallejo. However, the provision of this expanded level of transit service has 
always been contingent upon increased levels of operating funds from FTA, TDA, or STA. 
Unfortunately, subsidy levels continue not grow sufficiently enough at the federal and state levels 
to meet this request. Therefore, expansion to Sunday or holiday service is not planned at this 
time. 

PAGE 137 



DIXON READ!-RIDE 

Unmet Need: Transit service should be available between Dixon and Sacramento, and from 
Dixon to the Davis airport. 

Response: As stated in response #2 (in the correspondence from the City of Dixon to the 
STA attached), the primary focus ofReadi-Ride is to provide intracity service. Intercity service 
is being looked at from a more regional approach and should involve a coordinated effort. 

It is not feasible for Dixon to be a provider of major intercity service. They do have a role in the 
exploration and implementation of intercity travel which offer access to larger full service 
communities. They will continue to participate in planning activities of such services. 

Mission service statements, vehicle equipment and limited personnel resources not-withstanding, 
it doesn't make good business sense for Dixon to provide service from Dixon to the Sacramento 
International Airport when there are already some existing options in their community. Y olobus 
has recently begun to provide excellent bus service to the International Airport from the 
communities ofDavis, Woodland and Sacramento. Citylink makes the connection to Yolobus; 
Dixon residents can access Citylink. The Davis Airporter, an airport transportation service, also 
provides a service from Dixon to the Sacramento Airport. 

It is very doubtful that there is a sufficient demand in Dixon alone to make airport transportation 
feasible. City staff is aware of only one individual who has expressed interest in this service. 
Dixon's population is relatively small and flights leave the airport at all hours of the day making 
efficient and cost effective service impractical. 

Unmet Need: Weekend service is needed. 

Response: In the past two years, community members have had a variety of opportunities 
to voice their opinions on Readi-Ride service. The formation of the Dixon Transit Steering 
Committee, on board surveys ofReadi-Ride patrons, a random telephone survey, public hearings 
at City Council, as well as phone calls to City Hall personnel - all have afforded their customers, 
and potential customers, the opportunity to provide input on Readi-Ride. To date, there has been 
more interest in expanding and improving weekday service than starting Saturday service. 

While their customer patterns are changing, service for school activities is by far the greatest 
demand. When school is out of session, ridership is significantly reduced. Service to the Dixon 
Senior Center is also a popular destination; however, the center does not provide service on 
Saturday. Banking, shopping and other leisure interests may generate some rides, but indications 
to this point demonstrate a disproportionate ratio of cost vs. numbers or rides. In addition to 
need, issues such as personnel, vehicle reliability and safety issues· would need to be addressed. 

Dixon has demonstrated a commitment to respond to requests of expansion in areas that are 
supported by the community (i.e. the expanded weekday hours). Should demand for Saturday 
service become larger, the issue would be reviewed again. 

PAGE 138 



.. 

BENICIA TRANSIT 

U nmet Need: Benicia should consider selling or donating surplus accessible vehicles to Benicia 
Yell ow Cab, so that organization can continue to provide medical trips for persons with 
disabilities. 

Response: The policy of the City of Benicia is to dispose of equipment through public 
auction where all parties have an equal chance to bid on equipment. 

Unmet Need: Benicia should institute a taxi fare subsidy program for elderly and disabled 
residents. 

Response: The City ofBenicia has not implemented a taxi fare subsidy program because 
the current taxi company operating in Benicia already has a reduced elderly and handicapped fare 
and there are no additional IDA funds to start a program like this. Also, the City of Benicia 
sponsors a dial-a-ride program that offers reduced rate fares to elderly and handicapped. 

PAGE 139 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April 2, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 
Office Lease Agreement 

April 8, 1998 
Agenda item 7. 7 

Our current lease for office space expires April 30. We have negotiated with our landlord, the 
Wiseman Company, to extend the lease for an additional year on the basis of a 3% increase 
($2,820/month to $2,905/month, including utilities and janitorial). The funding for office space at 
this level can be absorbed in the current year budget and is proposed in the 1998/99 budget (agenda 
item 8.1). 

The landlord agreed to our continued request to include a 30-day notice in the proposed agreement. 
This provision provides us with the flexibility to move during the new fiscal year, if necessary, 
without a penalty. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the Executive Director to sign the lease extension agreement as outlined in the attached 
agreement. 

Attachment 

PAGE 141 



333 SUNSET AVENUE 

LEASE EXTENSION 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 181
h day of April, 1998, by and 

between 333 Sunset, Inc., c/o The Wiseman Company LLC, as manager and 
agent for owner, hereinafter known as Lessor, and Solano Transportation 
Authority, hereinafter known as Lessee. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee herein have heretofore entered into an 
Agreement of Lease dated February 6, 1996 and subsequent Lease Extension 
dated April1, 1997, for an original term of thirteen (13) months and a twelve (12) 
month extension for the premises commonly known as 333 Sunset. 

WHEREAS, Lessor is desirous of extending the term of said Lease for a further 
period and amending said Lease as hereinafter set forth: 

1. The term of said lease is hereby extended for a period of twelve (12) 
months commencing May 1, 1998, and ending April 30, 1999. 

2. The new Monthly Base Rent shall be $2,905.00 per month. 

3. Except as hereby expressly extended and amended, all of the terms, 
convenants and conditions of said Lease are hereby ratified, approved, 
confirmed, and incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth 
herein. 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be binding upon and inure to the legal benefit of the 
parties hereto and to their respective legal representatives, successors and or 
assigns. 

LESSEE: 

Solano Transportation Authority 

Martin Tuttle, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 

Date 

C:\My Documents\Kirk\Lea.o;es\Leasc Exrension\Solano Trans Authority dr.doc 

LESSOR: 

The Wiseman Company, LLC 

Doyle Wiseman as Manager and 
Agent for Owner 

Date 

PAGE 142 
STA File 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April!, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 

s1ra 

Summary of Solano Intercity Transportation Providers 

Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda Item 7.8 

As requested by Mayor David Fleming at the March STA Board meeting, STA staff has provided the 
following summary of intercity transportation services in Solano County: 

Daily Roundtrip One-way 
Roundtrins Fare Travel time 

GREYHOUND 
Express - Sacramento to S.F. 12-14 $21 2:00-2:30 hours 
Local - Davis to Suisun City 3-5 $19 50 minutes 
Local -Vacaville to Suisun City 3-5 $15 25 minutes 
Local- Suisun City to Vallejo 3-5 $15 25-30 minutes 

*Greyhound does not provide printed schedules for their routes 

SolanoLinks 

Benicia Transit (Benicia to Pleasant Hill BART) 27 $2.50 20-45 minutes 

Capitol Corridor (Suisun City to Richmond BART) 4 $13 54-60 minutes 
Capitol Corridor (Davis to Suisun City) 4 $15.50 3 0-3 5 minutes 

Route 20 (Fairfield to Vacaville) 12 $2.50 20-30 minutes 

Route 30 (Fairfield to Davis) 4 $5 49 minutes 

Route 40 (Vacaville to Pleasant Hill BART) 9 $7 1:00-1: 15 hours 

Route 80 (Vallejo to El Cerrito Del Norte BART) 44-46 $4 20-4 5 minutes 

Route 85 (Vallejo to Fairfield) 24 $4 45-50 minutes 

Route 90 (Fairfield to El Cerrito Del Norte BART) 12-15 $6 4 7-60 minutes 

Vallejo Ferry (Vallejo to S.F.) 11 $10 53 minutes 

PAGE 143 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

March 31, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 

s1ra 

Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce 
Washington D.C. meetings 

April 8, 1998 
Agenda Item 7.9 

The Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce has requested a representative of the STA to join them 
on their armual trip to Washington D.C. on May 2-7 to help promote local transportation projects, 
including funding earmarks for the I-80 Reliever Route project and intercity bus purchase grant. 
Vice-Chair Rischa Slade has agreed to represent the STA. 

The current year's budget for travel will need to be augmented to cover this proposed expense. Staff 
recommends that the Board authorize the transfer of $1,500 from contingency funds (current balance 
$25,390) to cover the Vice-Chair's air fare and lodging expenses (up to $1,200) and any remaining 
travel expenses for the remainder of this fiscal year. 

Recommendation 

Designate Vice-Chair Slade as the STA's representative on the Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of 
Commerce's May 2-7 trip to Washington and authorize the transfer of$1,500 from contingency 
funds to the travel budget to reimburse her for travel expenses (up to $1,200) and any remaining 
STA travel expenses for the remainder ofthis fiscal year. 

Attachment 

PAGE 145 



March 9, 1997 

Marty Tuttle 
Solano Transportation Authority 
333 Sunset Ave. Ste. #200 
suisun City, 
CA 94585-2003 

Dear Marty: 

It's time to get serious about our DC trip. If you are planning on 
joining us, May 2nd through the 7th, please contact the Chamber 
soon, so we can keep you up-to-date. 

Issues we will be working in Washington are transportation, 
education, healthcare, Travis, and tax reform. We will also be 
working with the City of fairfield on a new post office and zip 
code issues in Cordelia. 

We will have appointments with Representative Riggs and Fazio; 
Senators Boxer and Feinstein; Under Secretary of the Air Force 
Coleman, and Transportation, and Military Construction Committee 
staff members. we will spend several hours at the u. s. Chamber for 
business issues briefings before we travel to the Hill. 
We typically will have 15-17 meetings in our three and a half days. 

:.:_:::-). 
1-_, ·~ . .; 

Now is the time to start shopping for good airfare. We suggest you \\ 
travel on Saturday the 2nd, this gives you a fare break for staying 
over Saturday night, and gives you Sunday to sightsee. It is an 
easy cab ride from D. c. National to our hotel. 

We will be staying at the st. James Hotel, 950 24th Street, N. W., 
Washington D.C. 20036. It is very important that you make 
reservations through Washington D. C. Accommodations, a booking 
agency, and not the hotel. You might not get the great rate we have 
if you try to register directly with the hotel. 

You may reach Washington D. c. Accommodations at 1-800-554-2220 or 'l 
1-202-289-2220. Tell them you are with the Fairfield Suisun Chamber ~ 
of Commerce and they will fix you up. 

The hotel is located just off Washington Circle, and just across 
from the Foggy Bottom Metro Station. Phone is 202 457-0500. 

When you check in, be sure you are given Club room privileges. This 
entitles you to complimentary Continental Breakfast, Monday through 
Friday, and beverages and snacks every evening, Monday through 
Friday, also at no charge. 

PAGE 146 

Fairfield-Suisun Chamber of Commerce • 1111 Webster Street • Fairfield. CA 94533 • 707/425-4625 • FAX 707/425-0826 



/ 

We use the metro almost exclusively. A tip--use some spare time on 
Sunday to buy at least $10.00 worth of tickets--works just like 
Bart. We try and be on the Metro 30 minutes before each meeting. 
That means meeting in the hotel lobby about 40 minutes before each 
appointment. We have to leave on time, so if we miss you, we'll 
see you at the appointment location. 

We are all on our own for dinner each night, however usually one or 
two groups usually wind up going together. It is decided in the 
club room--usual meeting time is about 6. 

We hope to have dinner at the House Dining Room with Representative 
Riggs one night--but it depends on his schedule. 

Saturday Night May 2nd I have reservations for 15 at Donatelos-
walking distance from the hotel, at 7:30. If you will be going with 
us there--please let me know before we leave Fairfield-Suisun or 
leave a message at the hotel so I can confirm the right number for 
the reservations. 

Weather--totally unpredictable. It has been perfect, it has been 
cold, it has been hot and humid. At least bring a sweater or 
jacket--and thunderstorms are almost a given--a raincoat andjor 
umbrella are strongly suggested 

Taxis are cheap--if you want to use them. 

We will be doing a lot of walking.--be prepared 

Let us know if you will be joining us, if you haven't already done 
so. We will be having a group meeting at least a week before we 
leave. Even if you are just thinking about taking the trip, now is 
the time to let us know. 

Questions??? Call E. K. at 425-4625. 

PAGE 147 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

March 31, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 
I-80 Reliever Route 
Transportation/land use issues 

Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda Item 8.1 

In response to concerns raised about the potential land use impacts of the I -80 Reliever Route 
project, Chairman Erickson convened a subcommittee of the Board (Erickson, Lessler, Slade and 
Spering) to explore transportation/land use related issues associated with the project. 

The subcommittee met last week with Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) staff, 
including executive director Larry Dahms, to obtain information on MTC's Transportation/Land Use 
Technical Assistance Program. The intent of the program is to provide planning and design assistance 
to Bay Area jurisdictions to implement community-oriented transportation projects. MTC is primarily 
interested in promoting the following community-oriented strategies in new transportation projects: 

• Streetscape Improvements. These can entail widening sidewalks, improving lighting, and 
adding plantings, interesting sidewalk/crosswalk paving and street furniture. They also can 
include design improvements for adjacent buildings, such as smaller setbacks, pedestrian
oriented building facades and windows. Consolidated driveways, narrow streets and parallel 
parking along the street, with additional parking to the rear of buildings, can improve the 
streetscape as well. 

• Transit-Stop Design and Location Improvements. These can include weather protection, 
seating and adequate lighting. Location can be integrated with adjacent development, such 
that pedestrian walks and plazas, as well as building entrances, are oriented to the transit stop. 

• Infill and Densification. Such development can be located in urban downtown areas, near 
transit stations, and in urban or suburban activity centers. 

• Mixed-Use Development. These developments can include public, CIVIC, residential, 
shopfront and workplace uses. They are sometimes located near major suburban, residential 
developments or transit stations. Mixed-use developments sometimes attract businesses that 
provide jobs to match local residents. 

PAGE 149 



Agenda Item 8.1, cont. 

• Integrated Network of Streets, Transit Routes, Pedestrian Paths and Bikeways. This 
network can be designed to provide routes to many destinations. It should be integrated into 
the overall community design. 

Mr. Dahms agreed to assist the STA by setting aside up to $5,000 in program funds to facilitate 
meetings of project stakeholders (developers, environmentalists, local agency staff and the STA) to 
determine if there is an interest and a willingness to develop a concept plan for the Reliever Route 
corridor. The funds would be used for the STA to hire one ofMTC's prequalified consultants to 
facilitate these preliminary meetings/workshops (Phase 1 ). 

If a consensus to proceed emerges from stakeholder meeting, MTC is willing to consider allocating 
additional program funds, on a matching basis, for the STA to hire a consultant( s) to work with the 
stakeholders to develop the comprehensive concept plan as a new component to the already 
completed I -80 Reliever Route Implementation Plan. 

An update on the stakeholder meeting process and details on Phase 2, if appropriate, will be provided 
at the May Board meeting. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the executive director to work with the STA Board Reliever Route project Subcommittee 
and MTC to obtain a consultant(s) to facilitate a meeting/workshop ofi-80 Reliever Route project 
stakeholders. 

PAGE 150 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April!, 1998 
STABoard 

s1ra 
Board Member Marci Coglianese 

April8, 1998 
Agenda Item 8.2 

Renaming the Rio Vista Bridge after the late STA Board Member Helen Madere 

On August 13, 1997 the STA Board approved the attached resolution in support of renaming the Rio 
Vista Bridge after the late STABoardMemberfromRio Vista, Helen Madere. The City ofRio Vista 
also adopted a resolution supporting renaming the bridge. In response to requests from the STA and 
Rio Vista, Assemblymember Helen Thomson sponsored Assembly Combined Resolution (ACR) 100 
to rename the bridge. ACR 100 is currently under consideration in the Assembly Transportation 
Committee. According to Assemblymember Thomson's staff,, a letter reconfirming the STA's 
support for the renaming of the bridge would be timely. 

Recommendation 

Authorize the ST A Chairman to send a letter to the Chairman to the Assembly Transportation 
Committee reconfirming the STA' s support for the renaming of the Rio Vista Bridge after the late 
Helen Madere. 

PAGE 151 



SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 97 -Jq 

RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (STA) REQUESTING 
LEGISLATION REDESIGNATING RIO VISTA BRIDGE AS HELEN MADERE BRIDGE 

WHEREAS, the late Rio Vista Councilwoman Helen Madere will long be remembered for her efforts to 
improve the safety of driving on state Highway Route 12, and 

WHEREAS, as Chairwoman of the Highway 12 Association, Ms. Madere was a key force behind the 
safety improvements outlined in HR 45 (Hannigan) report and pending legislation by Assembly member 
Helen Thomson to establish a double-fine zone between Lodi and Suisun City on the route, and 

WHEREAS, as Rio Vista's representative to the Solano Transportation Authority, Ms. Madere was 
known as an advocate for advancing regional transportation projects, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Madere, who had an accounting background and owned a tax preparation business, was 
instrumental in helping Rio Vista recover from a financial crisis during the 1980s, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Madere was active in many civic and community activities in Rio Vista since moving 
there in 1959. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the STA Board respectfully requests Assembly member 
Helen Thomson to introduce legislation to redesignate the Rio Vista Bridge on state Highway Route 12 
as Helen Madere Bridge. 

Steve Lessler, Chairman 
Solano Transportation Authority 

I, MARTIN TUTTLE, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by said STA Board at a 
regular meeting thereofheld this 13th day of August, 1997. 

Martin Tuttle, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 

PAGE 152 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

March 31, 1998 
STABoard 
Martin Tuttle 

s1ra 

Proposed STA Budget for Fiscal Year 1998-99 

AprilS, 1998 
Agenda Item 9.1 

The attached proposed STA budget for 1998-99 includes a 5% increase in both TDA Planning and 
Administration and Gas Tax Subvention contributions from member agencies to cover a 3% COLA for 
employees and cost increases for operations (services and supplies). 

The proposed increase in member contributions is below the projected increase in both TDA and gas tax 
subventions to member agencies. TDA funds are expected to be up over 8% next FY and gas tax revenues will 
reportedly be over 5% when the governor releases his revised budget projections in May. 

The proposed 3% COLA for employees is in line with those recently approved for several Solano city and county 
employee groups, as well as the COLA adjustment approved for the STA's executive director by the Board in 
February. The increase for services and supplies reflects cost increases for office rent, photocopies, staff travel 
and the administrative contract with the City of Vacaville. 

The Project Development budget for 1998-99 is proposed to initially be set at $110,000. This item is funded in 
large part by carryover fund balances. Staff recommends that these project development funds be augmented by 
aoy additional fund balances determined after the audit is completed in the fall -- as was done in this current fiscal 
year. The list of projects eligible for these funds (STA Priority Projects) will be developed by the Technical 
Advisory Committee later this month and proposed to the Board at the May meeting. 

Staff is proposing to fund the SolanoLinks program with $128,825 of State Transit Assistance funds (with the 
City ofVallejoto fund 31% of these costs this year from their own STAF funds as specified in the SolanoLinks 
Consortium MOU). Also, up to $200,000 from STAF is proposed as the local match for the recent $1.2 million 
federal bus purchase grant. Vallejo, which is expected to receive funds from the grant for three buses, is seeking 
bridge toll funds to serve as their local match. 

The attached supplement to the 1998-99 budget is included for information purposes. It shows the proposed 
revenue sources for each fund, includes more detailed line items for operations, and identifies the actual amounts 
that will be loaded into the accounting system on a fund basis. When combined, the line items for each program 
on the supplement add up to the same overall numbers included in the proposed budget. 

Recommendation 

Approve the attached "Proposed STA 1998-99 Budget" on page 154 and member contributions as shown on 
page 158. 

PAGE 153 



DRAFT 

Proposed STA 1998-99 BUDGET 

Expenditures 
Operations 

Subtotal 

Salaries & Benefits 
Stipends 

Services/Supplies 
Contingency 

Project Development 

Programs 

Benicia ~ Martinez and Carquinez Bridges 
Bike Route Implementation 

Capitol Corridor 
Federal Lobbyist 

Ferry Feasibility Study 
Intercity Transit Study Implementation 

1-80 Reliever Route 
Small Projects 

Solano Transportation Plan 
Highway 12 

Mare Island Access Study 
Miscellaneous Project Development 

Subtotal 

Fairfield/Suisun Rail Station 
Solanolinks ( Transit Marketing/Planning ) 

Local Match for Bus Puchases (TFCAISTAF Grants) 
Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Grants 

TFCA Air Quality Program Manager Grants (BAAQMD) 
Solano Paratransit Operations 

City Link 

Subtotal 
TOTAL 

Revenues 
Current Year Revenues 

TDA Planning & Admin. 
STP Planning 

Gas Tax Contributions 
TDA Solano Paratransit Operations 

BAAQMD-TFCA Program/GranUinterest 
Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
YSAQMD Citylink GranUFares 

BAAQMD Citylink 
Paratransit Bus Purchases (TFCA) 

TCI Grant 
State Transit Assistance (STAF) 

Local Match for Section 3 Grant (STAF) 

Subtotal 
Use of Fund Balance 

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement 
BAAQMD-TFCA Program 

Reprogrammed 95/96 BAAQMD TRO Program Funds 
YSAQMD Citylink 

Gen Op & Proj Dev Fund Balance for Proj Dev 
Gen Op Fund Balance for Solano Paratransit 

Subtotal 
TOTAL I 

Amended Proposed 

1997-98 Budget 1998-99 Budget 

$363,868 
$6,600 

$155,440 
$29,390 

$555,298 

$8,000 
$10,000 
$5,000 

$22,500 
$2,000 
$5,000 

$0 
$0 

$30,000 
$10,000 
$10,000 
$47,500 

$150,000 

$0 
$170,000 

$92,003 
$300,000 
$424,552 
$282,500 
$170,000 

$1,439,055 
$2,144,353 

Amended 

1997-98 Budget 

$240,356 
$100,000 
$240,356 
$278,500 
$320,933 
$285,000 
$100,000 

$0 
$92,003 

$0 
$170,000 

$0 

$1,827,149 

$24,000 
$77,839 
$42,000 
$70,000 
$99,366 
$4,000 

$317,205 

$2,144,353 

$370,744 (1) 
$6,600 

$171,539 
$34,447 

$583,330 

$110,000 (2) 

$591,000 
$128,825 
$200,000 
$305,000 
$394,975 
$288,630 
$115,000 

$2,023,430 
$2,716,760 

Proposed 

1998-99 Budget 

$252,374 
$100,000 
$252,374 
$283,630 
$344,472 
$295,000 
$110,000 

$5,000 
$0 

$591,000 (3) 
$128,825 (4) 
$200,000 (5) 

$2,562,674 

$15,000 
$67,726 

$0 
$0 

$66,360 (6 
$5,000 

$154,086 

$2,716,7EIJ 1\GE 154 



Footnote Comments 

(1) Includes a 3% COLA for STA staff. 

(2) To be programmed as part of priority projects. 

(3) $591,000 TCI funds origina11ybudgeted inFY 97/8 will not be expended until FY 98/9. The 
proposed budget shows this funding being moved from the current year to the proposed 
1998/99 budget. 

(4) For intercity transit marketing and planning, includes 31.05% contribution from Vallejo 
ST AF ($40,000) and the remaining 68.95% contribution ($88,825) from the other Solano 
transit operators. 

( 5) This is a portion of the 20% local match from Solano transit operators (additional match to 
be secured through the City of Vallejo) to secure the $1.2 million FTA Section 3 bus grant. 

(6) Includes $21,811 ofFY 97 Project Development fund balance and $44,549 transfer from 
remaining fiscal year general operation fund balance. 

PAGE 155 



• 

Solano Transportation Authority 
1998-99 Budget 
Supplemental Information 

EXPENDITURES 
Operations 
Salaries and Benefits 
Temporary services 
Stipends 

Services & supplies: 
Legal services 

Personnel services 
Accounting services 
Technical services 

Building rent 
Mileage/travel 

Training 
Professional Memberships 

Supplies 
Printing/binding 

Postage 
Mailing 

Small tools & equipment 
Liability/property Insurance 

Telephones 
Audit services 

Copier I equipment/ furniture 

Contingency 

Project Development 
Projects 

Abandoned Vehicles 
Allocation to cities & county 

City of Vacaville Legal svs 
City of Vacaville Personnel svs 

City of Vacaville Accounting svs 

$345,521 
$500 

$6.600 
$352,621 

$4,253 
$4,150 

$23,780 
$25,000 
$34,856 
$5,000 
$5,000 
$3,500 

$10,000 
$6,500 
$8,000 

$500 
$1,000 
$3,500 
$8,000 

$11,500 
$12.000 

$166,539 
$34.447 

$553,607 

$110.000 
$110,000 

$305,000 
$1,000 
$1,000 
$3.000 

$310,000 

Source of Funding 

TDA Planning & Administration 
STP Planning 
Gas Tax Contribution 

Source of Funding 
STP Planning 
Gen Op fund balance 
Proj Dev fund balance 

Source of Funding 
AVAA 
A V AA fund balance 

$244,874 
$56,360 

$252.374 
$553,607 

$43,640 
$44,549 
$21.811 

$110,000 

$295,000 
$15.000 

$310,000 

PAGE 156 



Air Oualitv 
Allocation to cities & county 

Salaries & Benefits 

Solano Paratransit 
Contract and insurance 

Farebox supplement 
Salaries and benefits 

Citvlink 
Operations 

Transit 
Solanolinks Consortium 
Local Match Bus Match 

Fairfield/Suisun Rail Station 
Technical Services 

$394,975 
$17.223 

$412,198 

$283,630 
$5,000 
$7.500 

$296,130 

$115.000 
$115,000 

$128,825 
$200.000 
$328,825 

$591.000 
$591,000 

Source of Funding 
Air Quality 
Interest 
Air Quality fund balance 

Source of Funding 
TDA funds 
Fares 
Gen Op fund balance 
TDA P & A salaries & benefits 

Source of Funding 
YSAQMD grant 
BAAQMD grant 
Fares 

Source of Funding 
State Transit Assistance (ST AF) 
STAF (local match for federal funds) 

Source of Funding 
TCI Grant 

$327,674 
$16,798 
$67.726 

$412,198 

$259,130 
$24,500 

$5,000 
$7.500 

$296,130 

$90,000 
$5,000 

$20.000 
$115,000 

$128,825 
$200.000 
$328,825 

$591.000 
$591,000 

PAGE 157 



. . 

PROPOSED 1998-99 COST 
DISTRIBUTIONS 
Combined Contributions ofTDA Planning and Administration and Gas Tax for FY 1998-99 

BENICIA 
DIXON 
FAIRFIELD 
RIO VISTA 
SUISUN CITY 
VACAVILLE 
VALLEJO 
UNINCORPORATED 
TOTALS 

C:\0Fi='ICE\QPVV\TOA98-9.WB2 

3/17/98 

Gas 
Tax 

$18 391 
$9179 

$59 847 
$2,495 

$17,349 
$57 225 
$74 305 
$13 583 

$252 374 

TDA 
P&A 

$18 391 
$9179 

$59,847 
$2,_495 

$17 349 
$57 225 
$74 305 
$13,583 

$252,374 

Solano Subtotal TOTAL 
Para TDA 
$0 $18 391.27 $36 782.55 

$6977 $16155.42 $25 334.25 
$87 900 $147 747.58 $207 594.87 
$1,205 $3,699.49 $6,194.25 

$41 427 $58 776.11 $76,125.10 
$105 603. $162 828.18 $22Q,052.94 

$0 $74 304.78 $148 609.56 
$16,018 $29,601.17 $43184.49 

$259,130 $511,504.00 $763,878.00 

1 of3 

PAGE 158 



·. 

PROPOSED 1998-99 COST DISTRIBUTIONS 

Proposed Distribution of TDA Contributions for Planning and Admini~tration 

POP • PERCENT POP COST 
BENICIA 27,350 7.29% $18,391 
DIXON 13,650 3.64% $9,179 
FAIRFIELD 89,000 23.71% $59,847 
RIO VISTA 3,710 0.99% $2,495 
SUISUN CITY 25,800 6.87% $17,349 
VACAVILLE 85,100 22.67% $57,225 
VALLEJO 110,500 29.44% $74,305 
UNINCORPORATED 20,200 5.38% $13,583 
TOTALS 375,310 100.00% $252,374 

Proposed Gas Tax Subvention Funds 

POP PERCENT POP COST 
BENICIA 27,350 7.29% $18,391 
DIXON 13,650 3.64% $9,179 
FAIRFIELD 89,000 23.71% $59,847 
RIO VISTA 3,710 0.99% $2,495 
SUISUN CITY 25,800 6.87% $17,349 
VACAVILLE 85,100 22.67% $57,225 
VALLEJO 110,500 29.44% $74,305 
UNINCORPORATED 20,200 5.38% $13,583 
TOTALS 375,310 100.00% $252,374 

Historic Combined Contributions of TDA Planning and Administration and Gas Tax 

1998 99 - 1997-98 1996-97 
BENICIA $36,783 $35,049 $34,031 
DIXON $18,358 $16,880 $15,730 
FAIRFIELD $119,695 $111,976 $107,357 
RIO VISTA $4,990 $4,716 $4,578 
SUISUN CITY $34,698 $32,858 $31,399 
VACAVILLE $114,450 $108,497 $103,562 
VALLEJO $148,610 $144,706 $140,409 
UNINCORPORATED $27,167 $26,029 $25,156 
TOTALS $504,748 $480,711 $462,222 

• Based on State Dept. of Finance population projections for Jan. 1, 1997. 

C:\OFFICE\QPW\TDA98-9.Wf?!2 

3/17/98 

' \ 

2 of3 

PAGE 159 



• 

PROPOSED 1998-99 COST DISTRIBUTIONS 

Proposed TDA Operations Contributions for Solano Paratransit 

POP PERCENT SHARE TRIPS* PERCENT SHARE TOTAL COST 
DIXON 13,650 5.75% $3724 152 
FAIRFIELD 89,000 37.48% $24,280 2973 
RIO VISTA 3 710 1.56% $1012 9 
SUISUN CITY 25800 10.86% $7,039 '1607 
VACAVILLE 85100 35.84% $23,217 3850 
UNINCORPORATED 20,200 8.51% $5,511 491 
TOTALS 237 460 100.00% $64 783 9082 

• Based on actual number of trips provided on Solano Paratransit for FY 97·98 through 
February 98, and projected out to the end of !he year 

C:\OFFICE\QPW\TDA98-9.WB2 

3117198 

1.67% $3,253 $6977 
32.74% $63,620 $87,900 
0.10% $193 $1.205 
17.69% $34 389 $41427 
42.39% $82387 $105,603 
5.41% $10,507 $16 018 
100% $194 348 $259,130 

3 of3 

PAGE 160 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 

April 1, 1998 
STABoard 
Dan Christians 

April8, 1998 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Re: Transportation for Clean Air Fund Programs TFCA Applications for 1998-99 

The following TFCA funding requests were received this year: 

Eligibility TFCA 
Applicant Project Category Request 

Benicia Transit Southampton Express Shuttle Bus $40,000 
SCI I -80 Mitigation Program Ridesharing $60,000 

Transit Information Transit Information $22,000 
City ofF airfield Electric Police Bikes Bicycles $ 8,825 
City of Suisun City Electric Police Bikes Bicycles $ 8,150 
City of Suisun City Highway 12 Bike Route Bicycle Route $100,000 
City of Vallejo I-80 Solano Bikeway Bicycle Route $151,000 
STA Citylink 30 Contribution CNG Shuttle Bus $ 5,000 

TOTAL REQUESTS $394,975 

Based on preliminary revenue numbers provided to the ST A, staff determined that there should be 
enough funds for all the requests, and is recommending that all applications be approved for submittal 
to the BAAQMD. The STA Executive Committee also reviewed the requests at their March meeting 
and the TAC supported the requests at their March 25 meeting. The only concern left is that all the 
submittals meet the Air District's cost effectiveness criteria since they have the final authority to 
approve or deny specific projects based on technical standards. Therefore, staff will continue to work 
with the Air District and project sponsors to ensure that the requests meet eligibility requirements. 

Staff will notifY the Board if any projects are not accepted by the BAAQMD or if the final available 
dollar amounts for next year's program are modified. 

Recommendation 

Adopt the attached resolution approving all the above requests for 1998-99 Transportation for Clean 
Air Funds and authorizing the Executive Director to submit them to BAAQMD for final approval. 

PAGE 161 



RESOLUTION 98-

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN 

AIR TO THE BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT FOR 
FY 1998-98 

WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) has requested applications 
for the FY 1998-99 funding cycle for the Transportation Fund for Clean Air Program; and 

WHEREAS, various Solano jurisdictions within the BAAQMD have submitted proposals for 
projects under this Program; and 

WHEREAS, all of the proposals promote air quality including local feeder bus/shuttle services to 
rail stations, electric police bicycles, bicycle routes, transit information, and ridesharing trip reduction 
programs and are being reviewed for compliance with acceptable cost effectiveness calculations in 
accordance with BAAQMD guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the projects meet the purpose and intent of this program; and 

WHEREAS, the STA Board's Executive Committee and Technical Advisory Committee have 
reviewed the proposals and recommend the proposed projects to the STA Board; and 

WHEREAS, the budgeted revenues for 1998-99 are based on estimated $327,674 of new revenue 
expected from the BAAQMD, $16,798 of interest, $67,726 of fund balance; and expenditures of 
$394,975 for project grants and $17,223 for administration ofthe program by the STA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Solano Transportation Authority hereby 
submits the attached list of recommended proposals to BAAQMD for the Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air Program for FY 98-99. 

Don Erickson, Chairman 
Solano Transportation Authority 

I, MARTIN TUTTLE, the Solano Transportation Authority Executive Director, do hereby certifY 
that the above and foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by said ST A 
at a regular meeting thereof held this 8th day of April, 1998. 

Martin Tuttle, Executive Director 
Solano Transportation Authority 

PAGE 162 



Attachment A to 
STA Resolution Authorizing TFCA Applications for 1998-99 

Eligibility TFCA 
Applicant Project Category Request 

Benicia Transit Southampton Express Shuttle Bus $40,000 
SCI I -80 Mitigation Program Ridesharing $60,000 

Transit Information Transit Information $22,000 
City of Fairfield Electric Police Bikes Bicycles $ 8,825 
City of Suisun City Electric Police Bikes Bicycles $ 8,150 
City of Suisun City Highway 12 Bike Route Bicycle Route $100,000 
City of Vallejo I-80 Solano Bikeway Bicycle Route $151,000 
STA Citylink 30 Contribution CNG Shuttle Bus $ 5,000 

TOTAL REQUESTS $394,975 

PAGE 163 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April!, 1998 
STABoard 
Morrie Barr, City of Fairfield 

AprilS, 1998 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Update on the Fairfield/Vacaville Capitol Corridor Train Station 
- Information Item Only 

The STA requested funds from the 1994-95 Transit Capital Improvements (TCI) program to develop 
the FairfieldNacaville passenger train station serving the Capitol Corridor. The STA was 
programmed for $498,000 to develop the station. In the 1995-96 TCI cycle the City of Fairfield was 
programmed for $402,000 to develop the station. 

These funds are for right of way, environmental clearances, and engineering only. A condition placed 
on these funds by the California Transportation Commission (CTC) prohibits the use of TCI funds 
for construction of the Fairfield/Vacaville station until ten round trips per day are programmed on the 
Capitol Corridor. 

The ST A and the City of Fairfield recently requested an amendment to the State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) to combine the two grants under the City of Fairfield and to reclassifY 
the 1994-95 funds as intercity rail funds not requiring a 50% local match. The 1995-96 funding is 
already classified as intercity funding, and does not require a local match. A letter to the state Mass 
Transportation Program requesting the STIP amendment is attached. The proposed STIP 
amendment is expected to receive final approval from the CTC at the April 1 CTC meeting. An 
update on the CTC action will be provided to the ST A Board at the April 8 meeting. 

The Solano Rail Facilities Plan recommended a site for the FairfieldNacaville station on Vanden 
Road in the vicinity of Cannon Road. Environmental problems at that location forced the 
development of the site at an alternate location also studied in the Rail Facilities Plan at the 
intersection of Vanden Road and Peabody Road. 

Morrie Barr from the City of Fairfield will provide an update on the development of the station at the 
April STA Board meeting. 

Attachments 

PAGE 165 



No. ftJ 
AGENDA REPORT FOR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING DATE: January 20, 1998 

TO: The Mayor and City Council 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of Appropriate Documents to 
Request an Allocation of Transit Capital Improvement (TCI) Funds 
for Costs Related to the FairfieldNacaville Rail Station 

A) RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 

ADVISORY BODY RECOMMENDATION : N/A 

B) EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This resolution supports the submittal of a funding 
request to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) to complete 
environmental/engineering work and acquire land for the FairfieldNacaville Rail 
Station. Two potential sites were identified for the FairfieldNacaville station. 
Both are located on Vanden Road. Site #1 is at the junction of Peabody and 
Vanden (Peabody site) while the other (Vanden site) is approximately 1.5 miles 
further east. A large quantity of wetland acreage was found on the Vanden site 
while no significant environmental issues were identified for the Peabody 
location. Because of sign ificant environmental issues at the Vanden site, the 
Peabody site is the recommended site to acquire and develop. 

C) DISCUSSION: In July 1995 the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) 
completed the Solano Rail Facilities Plan. The Plan's purpose was to define and 
document the long range rail passenger needs of Solano County, and calls for a 
total of four stations. In addition to the existing Suisun/Fairfield station, sites 
have been identified for Benicia, Dixon and FairfieldN acaville. Two potential 
sites were identified for the FairfteldNacaville station. Both are located on 
Vanden Road. Site #1 is at the junction of Peabody and Vanden (Peabody site) 
while the other (Vanden site) is approximately 1.5 miles further east. The 
Vanden site is identified in the City's General Plan as a future train station. This 
funding request is for the Peabody site. A General Plan amendment will be 
required to designate this site for the train station and redesignate the Vanden 
site for another use. 

In each of FY 1995 and FY 1996 the CTC set aside State Transit Capital 
Improvement (TCI) funding for this project. The FY 1995 ($498,000) request 
was submitted by the STA while Fairfield made the FY 1996 ($402,000) request 
for a total of $900,000. During the Summer and Fall of 1997 Fairfield conducted 
an environmental analysis of both sites. A large quantity of wetland acreage was 



PAGE2 
MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL, No. (_p 
January 20, ·1998 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of Appropriate Documents to 
Request an Allocation of Transit Capital Improvement (TCI) Funds 
for Costs Related to the FairfieldNacaville Rail Station 

found on the Vanden site while no significant environmental issues were 
identified for the Peabody location. In addition particular endangered plant life 
may exist on the Vanden site making it more difficult to develop. Because of 
these significant environmental issues at the Vanden site, the Peabody site is 
the recommended site to acquire and develop. Passage of the resolution allows 
staff to forward required documentation to Caltrans and the CTC to allow the 
CTC to release TCI funds. A purchase agreement will be scheduled for action 
by the City Council at a later date. 

D) PUBLIC CONTACT: N/A 

E) FISCAL IMPACT: State TCI funds will be used for the remaining environmental 
and engineering tasks, and acquisition of the land. No General Fund moneys 
will be used. 

F) ALTERNATIVE COURSES OF ACTION: Alternatives to this action include: 1) 
not request the funds; the funds would lapse and be reassigned to another public 
agency, 2) select the Vanden site; however, environmental constraints may 
disallow substantial portions of the site to be developed. 

Prepared by: 

// JJ) · ( lr-' 
UiMW i l!zullwr 

Approved: 

Ronald L. Hurlbut, Director 
Public Works 

Kevin O'Rourke, City Manager 

Coordinated with: Solano Transportation Authority and City of Vacaville 
Planning and Development 

Attachments: Vicinity Map 

PA-G-E 167 



l 
\ 

\\ 

' 

;':; ll MARKELEY l~l 

PROPOSED 
FAIRFIELD/VACAVILLE 

RAIL STATION 
SITE 

a l ___, 
~I 
~I 

' I 
i 

~,-- 006E OR 

I[?/) r:Ji 

PAGE 168 



CITY OF FAIRFIELD 

RESOLUTION NO. 98- I I 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS 
TO REQUEST AN ALLOCATION OF TRANSIT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (TCI) 
FUNDS FOR COSTS RELATED TO THE FAIRFIELDNACAVILLE RAIL STATION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD: 

1. The location of the FairfieldNacaville Rail Station shall be at the junction 

of Peabody and Vanden Roads (northeast corner of the Union Pacific Railroad crossing 

and Peabody Road) because no significant environmental issues have been identified 

at this site. 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to do all things necessary and 

proper to request State TCI funds from the California Transportation Commission for 

the FairfieldNacaville Rail Station. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 1998, by the following vote: 

A YES: Councilmembers: Lessler 1 MacMillan 1 O'Regan 1 Pnce 1 Pettygrove 

NOES: Councilmembers: _,<)t""'' :!4.ft.uh.Uo.::..._ ____________ _ 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: ..!}l&v-'<.:.."'W=--------------

ABST AI NED: Councilmembers: _911Z-'<"-Aihv'-""":;___---'--------------

Attest: 

PAGE 169 



.. 

333 Sunset Avenue, Suite 2CO 
Suisun City, California 94585 

lveaCode707 January 15, 1998 
422-6491 • Fox 438-0656 

Members: 

Benicia 

Dixon 

Fairffeld 

Rio Vista 

Solano County 

Suisun City 

Vocovllle 

Vallejo 

Martin Tuffie 
Executtve Olrector 

David Cabrera 
Caltrans, Mass Transportation Program 
P.O. Box 942874, Mail Station 39 
Sacramento, CA 94274-0001 

Dear Mr. Cabrera: 

As requested in your letter of December 30, please find the enclosed executed 
resolution from the Solano Transportation Authority (STA) requesting that the 1994-95 
Transit Capital Improvements (TCI) program funds be transferred from the STA to the City 
of Fairfield to be used for the development of the Fairfield\Vacaville intercity rail station. 
As per the condition placed upon these funds by the California Transportation Commission 
(CTC), the resolution also acknowledges that any future Capitol Corridor service to the 
Fairfield\V acaville rail station will likely be "skip stop" service. 

As you requested in your letter, the STA acknowledges the CTC condition that "no 
station construction and improvements be programmed in future TCI cycles until the 
Department, MTC, and the local agencies (and perhaps Amtrak) agree that daily 10-train 
service level, as described in ACR 132, would be implemented. The specific number of train 
stops at this or any station is to be determined by Caltrans in consultation with the affected 
agencies." 

Also as requested, enclosed is correspondence from the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) and the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board ((:CJPB) supporting t.he · · 
proposed STIP amendment. The City of Fairfield has provided a revised financial plan, 
delivery schedule and scope of work for the proposed project. 

With this information, we hope Caltrans will recommend that the CTC approve the 
proposed STIP amendment and clarifY that the 1994-95 TCI funds are intercity funds and do 
not require a local match. I believe that this information addresses your request. As the 
deadline for allocation of these TCI funds is fast approaching, please let me know 
immediately if any further information is needed. 

PAGE 170 



David Cabrera letter. page two 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Enclosures 

Sincerely, 

Martin Tuttle 
Executive Director 

cc: Kathie Jacobs, Cal trans, Mass Transportation Program 
Councilman Steve Lessler, City of Fairfield 
Morrie Barr, City of Fairfield 
Wade Greene, Caltrans District 4 
Clem Bomar, Rail Program 
Robert Chung, Califomia Transportation Commission 
April Chan, Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

PAGE 171 



DATE: 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 

April I, 1998 
STABoard 
Alan Nadritch 

s1ra 

Presentation by SolanoLinks Consortium 

Apri/8, 1998 
Agenda Item 10.2 

The SolanoLinks Consortium has been preparing for a large marketing effort to begin this spring. 
One of the efforts we want to highlight is the creation of a Solano Links video that the Consortium 
would like to preview to the Board tonight. The video is envisioned to be used for local cable spots, 
display at events on a "loop" programmed video, and any other opportunities that arise. Each 
Consortium operator will have copies available for their use to complement the various marketing 
outlets they use. The full4 minute video is also being edited to a 60 second spot for additional uses 
as well. 

The Consortium is also pleased to announce that it received an award from the California 
Transportation Foundation for transit project of the year for the SolanoLinks program. The award 
will be presented at the May 6th Tranny Banquet in Sacramento. Chairman Erickson attended the 
Consortium meeting of March 25 and informed the group of this honor. 

PAGE 173 


	sf
	sf-1

